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AMENDMENT TO THE ANNUAL REPORT

Based on the regulator's requirement, J&GT BANKA, a.s. with ifs registered office at Pobrezni 14, 186 00 Praha 8 hereby modifies

and supplements the 2015 Annual Report as follows:

1. Changes are made in the chart "Depaosits from customers and Number of clients" for the Bank on an individual and
consolidated basis, as the number of clients calculated on an individual basis (nearly 55 thousand customers) was swapped
during graphics processing with the number of customers calculated on consolidated basis (over 62 thousand customers)
(page 1B).

2. Af the end of the "Management of the Bank" chapter, a declaration pursuant to Section 14.1 of Annex | fo the Commission
Regulation (EC) No. 809/2004 has been added (page 25).

3. In the sub-chapter "Information about internal control principles and procedures relating to the financial reporting process'
a more exact wording on audit fees has been provided (page 234).

4. In the sub-chapter "Remuneration policy" the number of persons with managing powers has been modified. The reduced
number of these persons has been also reflected in the changes in the figures and information on the monetary and non-
monetary income of these persons (page 235).

Adding or modifying the information in the 2015 annual report does not change the financial data or results for 2016 and has
no effect on the acftivity of the Bank or the Group.

The amended annual report for 2016 has been published as a separate document on the website of JGT BANKA, a.s.

Prague, 20 October 2016

AN

Ing. Patrik Tkae Stépan Aser, MBA
Board chairman Member of the Board of Directors



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF J & T BANKA, A.S.

On 31 March 2016, we issued an audifor's report on the consolidated statutory financial statements of JGT BANKA, a.s. Based
on the requirement of the Czech National Bank, an amendment fo the consolidated annual report was prepared affer this date,
contfaining addifional information.

Consolidated annual report — added information
We have audited the consistency of the added information (refer o the list on page 2] with the audited consolidated financial
statements.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors and Infernational Standards on Audifing and the relevant
guidance of the Chamber of Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance that the information disclosed in the consolidated annual report describing matters that are also
presented in the consolidated financial statements is, in all material respects, consistent with the audited consolidated financial
statements. We believe that the audit we have conducted provides a reasonable basis for our audit opinion.

In our opinion, the added information given in the consolidated annual report is in all material respects consistent with the

consolidated financial statements.

Prague, 20 October 2016

KPH G Chﬁ, ,\7,/,{«6, Lered

KPMG Ceska republika Audit, s.r.o. Ing. Vladimir Dvoracek
Registration number 71 Partner
Regisfrafion number 2332
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Selected Financial
Indicators

Selected Financial Indicators - individual

in MCZK 2015 2014 2013 2012 20Mm
ANNUAL FIGURES

Profit before fax 1,963 1675 748 1153 381
Tax [230) (332) (117) [234]) (79)
Profit for the year 1,733 1,243 631 919 302
BALANCES AS AT YEAR-END

Equity 18,799 14,378 12,817 7,233 5,148
Deposits and loans from banks 4,343 4,637 4,738 10,828 8,211
Deposits from customers 117,068 100,366 82,018 62,086 53,633
Due from financial institfutions 33,661 6,295 2,940 6,369 7,801
Loans and advances to customers 70,042 66,31 56,383 39,330 36,107
Total assets 148,990 126,041 104,768 85,087 70154
FINANCIAL RATIOS

Refturn on Equity 1.12% SM% B8.26% 14.84% 7.02%
Return on Assefs 1.27% 1.08% 0.66% 1.18% 0.62%
Capital adequacy 16.83% 14.54% 17.08% 12.90% 13.00%
Total equity/total assets 11.43% 1M.41% 12.33% 8.50% 7.34%
Average number of employees 443 434 378 407 384
Assets per employee 332 290 277 209 183
Administrative expenses per employee (4) [(4) (4] (3] (2]

Profit after tax per employee 4 3 2 2 1
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Selected Financial Indicators - consolidated

in MCZK 2015 2014 2013 2012 20N
ANNUAL FIGURES

Profit before fax 1183 1,383 885 1193 354
Tax (287) (381) (151) (272) (85)
Share of profit of equity-accounted invesfees 167 340 321 - -
Profit from continuing operatfions 1,089 1,342 8556 921 269
Profit from discontinued operations 787 - 214 95 -
Profit for the year 1,876 1,342 1,069 1,016 269
BALANCES AS AT YEAR-END

Equity 16,945 15,343 14,048 7,417 5,235
Depasits and loans from banks 4,268 4,616 5,083 1,248 9,110
Deposits from customers 121,812 106,946 85,823 64,032 55,023
Due from financial institutions 34,379 7164 3,666 8,865 9,081
Loans and advances to cusfomers 74,668 71170 60,004 41160 36,684
Total assets 154,851 133,801 110,237 88,401 72,568
FINANCIAL RATIOS

Refurn on Equity 11.62% 9.13% 9.96% 16.068% 8.16%
Return on Assefs 1.30% 1.10% 1.08% 1.26% 0.45%
Capital adequacy 13.91% 13.44% 15.85% 1.87% 12.08%
Total equity/total assets 10.94% 1.47% 12.74% 8.39% 7.21%
Average number of employees 689 688 487 499 401
Assets per employee 225 194 228 177 181
Administrative expenses per employee (3) (3) (3) (3) (2)

Profit after fax per employee 3 2 2 2 1
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Foreword

Dear Clients, Business Partners and Friends,

| am very glad we have managed fo fulfil fo a large exfent
ambitious objectives we have set for 2015. We have managed
to follow successes of previous years by increasing the value
of managed client assetfs and positive financial and business
results. Profit of CZK 1.733 billion has confirmed the excellent
year 2014 when the Bank broke through the limit of a billion of
Czech crowns; tofal assefs amounted fo CZK 147 billion. The
Bank's Group repaorfed profit of CZK 1.876 billion and ended
the year 2015 with fofal assetfs exceeding CZK 150 billion.

We have offered eight new bond issues fo clients; we
confinued fo successfully sell our subordinated yield
cerfificate which was favourably accepted by domestic
investars. We were also pleased by the JGT Money CZK
open-ended unif frust which was the best fund for 2015 as it
has won the Mixed Funds category in the contest Fincentrum

& Forbes Investment of the Year 20715 for the second fime.

We understand that an increase in the number of clients
and their needs and expectations requires enhancements in
quality of our services and fechnologies. Next year, we will
therefore sfrengthen our infrastructure and systems, we will
concentrate on technological innovations and novelties and
primarily we will pay close affention fo our employees who
are crucial for the Bank's further successful development.
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However, even during our care for our clients' finance we
have not forgotten activities in support of arts. We continue fo
create our own art collection also in cooperation with leading
art insfifutions both in the Czech Republic and Slovakia. After
the success of the WTA J&T Banka Prague Open fennis
fournament held in 2015 we continue our partnership with that
significant event. After two years of successful support for
the prestigious infernational race in horse show-jumping, J&T
Banka CS13*W, we have decided fo extend our cooperatfion
for anather three years.

Ladies and gentlemen, let me thank all our employees for
their excellent wark, partners and clients for their confidence
which we highly appreciate.

Stépan Aser, MBA
Chief executive officer, J&T Banka, a. s.



DEPOSITS CONTRACTUAL MATURITY / 2016

16,4% On demand

6,4% 1 month and mare

14,1% 3 months and more

2,4% 6 months and mare

60,7% 12 months and more

DEPOSITS CONTRACTUAL MATURITY / 2014

13% On demand

6% 1 month and more

14% 3 months and more

3% 6 manths and more

B64% 12 months and more
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Report of the Board

of Directors

Financial results - the Bank

The Bank ended the year 2015 with tofal assefs of CZK
147 billion. By its profit for 2015 in the amount of CZK 1733
billion it has confirmed extraordinary results of 2014 when it
exceeded CZK 1 billion for the first fime. By the year-on-year
increase in fofal assets (+ 17%) and profit after tax (+ 39%) the
Bank has again confirmed its growing tendency and ability fo
achieve profit in compliance with the business and strategic
plan set by the Bank's shareholder despite stricter regulatory
conditions and increasing compefition on the banking market.
The year-on-year increase in net profit is largely due to an
increase in net interest income by 10% to CZK 2.894 billion (in
2014: CZK 2.627 billion) and an increase in received dividends
from ownership interests by CZK 0.26 billion. The Bank's net
profit for 2015 was significantly influenced by the sale of
an ownership inferest in Postova banka, a.s. The sale of its
3717% interest of shares contributed fo the increase of other
operating income by CZK 0.74 billion.

Net income from fees and commissions for 2015 kept their
level of 2014. The Bank followed the previous period when
it successfully ensured new bond issues for clienfs. Fees
for new bond issues as well as fees for bill of exchange
programmes formed a significant part of fee income.

The growth in operating expenses (+ 10%) complied with
the Bank's objective and was lower than the growth in
fotal assefs and operating income. Administrative expenses
per employee are mainfained af the same level for the last
three years. The Bank has been keeping a ratio of operating
expenses fo tofal assefs under the level of 1.6%, by which it
ranks to the best in the market. In 2015, the Bank managed fo
increase profit after fax per employee by 36%.

The growth in fofal assefs and profit was supported by an
increase in client deposits and granting loans. At 31 December
2015, the volume of client deposits amounted fo CZK
117 billion, which means a yearon-year increase by 17%.
Despite a decrease in interest rates on the marketf, the
Bank managed to offer interest rates to clients which allow

sustaining the permanent growth in client deposits. Those
deposits were managed with regard fo their volume as well
as their optimum fime stfructure. Due to that approach, the
credit portfolio increased year on year by 8% fo CZK 70 billion.
The fotal number of the Bank's clients again increased in 2016
and achieved the level of almost 55 thousand. Individuals
continue to be a key segment for the Bank.

At the end of 2015, equity totalled CZK 16.8 billion (which
means a year-on-year increase by CZK 2.4 billion). A year-on-
year increase in capifal by 17% was caused in parficular by
an increase in registered capital (on 10 November 20716 the
sole sharehalder of the Bank subscribed new shares in the
volume of CZK 1.08 billion) and by an increase in refained
earnings by CZK 0.48 billion (from profit of 2014).

In 2015, fwoissues of yield perpetfuity certificates were putinfo
market after the successful first issue in 2014. A prospectus
of the Czech crown issue in the total nominal value of CZK
1billion was approved in September 2015 and at 31 December
2015, 83% of ifs tofal volume were sold. In December 2015,
a prospectus of the first Euro issue was approved in the tfotal
nominal value of EUR 50 million infended especially for the
Slovak market. The issue of new vyield perpetfuity cerfificates
resulfed in an increase in equity by CZK 0.84 billion.

In May 2075, the Bank increased ifs ownership inferest in
J&T Bank, a.o0. by subscribing new shares in the fafal nominal
value of 5.6 billion of Russian roubles.

The Bank is sufficiently equipped with capital and prepared
for the further growth and development. At 31 December 2075,
its capital adequacy amounted to 16.83% (in 2014: 14.64%).

Financial results — the Group

The Group closed the year 2016 with fotal assets amounting
to CZK 1564.9 billion (an increase by 18%). Profit after fax
increased year on year by 40% and fotalled CZK 1.876 billion
for the period concerned.

n



CAPITAL ABEQUACY — THE BANK

20,000 20%
15,000
o N
/ N
/ AN
Vs N -
10,000 SN - 165%
/ N~
/
/
I—
5,000 =
-
-
-
0 10%
12/2010 12/201 12/2012 12/2013 12/2014 12/2015

CAPITAL ABEQUACY — THE GROUP

20,000 20%
15,000
/N
y: N
10,000 N 15%
/ ‘ S
N
/ N— - - -
/
5,000 /
- - - - ==
0 10%
12/2010 12/2011 12/2012 12/2013 12/2014 12/2016

= Regulatory capital (in MCZK) = = = (apital adequacy (%]



A year-on-year increase in net profit was primarily supported
by an increase in net interest income by 6% (fo total CZK
3.088 billion) and an increase in other operating income
(+ 21%). Net income fram fees and commissions decreased
by 6% fo CZK 0.6 billion. Despite that, the Group managed
to maintain income from fees and commissions at the last
year's level in the amount of almost CZK 0.8 billion. However,
despite the growth, operating expense remained almaost at
the level of 2014 (a decrease by 2%).

As at 31 December 2075, the Group reporfed assets for sale
of CZK 4.882 billion in the balance sheet, of which CZK 4.808
billion were formed by assetfs of the Russian company J&T
Bank a.o0. Obligations for sale in the volume of CZK 2.961 billion
at 31 Becember 2015 were formed only by obligations of J&T
Bank, a.o. This reporfing has resulted from an agreement on
the sale of 50% in J&T Bank a.0. entered into in September
2015, At 31 December 2015, the enfire fransaction was fo be
approved by respective regulators. Net profit of this assetf
for sale amounted to CZK 0.787 billion for 2015, where the
largest profit share was formed by the revaluation of foreign
currency assets.

In 2015, the Group increased a volume of client deposifts
by 14% to CZK 121.8 billion and a volume of the portfolio of
receivables from clients grew by 5% fo CZK 74.7 billion.

Atthe end of 2015, equity amounted fo CZK 16.95 billion, which
represented a year-on-year increase by 10%. The Group's
sufficient capifal will enable it fo grow and develop also in
future years. The Group's capital adequacy on a consolidated
basis achieved 13.81% at the end of the year.

Financial markets

In 2015, capital markets reporfed increased volatility and
significant rises and declines in monitored shares. Such
sifuation attracted especially shorterterm invesfors and
projected in an increase in net profit from fees for the
brokerage of securities tfrades by almost 80%. The Bank's
fees exceeded a gross amount of CZK 51 million. On the
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whole, after the inclusion of other client activities, debif
inferest, intferest on repo fransactions, efc. the Bank managed
fo achieve net income over CZK 410 million, which is an
increase by more than 10% compared with 2014.

The Czech National Bank confinues ifs inferventions that
have exceeded CZK 200 billion in the total volume. A strong
defence of the CZK exchange rate had an adverse impact
on an increase in the Bank's expenses for securing balance
assets denominated in EUR. Sfrong pressures on a decrease
in the vyield curve of freasury bonds (CZGB) had a positive
influence on the growth in profit from those securities which
achieved almast CZK 240 million, both in the form of income
from sale and by revaluation against the current market value
including accrued inferest.

The beginning of 2015 was a period of large sales for
Russian assets: a massive oufflow of capital and the
permanent sale of Russian assefs, a fall of the Russian
rouble fo its histarical minimum (RUB 80/USD), a decrease
in shares to their minimum value of the year 2009 and
similarly extended risk premiums with bonds. In mid-2015,
the situation became slightly sfabilized and the Russian
cenfral bank could gradually decrease interest rates from
17.0% to 11.0% together with a decrease in risk premiums for
Russian assefts, i.e. a decrease in yield from Eurobond issues.
A decrease in risk premiums resulted in a dramatic growth of
prices of Eurobonds of Russian companies and significantly
contributed by about CZK 130 million to profit of the credit
part of the Bank's business portfalio.

Products

In 2015, the Bank continued to develop products focussed
on investments. It exftended ifs offer by a new product
combining a term deposit and an investment in a mutual fund
called "J&T Combi" in the Czech Republic and the "Investment
deposit" in Slovakia.

The J&T Money CZK open-end mutfual fund was very
successful in 2015 and won the Fincentrum & Forbes

13



CLIENT DEPOSITS AND LOANS — THE BANK
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Investment of the Year 2015 confest in the Mixed Funds
category for the second fime. This award confirms the long-
term stability and quality of investment products which the
Bank has been offering fo its clients.

As well as in previous years, the Bank was a successful
manager of bond issues, for example CPl three-year Euro
bonds, a fouryear issue of JOJ Media House bonds or
the Czech crown and Euro issue of three-year bonds of
Energeticky a pramyslovy holding. The fotal volume of bonds
issued in 2015 amounted to almost CZK 22 billion.

Information technologies

Significant changes and improvements were made in the field
of information systems in 2015, After the profound impact and
economic analysis, the Bank reviewed its original infenfion
to change the banking systfem and decided fo update the
existing solufion with an aim fo respond mare flexibly fo the
requirements of the market and regulators, increase quality of
program equipment and simplify internal processes.

In 2016, the first stage of the building of a new data warehouse
focussed on business reporting was closed. In the next stage,
the Bank infends to enlarge it by dafa resources necessary
for the management reporting and other additional growing
requirements for regulatory reports.

In 2015, Infernet banking underwent a principal change. The
client application newly offers investment services enabling
clients fo allocate their assefs to securities through their
current account.

The infrastructure of dafa centres utilized by the Bank was
significantly enhanced by a new generation daftabase systfem.
Through the Group's confractual partner the capacity of data
storage media was enlarged and computing performance of
the server farm was also increased.

The IT security was enhanced by security moniforing;
possibilities of a cenfral tool for the security supervision
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and the process of security vulnerability management were
extended.

Human resources

To maintain the high sfandard of services fo clients, the
development in the field of human resources is a necessity
for the Bank. We are well aware of the fact that motivated
and well-educated employees are a crucial corporafe value.
In 2015, an offer of employee benefits within the Magnus Club
was exfended, the Bank invested in the development of the
infernal learning system focussed in particular on financial
thinking and soft skills.

The Bank is open to young falenfs; it supporfs university
students, is involved in Career Days projects and the GMC
student contest whose general parfner it has become. For
the fourth consecufive year, it has been organizing the
Trainee programme for university sfudents and graduates
which enjoys an ever-growing inferest.

At the end of the year, the Prague Head Office had 317
employees, and its Slovakia branch employed 136 people.
The men versus women rafio is 52% fo 48% in the Czech
Republic and 41% to 59% in our Slovak branch.

Support of the arts and sports

A rich society is a prerequisite for our long-ferm existence.
We believe in the principal significance of elites for the
future development and in their posifive influence on every
individual. Therefore, we search projects and personalities
that can improve our future.

In 2015, we continued to focus on fine arts. We are successfully
building a unigue platform in support of art, Magnus Artf, which
was creafed by a sensitive combination of craff and assefs.
We are the general partner of the Rudolfinum Gallery, the
Gallery of Fine Arfs in Ostrava and the Slovak National Gallery.
We provide our support fo young artists; we are the partner of
the Jindrich Chalupecky Award and the Oskar Cepan Award.
Acfivities in that area have resulfed in the creatfion of our
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own art collection comprised by works of arf of winners of
the Jindfich Chalupecky Award for the entire period of its
existence. We have supported the issue of the book by Arfist
Vladimir 518 entitled "Mania" and bringing interviews with
tfwenty confemparary Czech artists of several generations.

Last year, we also prepared the third unigue overview of arfs,
the J&T Banka Art Index, which aftfempts fo describe without
prejudice the development af the confemporary art scene.
We have become a private partner of Josef Spagek, the
youngest concert master in the histary of the Czech
Philharmonic. Our cooperation with the Czech Philharmonic
also included the Bank's investment in the violoncello made
by the famous manufacturer, Stefan Scarampella, in 1911,
After the purchase, the instrument was lent to the Czech
Philharmonic. The violoncello not only increases its value but
also "improves the sound” of the Czech most famous musical
orchestra.

Investments in tennis did not only support the sport but they
also promoted success of the Czech Republic and Slovakia.
For the second time, the Bank has become the general
partner of the WTA J&T Banka Prague Open tournament. The
J&T Group was also the partner of the Czech tfennis men
and women representatfion and the Nafional Tennis Cenfre
in Bratislava.

As early as in 2014, tfogether with the ESC Olomouc team we
succeeded in refurning international races in tThe haorse show
jumping of the CS13* W category to the Czech Republic. We
confinued our suppart also in 2015,

Outlooks for 2016

In 2016, the Bank wants to act as an investment expert
and exfend its offer of investment products. Our long-term
objective is fo increase a share of investment in managed
client assets. In this connection the Bank will infensively
develop infernal learning, certification of employees, process
aufomation and improvement of front-end and basic banking
system functionalities and applications.

Presentation part | Report of the Board of Directors

Targets set for the next period are demanding but realizable.
We believe the year 20168 as well as fufure years will be
as successful as the last year and together with excellent
financial results we will contfinue to satisfy our clients' needs
and wishes.

Declaration

To the best of our knowledge, this annual report presents
a frue and fair view of business activities, financial position
and the results of operations of the Bank and the Group in
2015 and of the ouflook of the fufure development of the
financial position, business activities and results of their
operations.

A A

Patrik Tkac
Chairman of the Board of Directors

Stépan Ager
Member of the Board of Directors
and Chief executive officer, J&T Banka, a. s.
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Management
of the Bank

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Patrik Tkac
Board chairman

Stépan Aser
Board member

Igor Kovac
Board member

Andrej Zatko

Board member (he resigned at 11 August 2015
PROCURATION

Vlastimil Nesetfil

Procuration

SUPERVISORY BOARD

Jozef Tkaé
Supervisory Board chairman

Ivan Jakabovic
Supervisory Board member

Dusan Palcr
Supervisory Board member

Jozef Sepetka
Supervisory Board member

Jozef Spisiak
Supervisory Board member

Jozef Simovéik
Supervisory Board member (resigned at 11 August 2015)
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board of Directors is the Bank's statutory body which
manages the Bank's business activities and acts in its name
in a manner laid down in the Articles of Association and
the Commercial Regisfer. The Board of Direcfors decides all
matters of the Bank unless they fall within the powers of the
general meeting or the Supervisory Board under the law or the
Arficles of Assaciation or resolutions of the general meeting.

The Board of Directors is elected by the Supervisory Board.
The Czech National Bank reviews professional skills, credibility
and experience of all members of the Board. The members of
the Board elect its chairman. The general meeting decides
on the remuneration of the members of the Bank's Board of
Directors. Individual members of the Board are elected for five
years (their re-election is possible).

The Board of Directors is responsible for the establishment of
a comprehensive and appropriate infernal governance sysftem
and for ensuring the setting of the Bank's overall strategy, the
rules which clearly define ethical and professional principles
and expected models of behaviour of employees and far the
deferminatfion of human resources management standards.
The Board of Directors is also responsible for ensuring the
determination, observance and application of requirements
for credibility, knowledge and experience of persons through
which it ensures the performance of its activities and for the
consistent application of proper management, administrative,
accounting and other procedures by the Bank.

The Bank's Board of Directors approves andregularly assesses
primarily the Bank's overall strategy, organizational sfructure,
the risk management strategy including risks arising from
the macroeconamic environment in which the Bank operates
even depending on the economic cycle including principles
of assuming, identifying, measuring, moniforing, reporting
and limiting the occurrence or impacts of risks fo which
the Bank can be exposed. It approves the stfrategy related
fo capifal, strategy of the information and communication
systfem development, principles of the intermnal confrol
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sysfem, including principles preventing any occurrence of a
possible conflict of inferests. It also approves compliance and
infernal audit, security principles including security principles
for information and communication systems, a set of limifs
including the fotal acceptable risk rate and patential infernally
defermined capital, liquidity and other prudential provisions or
premiums which the Bank uses fo mitigate risks within the
risk rate acceptable for it.

The Bank's Board of Directors also approved new products,
activities, systems and other matters being of significant
importance for the Bank or having other potential substanfial
impact on it (the Board of Directors can delegate this power
o a specialized committee determined by it). It approves the
strategic (four-year) and periodical (annual) internal audit plan.

At 31 December 2015 the Bank's Board of Directors had 3
members;

Patrik Tkac
Chairman of the Board

Appointed fo the Board of Directors on: 3 June 1998
Term of office to: 22 July 2018

He graduated from the Faculty of National Economy of the
University of Economics in Bratislava. In 1984, he obfained
a broker's licence from the Slovak Ministry of Finance and
in the same year he co-founded J&T Securifies, s.r.o., an
investment firm. He is a leading representative of the J&T
Group and chairman of the Board of Directors of J&GT BANKA,
a.s. where he is in charge of the Financial Markets Division
and the Czech Family Office Division.

In addition, in the past five years he is or was involved in the
following companies:

J&T FINANCE GROUP SE, ID: 275682502, Prague 8, Pobrezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Board of Directors — vice-
chairman

Nadacni fond JGT, ID: 27162624, Prague 9, Prosecka 857/64,
postcode 190 00, Managing Board — member

ATLANTIK financni trhy, as, 1D: 26218062, Prague 8,
Pobtezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board —
chairman

J&T IB and Capifal Markets, a.s., 1D: 24766259, Prague 8,
Pobtezni297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board—member

CZECHNEWS CENTER a.s,, ID: 2346826, Prague 7, Komunard(
1684/42, postcode 170 00, Supervisory Board — chairman

VABA d.d. banka Varazdin, IB: 6755389, Aleja kralja Zvonimira 1,
42000 Varazdin, Croatia, Supervisory Board — member

J&T Family Office, a.s., IB: 3667529, Prague 1 Mala Strana,
Malostranské nabrezi 563/3, postcode 118 00
Supervisory Board — member

ART FOND - Stredoeurtpsky fond sti¢asného umenia, a. s., 1D:
47979160, Bratislava, Dvorakovo nabrezie 8, postcode 811 02,
Board of Directors — chairman

Nadace Sirius, 10 28418808, Prague 1 Thunovska 12,
postcode 118 00, Founder

J&T INVESTICNI SPOLECNOST, a.s, ID: 47672684, Prague
8, Pobfezni 14/297, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board —
chairman (deleted on 27 Becember 2011)

J&T FINANCE GROUP, a.s., organizational unit, ID: 28038308,
Prague 8, Pobiezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Board of
Directors — vice-chairman (deleted on 7 August 2014)

Stépan Aser
Board member, Chief Executive Officer

Appointed o the Board of Directors on: 30 May 2006
Term of office to: 2 June 2016



He graduated from the School of Business and Public
Management at George Washington University in Washingtan,
in finance and financial markefts. He holds an MBA atf the
Rochester Institute of Technology. He has been waorking in
finances in the Czech Republic since 1997, first as an analyst,
a portfolio manager in Credit Suisse Asset management. In
1999 - 2002, he was a member of the Board of Directors
of Commerz Asset Management responsible for the portfolio
management and sales. In Cesk& spotitelna he focussed on
institfutional clienfs in the asset management. Since 2003,
he has been working in J&T BANKA, a.s. Stépan ASer is
responsible for frade, operations in the Czech Republic, the
Information Systems Division, the Administrative Division,
the Security Department and the Process and Project
Management Department.

In addition, in the past five years he is or was involved in the
following companies:

J&T INVESTICNI SPOLECNOST, as., ID: 47672684, Prague 8,
Pobrezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — member

ATLANTIK financéni trhy, a.s., 1D: 26218062, Prague 8, Pobrezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Board of Directors — chairman

J&T 1B and Capital Markets, a.s., 1D: 24766259, Prague 8,
Pobrezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — chairman

J&T Bank, a.0, IB: 1027739121651, Moscow, Kadshevskaya,
Russian Federation, Supervisory Board — member

Bea DOevelopment, a.s, 10: 2618106, Prague 8, Pobrezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — chairman
(deleted on 18 January 2012)

Igor Kovac
Board member

Appointed o the Board of Directors on: 16 February 2011
Term of office fo: 16 February 2021
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In 1998, he graduated from the Faculty of National Economy
of the University of Economics in Bratislava. He has spent his
entire professional career in finance. Since 2000, he has been
working in the banking industry. He joined Hypovereinsbank
Slovakia where he worked as a Seniar Controller. In 2002 —
2008, he waorked in Volksbank Slovakia as the manager of
the Economic Department. Since 2008, he has been working
in J&T BANKA, a.s. Igor Kavac is responsible for the Finance
Division and the Risk Management Division.

In addition, in the past five years he is or was involved in the
following companies:

J&T 1B and Capital Marketfs, a.s., ID: 24766259, Prague 8,
Pobrezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — member

JET INVESTICNI SPOLECNOST, a.s., ID: 47672684, Prague 8,
Pobtezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board —
member

J&T SERVICES CR, as., ID: 28188306, Prague 8, Pobrezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — member

VABA d.d. banka Varazdin, ID: 6755389, Aleja kralja Zvonimira 1,
42000 Varazdin, Croatia, Supervisory Board — member

J&T Bank, a.0, ID: 1027739121661, Moscow, Kadshevskaya,
Russian Federation, Supervisory Board — chairman

SUPERVISORY BOARD

The Supervisory Board is the Bank's control body. Its activity
is regulated by legal regulations and the Bank's Articles of
Association. The Supervisory Board supervises the activity of
the Board of Directors and the implementation of the Bank's
business activity. The members of the Supervisory Board
are elected and removed by the general meeting (resp. the
sole shareholder). According to the Articles of Association the
Supervisory Board has 6 members. At 31 December 2015, it
had five members. The members of the Supervisory Board
are elected for a five-year ferm.
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Jozef Tkac
Chairman of the Supervisory Board [nat an employee of the
Bank]

Appointed fo the Supervisory Board on: 3 June 1998
Term of office to: 15 October 2018

After he graduated from the University of Economics, he
joined the Main Institute of the State Bank of Czechoslovakia
("SBCS") in Bratislava. In 1988, the Slovak Government and the
SBCS autharized him fo prepare activities of an investment
bank in Slovakia. In 1980, he became the leading director of
the Main Institute for the Slovak Republic in Investicni banka,
s.p.0., Praha and after Investi¢ni banka Praha was privatized
and divided, he became president of Investicna a rozvojova
banka, a.s. in Bratislava. After a change in the bank's owners
and the end of the privatization of Investicna a rozvojova
banka, a.s. he became president of the J&T Group and
chairman of the Board of Directors of J&T FINANCE GROUP.

In addition, in the past five years he is or was involved in the
following companies:

J&T FINANCE GROUP SE, ID: 275682502, Prague 8, Pobfezni
29714, postcode 186 00, Board of Directors — chairman

Geodezie Brno, a.s. in liquidation, 1D: 4634538086, Brno, Bornych
47, postcode 602 00, Supervisory Board — chairman

J&T Investment Pool - | - SKK, a.s,, ID: 356888016, Bratislava,
Lamacska cesta 3, postcode 841 04, Board of Direcfors —
vice-chairman

J & T Investment Pool - |- CZK, a. s, 10: 26714493, Prague 8,
Pobtezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Board of Directors — vice-
chairman (delefed on 4 November 2014)

ATLANTIK finaneéni trhy, a.s., 1D: 26218062, Prague 8, Pobrezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — member

Posfova banka, as, IB: 31340890, Bratislava, Dvorakovo
nabrezie 4, postcode 811 02, Supervisary Board — member

TECHNO PLUS, a.s., ID: 31385413, Bratislava, Lamatska cesta
3, postcode 84104, Board of Directors — member (deleted on
1 January 2014]

J&T FINANCE GROUP, a.s., organizational unit, ID: 28038308,
Prague 8, Pobfezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Board of
Directors — chairman (deleted on 7 August 2014)

J&T SERVICES CR, as, ID: 28168305, Prague 8, Pobrezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — chairman

Equity Holding, a.s., ID; 10006005, Prague 8, Pobiezni 297/14,
postfcode 186 00, Board of Birectars — chairman

Ivan Jakabovi¢
Supervisory Board member [not an employee of the Bank]

Appointed o the Supervisory Board on: 3 June 18998
Term of office to: 156 October 2018

He graduated from the Faculty of Economic Informatics of the
University of Economics in Bratislava. He obtained a broker's
licence from the Slovak Ministry of Finance. In 1994, he co-
founded J&T Securities, s.r.o., an investment firm.

In addition, in the past five years he is or was involved in the
following companies:

J&T FINANCE GROUP SE, ID: 275692502, Prague 8, Pobfezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Board of Directors — vice-chairman

Equity Holding, a.s., ID: 10005006, Prague 8, Pobfezni 297/14,
postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — member (deleted on
23 July 2014)

KOLIBA REAL, s. r. 0, ID: 35725745, Bratislava, Lamatska
cesta 3, postcode 841 05, Board of Birectars — chairman



J & T Investment Pool - |- CZK, a.s,, 1D; 267144893, Prague 8,
Pobiezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Board of Directors — member

J&T Investment Pool - | - SKK| a.s,, 10: 36888016, Bratislava,
Lamacska cesta 3, postcode 84104, Board of Birectors —chairman

Prvni zpravodajska a.s., ID: 27204080, Prague 8, Pobrezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — member
(deleted on 29 February 2016)

Nadacni fond JGT, ID: 27162624, Prague 9, Prosecka 851/64,
pastcode 190 00, Managing Board — member

Energetficky a primyslovy holding, a.s., ID: 28366250, Brno,
Prikop 843/4, postcode 602 00, Supervisory Board — chairman

EP Energy, a.s., 10: 29269428, Brno, Prikop 843/4, postcode
602 00, Supervisory Board — chairman

EP Industries, a.s., ID: 292947486, Brno, Prkop 843/4, postcode
602 00, Supervisory Board — member

J&T FINANCE GROUP, a.s., organizational unif, ID: 29038308,
Prague 8, Pabtezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, vice-chairman of
the Board of Directors, (deleted on 7 August 2014]

Honor Invest, a.s., ID: 27146665, Prague 8, Pobiezni 297/14,
postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — chairman (deleted on
3 February 2010]

TECHNO PLUS, as., ID: 31 385 419, Bratislava, Lamatska
cesta 3, postcode 841 04, Board of Directors — member
(deleted on 1 January 2014)

ID: 36612847, Humenné,
Nemacnitna 7, postcode 066 01, Supervisory Board - member
(deleted on 28 August 2012]

Spolocneé  zdravofnictvo, a.s.,

J&T Securifies, sro, I0; 31366431, Bratislava, Dvorakovo
nabreZie 8, postcode 811 02, member
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Dusan Palcr

Supervisory Board member [not an employee of the Bank]
Appointed o the Supervisory Board on: 15 June 2004
Term of office fo: 15 October 2018

He graduated from the Faculty of Business and Economics
of Mendel University in Brno. From 1996 to 1998, he worked
in banking supervision in the Czech National Bank. He joined
the J&T Group in 1998. He was a member of the Board of
Directors of J&T BANKA, a.s. in charge of the Finance and the
Banking Operatfions Deparfment. Since 2003, he has been a
member of the Board of Directors of JGT FINANCE GROUP SE
(formerly JST FINANCE, a.s.).

In addition, in the past five years he is or was involved in the
following companies:

J&T FINANCE GROUP SE, ID: 27692502, Prague 8, Pobrezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Board of Directors — vice-chairman

AC Sparta Prague fotbal, a.s., 10: 46356801, Prague 7, Tt. Milady
Haorakové 1066/38, 170 00, Supervisory Board — chairman

AERD GROUP, a.s., ID: 27570797, Prague 8, Pobfezni 297/14,
postfcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — member

MERIDIANSPASTVANICE, a.s.,1D: 26921436, Prague 8, Pabrezni
620/3, postcode 186 00, Board of Directors — chairman

Health Care Financing, a.s., ID: 28427380, Prague 8, Pobrezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Board of Directors — member

Prvni zpravodajska, a.s., I0: 27204080, Prague 8, Pobrezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — chairman

PBl, a.s, ID: 3633527, Prague 8, Pabiezni 297/14, postcode
186 00, Supervisory Board — member

J&T Sport Team CR, sro., ID: 24215183, Prague 8, Pobreznf
297/14, postcode 186 00, Executive officer

23



24

Presentation part | Management of the Bank

J & TREAL ESTATE CZ, a.s., IB: 28255534, Prague 8, Pobrezni
297/14, postcode 186 00, Board of Directors — member
(deleted on 17 January 2011)

J&T FINANCE GROUP, a.s., organizational unif, ID: 29038308,
Prague 8, Pobfezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Board of
Directors — vice-chairman (deleted on 7 August 2014)

. Cesky Lawn - Tennis Klub Prague, ID: 45243077, Prague
7 HoleSovice, Ostrov Stvanice t.ev. 38, postcode 170 0O,
member of the executive committee

Nadacni fond JGT, ID: 27182524, Prague 9, Prosecka 851/64,
posfcode 190 00, Managing Board — member

Honor Invest, a.s, ID: 27146685, Prague 8, Pobiezni 297/14,
paostcode 186 00, Supervisory Board — member (deleted on 3
February 2010)

Waldstejn Catering Prague sro., 1D 24121517, Prague 1,
Véclavské namésti 839/7, postcode 110 00, member

Jozef Sepetka
Supervisory Board member

Appointed fo the Supervisory Board on: 9 Sepfember 2008
Term of office to: 15 October 2018

He graduated from the Faculty of Law of Charles University.
Since 1990, he has held various positions in stafe
administration — for example in 1992 he worked at the Ministry
of Foreign Affairs of the Czech Republic. In 1998, he joined
J&T BANKA, a.s. as a consultant.

In addition, in the past five years he is or was involved in the
following companies:

Corinth s.r.o., ID: 24120758, Prague B, Makovského 1394/8a,
postcode 163 00, member

Spoletenstvi pro ddm Nameésti Interbrigady 960/2, Prague
6, ID: 29003920, Prague B, Namésti Interbrigady 960/2,
postcode 180 00, Member of the committee [(deleted on
12 June 2014)

ALESTA BUSINESS sro., ID: 85138992, Prague 6, Zikova
708/5, 180 00, member

Spolecenstvi V Podbabe 2738, Prague 6, I0: 1507672,
Prague B, V Podbabé 2738/12, postcode 160 00, Member of
the committee

Spolecenstvi vlastnikdl v domé Zikova 708, ID: 274269565,
Prague B, Zikova 708/, postcode 160 00, Vice-chairman of
the committee

KONTRAFILM sro, ID: 24285846, Prague B, V Podbabe
2738/12, postcode 160 00, member

Jozef Spisiak
Supervisory Board member - elected by employees

Appointed o the Supervisory Board on 9 December 2013
Term of office ta: 8 December 2018

He graduated from the Faculty of Economics of the Military
Academy and the Faculty of Law of Comenius University
in Brafislava. He has spent his enfire professional career in
finance; he waorked in the Czech Natfional Bank untfil 1998.
Until 2012, he was a member of the Board of Direcfors of J
& T BANKA, a.s.

In addition, in the past five years he is or was involved in the
following companies:

Investment Finance Group, a.s., |0 44860701, Prague 8,
Pobtezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Procuration (deleted on b
January 201)



Declaration

The members of the board of directors and supervisory
board neither have been convicted of a fraudulent offence
nor disqualified by a court from actfing as a member of the
administrative, management or supervisory body of another
issuer or from acting in the management or conduct of the
affairs of another issuer. The Bank's management members
are notf, and have not been the subject of any official public
incrimination or sanction by statutory or regulatory authaorities.
In the past five years, the Bank's management members
have not been involved in any bankruptcy, receivership or
liguidation of anather company.
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Committees
of the Bank

Executive Committee

The Executive Committee (the "EC") has been established by
the Bank's Board of Directors fo be the Board of Director's
advisory body. Its main objective and purpose is to support the
operational management of the Bank's acftivities at a collective
body level. The EC's decisions are binding on all employees
of the Bank. The EC especially prescribes procedures for
providing banking services, sets rules for the Bank's infernal
operations, approves new products, procedures and the
Bank's activities, discusses and approves changes in the
Bank's price lists, business terms and condifions, discusses
the Bank's overall strategy or its partial strategies and submits
them to the Bank's Board of Directors for approval. The EC
also discusses and approves the Bank's organizational and
operational projects, discusses changes in competences and
rights fo sign for the Bank and submifts them fo the Board
of Directors for appraval. It is responsible for implementing
approved strategies, principles and objectives and for
elaborating procedures for their fulfilment and the Bank's
everyday management. [t monifors the functionality and
effectiveness of the organizational sfrucfure including the
separatfion of inconsistent functions and the prevention of
a potfential conflict of interests from occurring and suggests
respective changes in the Bank's organizational structure fo
the Bank's Board of Directfors. It cooperates with the Board
of Direcfors in ensuring the proper and efficient operation
of the governance system, it suggests remedial measures
related fo identified shorfcomings fo the Board of Directars
and ensures the implementation of measures faken by the
Bank's Board of Directors. It decides on the implementation of
legislative changes and a way of their including fo the Bank's
activity. The EC has sufficient personnel and compefences
to fulfil such tasks. The EC's members are appointed and
removed by the Bank's Board of Directors.

The Executive Commiffee has 68 members and as at 31

December 2015 it had the following members:

— Neseffil Vlastimil, chairman of the EC, executive director

— Macaldkova Anna, member EC, director and the head of
the organizational unit of J&T Banka in Slovakia

25



28

Presentation part | Committees of the Bank

— Drahotfsky Daniel, member of the EC, direcfor of the
Financial Markets Division

— Kesnerova Maria, member of the EC, director of the
Financial Division

— Klimitek Tomas, member of the EC, manager of the Credit
Risk Management Department

— Krenkové Alena, member of the EC (without the voting
right), manager of the Internal Audit and Control Department

Asset and Liability Committee

The Asset and Liability Committee [('ALCO"] has been
esfablished by the Bank's Board of Directors. ALCO's main
objective and purpose is to facilitate the Bank's asset and
liability management process in terms of liquidity, interest
rates, the Bank's profitability and capital adequacy. ALCO
especially monitors liquidity, the Bank's inferest and FX risks,
observance of infernal and external limits in those areas,
analyses possible scenarios of the future development,
monitors the observance of internal and regulatory capitfal
adequacy limits at an individual and consolidated level, resp.
prudential consolidation. ALCO also evaluafes an impact
of legislative changes on the Bank's assets and liabilities,
responds fo the situation in financial markets, analyses
prices and products offered by compefifive banks and their
influence on the Bank's frades and prices. It monitors maturity
of significant asset and liability fransactions, evaluates
an impact of expected new trades on the risk, limifs and
profitability, it decides on interest rates of deposit and credit
products, measures taken in the market risk management,
prudential business activities and in trades, it approves
emergency plans in case of crisis of liquidity, capiftal and
profitability.

ALCO also has atf least 3 members appointed and remaoved by

the Bank's Board of Directors. As at 31 December 2015, ALCO

had the following members:

— Kovac Igor, chairman of ALCO, Board member

— Tkac Pafrik, member of ALCO, chairman of the Board of
Directors

- Ager Stépan, member of ALCO, Board member

— Jakabovi¢ Ivan, member ALCO, partner of J&T Finance
Group SE

— Macalakova Anna, member of ALCO, direcfor and head of
the organizational unit J&T Banka in Slovakia

Investment Committee

The Investment Committee (the "IC") has been established
by the Bank's Board of Directors as an advisory body of
the Board of Directfors. Its main objective and purpose is to
support investments assigned in the business portfolio, the
Bank's currency and commodity positions. The IC especially
discusses and approves limits or other parametfers for the
business portfolio frades, the Bank's currency and commadity
positions to an extent specified by the Bank's internal rules
governing limits for making the Bank's fransactions. The IC
prescribes a set of liquidity risk figures and approves the
Bank's emergency liquidity plan. It regularly evaluates the
observance of set limits.

The IC always has atf least 3 members appointed and removed

by the Bank's Board of Directors. As at 31 December 2015, the

IC had following members:

— Drahotfsky Daniel, chairman of the IC, director of the
Financial Markets Division

— Vodicka Petfr, member of the IC, manager of the Financial
Markets Department

— Kovac Igor, member of the IC, Board member

— Misek Radoslav, member of the IC, manager of the Risk
Management Department

Information Systems Committee

The Information Systems Committee (the "ISC") has been
gstablished by the Bank's Board of Directors. The ISC's
main objective and purpose is fo manage the development
of banking information systems by the Bank. The ISC sefs
out the development sfrategy of information sysfems and
information technology ('IS/T"), discusses and specifies
priorities of individual IS/IT projects and other changes in
the IS/IT area in the context of business plans, regulatory
requirements and the Bank's stfrategic development. The



ISC discusses and approves IS/IT projects including their
changes, results of tenders in the IS/AT area, evaluates
cooperation with IS/IT suppliers.

The ISC has af least 3 members appointed and remaved by

the Bank's Board of Directors. As at 31 December 2015, the

ISC had the following members:

— Martinek Miloslav, chairman of the ISC, director of the
Information Systems Division

— Neseffil Vlastimil, member of the ISC, execufive director

— Macaldkova Anna, member of the ISC, directfor and head
of the organizational unit J&T Banka in Slovakia

— Drahotsky Daniel, member of the ISC, director of the
Financial Markets Division

— KesSnerova Maria, member of the ISC, director of the
Finance Division

Business Continuity Committee

The Business Continuity Committee (the "BCC') has been
estfablished by the Bank's Board of Directors. The BCC's main
objective and purpose is to organize and coordinate activities
in the Bank in case of any emergency.

The BCC has at least 3 members appoinfed and removed by

the Bank's Board of Directors. As at 31 December 2075, the

BCC had the following members:

— Slobodnik Michal, chairman of the BCC, manager of the
Security Department

— Nesefttil Vlastimil, member of the BCC and vice-chairman
of the BCC, executive director

— Martinek Miloslav, member of the BCC, director of the
Information Systems Division

— Tkactova Alena, member of the BCC, direcfor of the Trade
CR Division

— Macaldkovd Anna, member of the BCC, director and head
of the organizational unit J&T Banka in Slovakia

— Slezka Milan, member of the BCC, directar of the Operation
CR Division

— Vrskova Eva, member of the BCC, manager of the Front
Office Department (organizational unit of JGT Banka SR)
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— Malek Petr, member of the BCC, manager of the Marketing
Department

Security Committee

The Security Committee (the "SC"] has been established by
the Bank's Board of Directors. The SC's main objective and
purpose is fo manage security risks. The SC is responsible for
working out and submifting proposals for the risk mitigation
to an acceptable level, for the check and evaluation of the
Bank's security risks and supervision over the implementation
of approved proposals for the elimination of security risks by
the Bank's Board of Directors.

The SC has af least 3 members appoinfed and removed by

the Bank's Board of Directors. As at 31 December 20156 the

SC had the following members:

— Neseffil Vlastimil, chairman of the SC, executive director

— Slobodnik Michal, member of the SC, manager of the
Security Department

— Krejci Oldrich, member of the SC, security consultant

— Skala Zbynek, member of the SC, manager of the IS/IT
Governance Department

Audit Committee

According to the decision of the sole shareholder, on 22
December 2008 Jozef Tkac, lvan Jakabovic and Dusan Palcr
were appointed as members of the Bank's Audit Committee.
Acfivities of the Audit Commiffee are governed by valid legal
regulations and the Bank's Articles of Association.
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Organizational
structure

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE BANK

Office of the Chairman
of the Board of Directors

UNIT CZECH REPUBLIC / EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

UNIT SLOVAK REPUBLIC / HEAD OF THE BRANCH

DIVISION
SALES CR

DIVISION
OPERATION CR

DIVISION
SALES SR

DIVISION
OPERATION CR

Unit CR Management

Sales Support

Banking Operations
and International

Unit SR Management

Private Banking

The High Tatras

Department Section Banking Department CR Department Department SR Exposition
Marketing Private Banking Banking Operations Premium Banking The Kosice
Department CR Department CR Section Section Exposition
Private Banking Infernational Banking Komfort Process and Product
Section 1 Section Department SR Management Section SR
. . Payment Cards, Infernef Marketing )
gg\é?igen%amkmg Banking and Back Office and Comunication E';Jn:r?:;ﬁ SR
Clear Deal Section Department SR p
Private Banking Credit and Loans Business Call Centrum Back Office
Section 3 Department CR Department SR Department SR

Private Banking
Section 4

Financial Markets Back
Office Department CR

Private Banking
Section b

Back Office
Section

Russian Desk
Section

Branch
Brno

Branch
Ostrava

Client Center
Department CR

External Sale
Department CR

External Sale Front
Office Section

External Sale
Support Section

Back Office Comfort
Section

Back Office PrB and PB
Section

Payment Cards
and Infernet Banking
Section

Comfort Line
Section

Credit and Loans
Department SR

Financial Markets
Back Office
Department SR




UNIT SHARED SERVICES
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DIVISION FINANCIAL DIVISION DIVISION DIVISION INFORMATION  DIVISION
MARKETS FINANCE RISK MANAGEMENT SYSTEMS ADMINISTRATION
. Infrastructure Internal Audit
Investment . Treasury Risk Management and Support Systems Legal and Inspection
Center Section Department Department Department CR
Department Department
Financial Markets Ligquidity Management Credit Risk Database Legal Process and Project
) Management . Management
Department CR Section Section Department SR
Department Department
Financial Markets Financial Analysis Supporfing Compliance and AML Safety
Department SR Department Applications Section Department Department
ag?_:: z?n::;lm Economy Customer and Internal Magnus
g Department CR Interfaces Department Department
Department
Research Accounting ePortal
Department Section Section
New Issues Reportfing Reporting Support
Department Section Department
Economy Financial Reporting

Department SR

Accounting
Section

Reporting
Section

Section

Operational Reporting
Section

Banking Applications
Department

Bank and Information
Sysftem Section

Financial and Securities
Systems Section

1S/IT Govemance
Department
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Report
of the Supervisory
Board

In 20715, the Supervisory Board of JGT BANKA, a.s. had six
members first, since 11 August 2075 it had had five members.
The Supervisory Board performed ifs activity in compliance
with applicable law, in particular the Business Corporations
Act, the Act on Banks and the Bank's Articles of Association.

In 2015, the Supervisory Board held fofal four sessions
at which it discussed especially regular reports on the
Bank's activity and ifs financial situation submitted by the
Bank's Board of Directors and all other matters arising from
respective legal regulations.

The Supervisory Board has reviewed financial statements as
of 31 December 2016 audited by the Bank's external auditor,
KPMG Ceska republika Audit, s.r.o. According fo the audifor's
report issued on 31 March 2016, the financial statements
present, in all material respects, a frue and fair view of the
assets and ligbilities of JGT BANKA, a.s. as of 31 December
2015 and expenses, income and the results of its operations
and cash flows for the year 20156 in accordance with the
International Financial Reporting Standards [(IFRS') as
adopted by the European Union.

The Supervisory Board stfates that the Bank's business
activities were performed in compliance with applicable law
and the Bank's Articles of Associatfion. The Supervisory Board
has reviewed the audited report on relations between related
parfies in 2015 worked out by the Board of Directors. The
Supervisory Board confirms that it has no objections to the
report.

The Supervisary Board agrees with the results of the annual
financial statements for 2015 and with the sefflement of
the profit/loss, i.e. the distribution of profit of JGT BANKA,
a.s. for 2016 as proposed by the Bank's Board of Directors
and has recommended that the sole shareholder exercising
the powers of the general meeting approves the financial
statements.

Prague, 31 March 2016
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Correspondent

banks
Ceskoslovenska obchodni banka, a.s. Postova banka, a.s.
Prague, Czech Republic Bratislava, Slovak Republic
SWIFT: CEKQ CZ PP SWIFT: POBN SK BA
Currency: CZK, EUR, USD, GBP, CAD, HUF, HRK, CHF, PLN, TRY, Currency: EUR
RON, AUD, RUB
UniCredit Bank Czech Republic and Slovakia, a.s.
ING Belgium SA/NV Prague, Czech Republic
Brussels, Belgium SWIFT: BACX CZ PP
SWIFT: BBRU BE BB Currency: CZK, EUR, USD, HRK

Currency: EUR
Vaba banka d.d. Varazdin

Deutsche Bank Trust Company Americas Varazdin, Croatia
New York, USA SWIFT: VBVZ HR 22
SWIFT: BKTR US 33 Currency: HRK

Currency: USD
Citibank Europe plc, organizational unit

ING Bank N.V. Prague, Czech Republic
Prague, Czech Republic SWIFT: CITI CZ PX
SWIFT: INGB CZ PP Currency: MXN, ZAR

Currency: CZK, EUR, USD, GBPR, CAD, HUF, CHF, PLN, TRY, RON,
AUD, RUB, SEK, NOK

J&T Bank, a.o.

Moscow, Russian Federation
SWIFT: TRRY RU MM
Currency: RUB
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Consolidated statement
of financial position
as at 31 December 2015

Financial Part | Consolidated Financial Statements

in MCZK Note 2015 2014
ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 5} 19,724 13,339
Due from financial institutions 7 34,379 7164
Positive fair value of derivatives 8 160 159
Loans and advances to cusfomers " 74,688 71170
Financial assetfs at fair value through profit or loss 9a 2,739 9,279
Financial assets available for sale 9b 16,442 22113
Financial assefs held fo maturity 9c 609 1,329
Disposal groups held for sale 18 4,962 130
Investment in equity accounted investees 49 356 7150
Current tax assef 63 2
Deferred tax asset 26 99 82
Investment property 13 363 425
Property, plant and equipment 14 337 277
Intangible assets 15 157 188
Goodwill 15 30 95
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 17 1,084 898
Total Assets 154,851 133,801
in MCZK Note 2015 2014
LIABILITIES

Depasits and loans from banks 19 4,269 4,616
Deposits from customers 20 121,812 106,946
Negative fair value of derivatives 8 8b 922
Subordinated debt 21 2,049 1,908
Current tax liability 5 128
Deferred tax liability 26 66 91
Otfher liabilities and provisions 22 6,669, 3,847
Disposal groups held for sale 2,961 -
Total Liabilities 137,906 118,458
Share capital 23 10,638 9,668
Retfained earnings and other reserves 23 3,822 4,060
Ofher capifal instruments 23 1,742 899
Equity attributable to equity holders of the parent 16,202 14,517
Non-conftrolling interest 24 743 826
Total Equity 16,945 15,343
Total equity and liabilities 164,851 133,801

The accompanying notes, set out on pages 42 fo 127, are an infegral part of these consalidated financial statements.
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Consolidated statement
of comprehensive income for the
vear ended 31 December 2015

in MCZK Note 2015 2014
Inferest income 27 5,689 5,796
Interest expense 28 (2,601) (2,885)
Net interest income 3,088 2,91
Fee and commission income 29 783 797
Fee and commission expense 30 (188] (165]
Net fee and commission income 605 642
Dividends from financial assefs available for sale 14 75
Impairment of assets available for sale 9b (32] (2]
Net trading income 31 196 1659
Other operating income 32 303 250
Operating income 4174 3,975
Personnel expenses 33 (867] (793]
Other operating expenses 34 (1,203) (118e)
Depreciation and amartisation 14, 15 (102] (90])
Goodwill impairment 15 (65) (290)
Operating expenses (2,237) (2,289)
Profit before provisions, allowances and income tax expenses 1,937 1,686
Net change in provisions from financial activities (23) (19)
Net change in allowances for impairment of loans 12 (743) (284)
Revenues from cession in portfolio of loans and other receivables 12 -
Profit before tax, excluding profit from equity accounted investees 1,183 1,383
Profit/(loss) from equity accounted investees, net of tax 49 167 340
Profit before tax 1,350 1,723
Income tax expenses 25 (281) (381)
Profit for the period from continuing operations 1,089 1,342
Profit for the period from discontinued operations 18 787 -
Profit for the period 1,876 1,342
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Continuing operations 1180 1,330
Discontinued operations 787 -
Profit for the period attributable to equity holders of the parent 1,967 1,330

ATTRIBUTABLE TO NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST
Continuing operations (91 12

Discontinued operatfions - -

Profit for the period attributable to non-controlling interest (91) 12
Profit for the period 1,876 1,342
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in MCZK Note 2015 2014
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - ITEMS THAT ARE OR MAY BE RECLASSIFIED

SUBSEQUENTLY TO PROFIT OR LOSS:

Revaluation reserve — financial assets available for sale

Net change in fair value 76 29
Net amount reclassified to profit or loss 47 (29]
Foreign exchange franslation differences (1,040) (642]
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax (917) (542)
Total comprehensive income for the period 959 800
ATTRIBUTABLE TO EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

Continuing operations 267 795
Discontfinued operations 787 -
Total 1,054 795
Non-controlling interest (98] 5
Continuing operations - -
Discontinued operations (95) 5
Total comprehensive income for the period 959 800

The accompanying notfes, setf out on pages 42 fo 127, are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements.

The Board of Directors approved these consolidated financial statements on 31 March 2016.

Signed on behalf of the Board:

Stépan Aser, MBA
Member of the Board of Directors

c

C

Ing. Igor Kovac
Member of the Board of Directors
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Consolidated statement of changes
in equity for the year ended
31 December 2015

Share Capital
in MCZK capital funds

Balance at 1 January 2015 9,658 83
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
Profit for the period - -

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX ITEMS THAT ARE OR MAY BE RECLASSIFIED
SUBSEQUENTLY TO PROFIT OR LOSS

Foreign exchange translation differences - -

Fair value reserve (available-for-sale financial assets]):

Net change in fair value _ _

Net amaount reclassified to profit or loss - -

Total comprehensive income for the period - -
TOTAL TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS OF THE COMPANY, RECOGNIZED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY
Issue of capital 1,080 -

Issue of capital instruments - —

Dividends - -

Distribution from capital instruments - -

Set up of Perpetuity fund - -

Effect of interest change - -

Effect of disposals of subsidiaries - Mma)

Transfer of legal reserve fund - 48

Balance at 31 December 2015 10,638 16

On November 10, 20156 the J&T Bank's sole shareholder J&T FINANCE GROUP SE increased share capital of the Bank by
subscripfion of new shares tafaling CZK 1 080 million.

Information about Other capital funds and Perpetfuity fund is disclosed in note 23.
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Translation
and revaluation Retained Perpetuity Other capital Non-canftrolling Total
reserve earnings fund instruments Total intferest equity
(535) 4,432 80 899 14,517 826 15,343
- 1,967 - 1,987 (91) 1,878
(1,036] - - - (1,035) (5) (1,040)
75 - - - 75 1 76
47 - - - 47 - 47
[913) 1,967 - - 1,054 [(95) 959
- - - - 1,080 - 1,080
- - - 843 843 - 843
- (1143) - - (1143) - (1143)
- - (108] - (108) - (108)
- (100) 100 - - - _
- (70) - - (70) 12 (68)
23 19 - - 29 - 29
— (48) — — — — —
(1,425) 5,169 72 1,742 16,202 743 16,945
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Consolidated statement of changes
in equity for the year ended
31 December 2014

Share Capital
in MCZK capital funds
Balance at 1 January 2014 9,658 185

TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
Profit for the period - -

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME, NET OF TAX ITEMS THAT ARE OR MAY BE RECLASSIFIED
SUBSEQUENTLY TO PROFIT OR LOSS

Foreign exchange translation differences - -

Fair value reserve (available-for-sale financial assets]):

Net change in fair value _ _

Net amaount reclassified to profit or loss - -

Total comprehensive income for the period - -
TOTAL TRANSACTIONS WITH OWNERS OF THE COMPANY, RECOGNIZED DIRECTLY IN EQUITY

Issue of capital instfruments - -
Dividends - (18]

Distribution from capital instruments - -

Set up of Perpetuity fund - -

Pricing differences - -

Effect of acquisition of subsidiaries - -

Effect of disposals of subsidiaries - -

Transfer of legal reserve fund - (154)
Capital contribution to other capital funds - 68
Balance at 31 December 2014 9,668 83

The accompanying notes, set out on pages 42 fo 127, are an infegral part of these consalidated financial statements.
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Translaﬂon . ‘ . ‘ Total
and revaluation Retained Perpetuity Other capital Non-canftrolling X

reserve earnings fund instruments Total intferest equity

- 3,683 - - 13,426 620 14,046

- 1,330 - - 1,330 12 1,342

(637) - - - (637) (5) (542)

31 - - - 31 (2) 29

(29] - - - (29) - (29]

(535) 1,330 - - 795 5 800

- - - 899 899 - 898

- (615) - - (631) - (631)

- - (20] - (20] - (20]

- (100) 100 - - - _

- (4) - - (4) - (4)

- 52 - - 52 202 254

- - - - - (1) 1)

- 154 - - - - -

- (68) - - - - -

(535) 4,432 80 ,899 14,517 826 15,343
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Consolidated statement
of cash flows for the year
ended 31 December 2015

in MCZK Note 2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit befare fax from continuing operations 1,360 1,723
Profit after tax from discontinued operations 787 -
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 14,15 102 80
Goodwill impairment 15 66 290
Allowances for impairment of loans 12 743 284
Foreign currency difference from allowances for impairment of loans 12 (10) (28]
Gain on sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets 78 101
Change in other provisions and ofher assefs 180 163
Profit/(loss] from equity accounted investees (187) (340)
Unrealised foreign exchange gains, net 276 206
Impairment of assets available for sale 32 62
Fair value adjustment to PSL from FVTPL assets (8) 83
Profit from sale associate (78] -
CASH GENERATED FROM (USED IN) OPERATIONS

Compulsaory minimum reserves in central banks (498) (988]
Due from financial institutions 795 (59)
Originated loans and receivables [4,231) (8,993]
Financial assets held to maturity, AFS and FVTPL 13,685 (2,937]
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets (185]) (234)
Disposal groups held for sale (1,871 131
Deposits and loans from banks (357) (715)
Deposits from customers 14,866 17,467
Other liabilities and provisions 2,641 327
Net increase / (decrease] in fair values of derivatives

Fair value of derivative instruments (838] 568
Tax effect

Income tax expenses paid (481) (298)
Net cash flows from operating activities 26,778 6,900
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of and proceeds from sale of intangible and tangible fixed assets, net (203) (82]
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash acquired - 687
Acquisition of associate and joint ventures (19) (881)
Disposal of associate 6,866 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities 6,643 (78]




Financial Part | Consolidated Financial Statements 1

in MCZK Note 2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in share capital — subscription of new shares 1,080 -
Issue of ofher capital instruments 843 898
Distribution from capital instruments (108) (20)
Dividends paid (1143) (631)
Subordinated debt 113 387
Foreign currency difference from subordinated debt 28 13
Net cash flows from financing activities 813 648
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS 34,234 7,472
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 5, 36 17,770 10,611
Effects of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held (337) (313)
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 5, 36 51,667 17,770
Cash flows from operating activities include:

Interest received 5,866 4,761

Interest paid 2,233 1,813

Dividends received 320 1569

For the cash flows from operating, investing and financing activities related fo discontfinued operation refer o Note 18.

The accompanying notes, set out on pages 42 fo 127, are an infegral part of these consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the consolidated
financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2015

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
J & T BANKA, a.s. ('the Bank'] is a joint stock company incorporated on 13 October 1992 in the Czech Republic.

The Bank received a licence to act as securities frader on 256 April 2003 and on 22 December 2003, the Bank's licence was
extended to include that activity.

The Bank's activities are focused on private, investment, corporate and retail banking.

The Bank is subject to the regulatory requirements of Czech National Bank ("CNB"). These requirements include limits and other
resfrictions concerning capital adequacy, the classification of loans and off-balance sheet liabilities, large exposure with clients
of the Bank, liquidity and the Bank's foreign currency position efc.

In December 2016, the Czech National Bank ('CNB") started administrative procedures with the Bank based on an on-sife
inspection concerning the implementation of cerfain provisions of the Banking Act, the Act on Capital Market and Decree no.
183/2014 Coll. prudential rules for banks, credit unions and securities dealers. The Bank submitted a statement on the findings
reporfed by CNB. As at the dafe of the financial statements, the Bank has initiated appropriate actions that will remedy the
findings identified by CNB.

The registered office of the Bank is at Pobfezni 14, Prague 8, Czech Republic. The Bank, its subsidiaries, associates and joint
ventures mentioned in the table below ("the Group") had on average 689 employees in 2016 (2014: 688). The Group operates
in the Czech Republic, Slovakia, Croatfia and Russia.

A branch of the Bank was established on 23 November 2005, and was registered in the Commercial Register of the District
Court Bratislava |, section Po, file 1320/B as the organizational unit "J & T BANKA, a.s., poboctka zahranitni banky", Dvorakovo
nabrezie 8, 811 02 Bratislava, and with the identification number 35864683.

On December 16, 20086, J&T FINANCE GROUP, a.s. confributed its 100% interest in the Bank fo the capital of J&GT FINANCE, a.s.,
Pobtezni 297/14, 186 00 Praha 8, which became the Bank's sole shareholder.

On January 1, 2009, Slovakia joined the Euro Area and adopted Euro fo replace Slovak crown. With effect from that date, the
Branch prepares financial statements and maintains its accounting records in Eura.

As a result of a cross-border merger by acquisition dated September 23, 2013, JST FINANCE, a.s., the Bank's parent company,
merged with J&T Finance Group, a.s. and Techno Plus, a.s. as at 1 January 2014. J&T FINANCE, a.s. became the successor
company, changing its name o JST FINANCE GROUP SE and its legal form to European Society (Societas Europaea, SE).

The Bank's ultimate parent is J&T FINANCE GROUP SE, a joint-sfock company owned by Jozef Tkae (45,67 %), lvan Jakabovic¢
(45,67 %), CEFC Shanghai International Group Limited (4,79 %) and CEFC Hainan International Holdings CO., Ltd. (4,07 %).
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Ownership interests
In connection with the sharehaolder's intention to centralise financial services under J & T BANKA, a.s., the following companies
have become subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures.

The companies included in the consolidation Group as at 31 December 2015 are as follows:

Country Share capital % share- Consolidation Principal
Company of incorporation in mil. CZK holding method activities
J & T BANKA, a.s. Czech Republic 10,638 parent company Banking activities
J&T INVESTICNI SPOLECNOST, a.s. Czech Republic 20 100 Full Asset management
ATLANTIK finan¢ni trhy, a.s. Czech Republic 81 100 Full Investment activities
J&T IB and Capital Markets, a.s. Czech Republic 2 100 Full Advisory activities
— XT-Card a.s. Czech Republic 10 32 Equity IT/Programming activities
J&T Bank, a.o. Russia 2.144% 99.95* Full Banking activities
— Interznanie, GAO Russia 67 50 Full Real esfatfe
TERCES MANAGEMENT LIMITED Cyprus 0,085 98 Full Investment activities
— Inferznanie, OAOD Russia 67 50 Full Real estate
PGJT B.V. Netherlands 108 50 Equity Financial activities
— PROFIREAL, 00O Russia 34 100 Equity Financial activities
J&T REALITY, o.p.f. Czech Republic 0 53.08 Full Collective investment fund
Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin Croatia 818 76.81 Full Banking activities
J&T Cafe, s.r.o. Czech Republic 4 100 Full Haospitality activities
ART FOND - Stredoeurdpsky fond
sUtasneho umenia, a. s. Slovakia 18 38.48 Full Activities in the Arts

The Group provides customers with comprehensive banking services, asset management, financial and capital market
fransactions for the retail segment, as well as support fo start-up and restructuring projects. The Group's operating segments
are described in the nofe 37.

On February 16, 2015, the subsidiary company J&T Bank, zao changed its frade name to J&T Bank, a.o.

On May 20, 2015, the Group increased its ownership interest in J&T Bank, a.0. by a subscription of 112 000 00O pieces of new
ordinary shares in total nominal value of RUB 5.6 million.

*In September 2016, an agreement was signed between CEFC Shanghai and J&T Bank, a.s. based on which CEFC Shanghai
will acquire 50 % ownership inferest in J&T Bank, a.0. The fransaction is subject of approval by the natfional regulators in Russia.
As a result of the agreement, the Group presents J&T Bank, a.0. as an assetf held for sale. The Group loses the confrol over
J&T Bank, a.o.

In 2015, the Group increased its ownership inferest in Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin. On February 5, 2015, subscribed for 3 7560 000
units of new ordinary shares in fofal nominal value of HRK 375 million. On September 28, 2015, the Group subscribed for
6 500 000 unifts of new ordinary shares in fofal nominal value of HRK 65 million.
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On February 24, 2015, the Group enfered info an agreement with J & T FINANCE GROUP SE relating to the sale of shares in
Postava banka, a.s. The agreement became effective on March 13, 2015, and resulted in fransfer of 3.17 % ownership inferest,
10 473 pieces of ordinary shares, nominal value 1107 EUR per share, To J & T FINANCE GROUP SE.

On February 25, 2015, the Group enfered info an agreement with PBI, a.s. for the sale of 34 % ownership interest in Postava
banka, a.s. The agreement became effective on December 23, 2015, and resulted in fransfer of 112 506 pieces of ordinary

shares, nominal value 1107 EUR per share.

In 2015, the Group increased ifs ownership inferest in the company J & T Cafe, s.r.o. by the amount of CZK 0.8 million as an
additional capital contribution beside the share capital.

On July 18, 2015, the Group increased ifs ownership interest in The company PGJT BYV. by confribution to capital funds in the
amount of RUB 30 million.

In 2015, the Group sold its 50 % ownership inferest in the subsidiary Interznanie directly owned by the subsidiary TERCES to
J&T Bank, a.0. This fransaction had no impact on the consolidated financial statements.

In 2015, there were not recorded any restrictions in ownership rights on behalf of subsidiaries.
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The companies included in the consolidation Group as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Country Share capital % share- Caonsaolidation Principal
Company of incorparation in mil. CZK holding method activities
J & T BANKA, a.s. Czech Republic 9,668 parent company Banking activities
JET INVESTICNI SPOLECNQOST, a.s. Czech Republic 20 100 Full Asset management
ATLANTIK finan¢nf frhy, a.s. Czech Republic 81 100 Full Investment activities
J&T IB and Capital Markets, a.s. Czech Republic 2 100 Full Advisory acftivities
J&T Bank, zao Russia 306 99.64 Full Banking activities
TERCES MANAGEMENT LIMITED Cyprus 0,06 99 Full Investment activities
- Inferznanie, OAO Russia 77 100 Full Real estate
PGJT B.V. Netherlands 222 50 Equity Financial activities
— PROFIREAL, 00O Russia 77 100 Equity Financial activities
Postovéa banka, a.s. Slovakia 10,158 3717 Equity Banking activities
- Postova banka, a.s.,
pobocka Ceska republika Czech Republic - 100 Equity Banking activities
- Poistoviia Postovej banky, a.s. Slovakia 321 100 Equity Insurance activities
- Dvécho‘dkové spravcovska spolo¢nost Slovakia Equity ManagemenT
Postovej banky, d.s.s., a.s. 331 100 of pension funds
— PRVA PENZIUNA SPRAVCOVSKA SPOLOCNOST
POSTOVEJ BANKY, sprav. spol., a.s. Slovakia 47 100 Equity Asset management
— POBA Servis, a.s. Slovakia 1 100 Equity Facility management
- PB PARTNER, a.s. Slovakia 78 100 Equity Financial infermediation
— PB Finan¢né sluzby, a.s. Operational

Slovakia 3 100 Equity and financial leasing
- PBIT as. Activities in the field

Slovakia 1 100 Equity of information fechnology
- SPPS, a.s. Slovakia 10 40 Equity Payment services
— FOND DLHODOBYCH VYNOSOV o.p.f. Slovakia 0 50.19 Equity Collective investment fund
— NAS DRUHY REALITNY o.p.f. Slovakia 0 53.46 Equity  Collective investment fund
J&T REALITY, o.p.f. Czech Republic 0 53.08 Full Collective investment fund
Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin Croatia 4866 58.33 Full Banking activities
J&T Cafe, s.r.o. Czech Republic 3 100 Full Hospitality activities
ART FOND - Stredoeuropsky fond
slUitasného umenia, a. s. Slovakia 18 38.46 Full Acftivities in the Arts

On February 27, 2014, the Group increased the share capifal of J&GT REALITY, o.p.f. by amount of EUR 8 million. After the increase
the Group holds an ownership share of 53.08 %. The Group fully controls the company through ifs subsidiary company J&T
INVESTICNf SPOLECNOST, a.s., that manages this fund.

On June 8, 2014, the Group acquired 58.33 % ownership inferest in Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin.

In July 2014, the Group increased its ownership inferest in Postova banka, a.s. On 4 July, the Group subscribed 18 706 new
ordinary shares with a fofal nominal value of EUR 21 814 542 and on July 11 the Group subscribed 2 673 new ordinary shares
with a tofal nominal value of EUR 2 959 O11. The bank increased its ownership inferest by 0.81% in this associate from 36.36 %
fa inferest of 3717 %.
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On September 30, 2014, the Group acquired 100 % ownership inferest in JGT Cafe, s.r.o.

On November 13, 2014, the Bank acquired 38.46 % ownership interest in ART FOND — Stredoeurdpsky fond sti¢asného umenia,
a. s. Under the terms of the Shareholders Agreement, the Group has a controlling influence over this company.

FOND DLHODOBYCH VYNOSQOV o.p.f. and NAS DRUHY REALITNY o.p.f. sold in the last quarter of 2014 all of its underlying assets
/ shares in the companies FORESPO.

In 2014, there were nat recorded any restrictions in ownership rights on behalf of subsidiaries.
Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries made in 2014 are further presented in Notfe 48.

The Bank's ultimate parent as at 31 December 2014 was J&T FINANCE GROUP SE, a joint-stock company owned by Jozef Tkac
(50 %] and Ivan Jakabovi¢ (50 %).

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The consolidated financial statfements comprise the accounts of the members of the Group and have been prepared in
accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS") as adopted by the European Union for the reporting period
of 1 January 2016 — 31 December 2016 (‘reporting period").

(b) Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statfements have been prepared under the histarical cost convention except for investment property,
financial assetfs and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale assets and derivatives, which are measured
at fair value.

The members of the Group maintain their accounting books and prepare their statements for regulatory purposes in accordance
with local statutary accounting principles. The accompanying financial statements are based on the statutory accounting
records together with appropriate adjustments and reclassifications necessary for fair presentation in accordance with IFRS.

In particular, information about significant areas of uncertainty estimation and critical judgements in applying accounting policies
that have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial statfements are described in note 4.

Issued but not yet effective Infernational Financial Reporfing Standards
A number of new standards, amendments to standards and inferprefations are not yet effecfive or not yet adopted by the EU
for the year ended 31 December 2015, and have not been applied in preparing these financial statfements:

Amendments to IFRS 11 — Accounting for Acquisifions of Inferests in Joint Operations
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016; fo be applied prospectively. Early application is permitted.
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These Amendments require business combination accounting to be applied fo acquisitfions of inferests in a joint operation that
constitutes a business.

Business combination accounting also applies to the acquisition of additional interests in a joint operatfion while the joint
operator retains joint control. The additional inferest acquired will be measured at fair value. The previously held inferests in the
joint operation will not be remeasured.

The Group expects that the amendments, when initially applied, will not have a a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Amendments fo IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2016. Early applicatfion is permitted. The Amendments to IAS 1
include the following five, narrow-focus improvements fo the disclosure requirements contained in the standard.

The guidance on materiality in IAS 1 has been amended fo clarify that:
— Immaterial information can detract from useful information.

— Materiality applies fo the whole of the financial statements.

— Materiality applies to each disclosure requirement in an IFRS.

The guidance on the order of the notes (including the accounting policies) have been amended, ta:
— Remove language from IAS 1that has been inferprefed as prescribing the order of notes fo the financial statements.

Clarify that entities have flexibility about where they disclose accounting policies in the financial statements.

The Group expects that the amendments, when inifially applied, will not have a a significant effect on the presentation of the
consalidated financial statements of the Group.

Amendments fo IAS 19 — Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2016. The amendments apply refrospectively. Earlier application is
permitfed. The amendments are relevant only fo defined benefit plans that involve confributions from employees or third parties
meeting certain criteria. Namely that they are:

— sef out in the formal tferms of the plan;

— linked fo service; and

— independent of the number of years of service.

When these criteria are met, a company is permitted [but not required) to recognize them as a reduction of the service cost in
the period in which the related service is rendered.

The Group expects that the amendments, when initfially applied, will not have a significant effect on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.



48 Financial Part | Consolidated Financial Statements

Ofher new Infernational Financial Reporting Standards and Interprefations not yet due

The Group has not early adoptfed any IFRS standards where adoption is not mandatfory at the statement of financial position
date. Where fransition provisions in adopted IFRS give an entity the choice of whether To apply new standards prospectively or
retrospectively, the Group elects o apply the standards prospectively from the datfe of fransition. Management of the Group does
not expect that these ather new sfandards will have a significant effect on the consalidated financial statements of the Group.

(c] Functional and presentation currency
The accompanying consolidated financial statfements are presented in the national currency of the Czech Republic, the Czech
crown ('CZK"), rounded to the nearest million.

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the enfity operatfes. Individual companies
forming the Group determined their functional currencies in accordance with 1AS 21,

In determining functional currency, each individual company forming the Group considered mainly factors such as the currency:
— in which sales prices for its services are denominated and settled; and
— of the country whose competitive forces and regulations mainly defermine the sales prices of its goods and services.

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The particular accounting policies adopted in preparation of the accompanying consolidated financial statements are described
below.

(a) Basis of consolidation

(i) Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are investees controlled by the Group. The Group controls an investee if it is exposed fo, or has rights fo, variable
refurns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those refurns through its power over the investee.
The Group reassesses whether it has confrol if there are changes fo one or more of the elements of control. This includes
circumstances in which protective rights held become substantive and lead fo the Group having power over an investee.
The financial statements of subsidiaries are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date on which conftrol

commences until the date when control ceases.

(i) Assaociates

Associates are those entities in which the Group has significant influence, but not control, over the financial and operating policies.
The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the tofal recognised gains and losses of associates on an
equity accounted basis, from the date that significant influence commences until the date that significant influence ceases. When
the Group’s share of losses exceeds the carrying amount of the associate, the carrying amount is reduced fo nil and recognition
of further losses is discontinued, except to the extent that the Group has incurred obligations in expect of the associate.

(i) Joint ventures
Joint ventures are those enterprises over whose activities the Group has joint control, established by confractual agreement.
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The consolidated financial statements include the Group’s share of the fotal recognised gains and losses of joint ventures on
an equity accounted basis, from the datfe that joint confrol commences until the datfe that joint control ceases.

(iv] Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and fransactions, and any unrealised gains (losses) arising from infra-group fransactions, are eliminated in
preparing the consolidated financial statements.

(v] Loss of contral

Upon The loss of control, the Group derecognises the assetfs and liabilities of the subsidiary, any non-contralling interests and the
ofher components of equity related fo the subsidiary. Any surplus or deficit arising on the loss of contral is recognised in profit or
loss. If the Group refains any inferest in the previous subsidiary, such inferest is measured af fair value af the date that control is
lost. Subsequently, it is accounted for as equity accounted investee or as an available-for-sale financial asset depending on the
level of influence refained.

(vi] Unification of accounting principles
The accounting principles and procedures applied by the consolidated companies in their financial statements were unified in
the consolidation, and agree with the principles applied by the Parent Company.

(b) Financial assets

Classification

Financial instfruments at fair value through profit or loss are those that the Group principally holds for the purpose of shorf-term
profit taking. These include investments and derivative contracts that are not designated as effective hedging instruments and
liabilities from short sales of financial insfruments.

Originated loans and receivables comprise loans, advances fo banks and customers other than purchased loans and promissory
notes.

Held-to-maturity assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the
Group has the intent and ability to hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale assetfs are financial assetfs that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss or held to maturity.

The Group's accounting policies provide scope for assets and liabilities to be designated at inception into different accounting

catfegories in cerfain circumstances:

- In classifying financial assets or liabilities as "trading", management has determined that the Group meets the description
of trading assets and liabilities;

— The Group regularly evaluates the liquidity of particular financial instrument with respect to market conditions;

— Inclassifying financial assets as held-fo-maturity, management has defermined that the Group has bath the positive infention
and the ability to hold the assetfs until their maturity date as required.
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Recognition

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognized on the date the Group commits fo purchase the assets.
From this dafe, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the assefs are recognized in the sfatement of
comprehensive income.

The Group recognizes available-for-sale assefs on the date it commits to purchase the assefs. From this dafe, any gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the assetfs are recognized in equity as differences from revaluation of assets.

Held-to-maturity assetfs are accounted for at frade date.

Measurement

Financial instfruments are measured initially at fair value, including transaction costs, with the exception of fransaction costs
related to financial instfruments designated at fair value through profit or loss which are recognized directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Subseguent fo initial recognition, all instruments designated af fair value through profit or loss and all available-for-sale assets
are measured af fair value, except any instrument that does not have a quoted market price on an active market and whase fair
value cannot be reliably measured, which is stated at cost, including fransaction costs, less impairment losses.

All non-trading financial liabilities, originated loans and receivables and held-to-maturity assets are measured at amortised
cost less impairment losses. Amortised caost is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Premiums and discounts,
including initial fransaction costs, are included in the carrying amount of the related instrument and amortised based on the
effective inferest rate of the instrument.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial insfruments is based on their quoted market price at the statement of financial position date without
any deduction for fransaction costs. If a quoted market price is not available, the fair value of the insfrument is esfimated using
pricing models or discounted cash flow tfechnigues.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, esfimated future cash flows are based on management's best esfimates
and the discount rate is a marketf-related rate at the statement of financial position date for an instrument with similar ferms
and conditions. Where pricing models are used, inpufs are based on marketf-related measures at the statement of financial
position date.

Gains and losses on subsequent measurement

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments at fair value through profift or loss are recognised
in the statement of comprehensive income while gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale
assets are recognized directly in equity as differences arising from revaluation of assets and liabilities. Changes in fair value
are derecognised from equity through profit or loss at the moment of sale. Inferest from available-for-sale assets is recorded in
the statement of comprehensive income.
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Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised when the Group loses control over the confractual rights that comprise that assetf. This
occurs when the rights are realised, expire or are surrendered. A financial liability is derecognised when it is extinguished.

Available-for-sale assefs and financial assets at fair value through profit or loss that are sold are derecognised and the
corresponding receivables from the buyer are recognised on the day the Group commifs fo sell the assets.

Held-to-maturity assefs and originated loans and receivables are derecognised on the day they are sold by the Group.

Impairment
Financial assefs are reviewed at each statfement of financial position date to defermine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is esfimated.

The Group assesses atf the end of each quarter, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assetfs is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or more events that have occurred affer the initial recognition of the asset
(an incurred loss event) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assetfs that can be reliably esfimated.

Evidence of impairment may include: indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers is experiencing significant financial
difficulty; the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial rearganisation; default or delinguency in inferest or
principal payments; and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the esfimated fufure cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

If an impairment of a financial asset available for sale is idenfified, the accumulated gains or losses recorded earlier in other
comprehensive income are reclassified and recorded in profit or loss in the given period.

In case of an impairment of a financial asset available for sale as a result of a decrease in the registered capifal, the resulting
income is recognised as a received dividend in profit or loss.

Loans and advances to customers and deposits with banks
Loans and advances o cusfomers and deposits with banks are carried at the amount of principal outstanding including
accrued inferest, net of impairment. The impairment is booked as specific allowance for loan losses.

The Bank classifies all its receivables from clients info the following five basic categories laid down by Decree of the Czech
National Bank No. 163/2014 Sb.: receivables without obligor default divided info standard and watch receivables, and receivables
with obligor default divided intfo non-standard, doubtful and loss receivables. In the evaluation of individual loans, the classification
takes info account both qualitative and guanfitative criteria.
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The criteria mentioned include the following:

— maijor financial problems of the debfar;

— breach of a confract, e.g. delayed payment of inferest or principal or failure To pay them;

- relief provided by the creditar fo the debtor for economic or other legal reasons relating fo debtor's financial problems, that
the creditor would not have otherwise provided;

— likelihood of bankruptfcy or other financial resfructuring of the debftor;

— extinction of an active market for the given financial asset for financial reasons; or

— observable facts demonstrafing a measurable decline of estimated future cash flow from the group of financial assets affer
their initial recognition despite the existing impossibility o detect the decrease for individual financial assefs in the group;

— and other.

Forbearance

The Group freafs forbearance in accordance with the Technical Standard on non-performing exposures and forbearance
measures published by the European Banking Authority (EBA) and in accordance with the Public Statement of the European
Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA] on the treatment of forbearance practices in the financial statements of the financial
institutions prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Forbearance is an exposure where the Group decides, due fo debtfor's financial problems, fo grant a concession which in
other circumstances would not be granted. The concession may consist in the modification of the terms and conditions of the
confract or in debt refinancing. The modification of ferms and conditions may include, but is not limited to, a decrease in inferest
rate, reduction of the interest or principal, change in the repayment schedule (e.g. postponement of interest payment due date,
temparary payment holiday, prolongation of the final due date of the loan, fee or accessories for the debtfor, modification or non-
monitoring of covenants, inferest or instalment capitalisation, partial debt write-off). Any modification of terms and conditions or
refinancing which is not result of debtor's financial problems cannot be interpreted as forbearance. Concessions may resulf in
better interest risk management and mitigation of potential future loan losses.

Performing and non-performing exposures may also be recognised as exposures without concession provided no madification
of ferms and conditions or refinancing was made in respect fo the given receivable.

Non-performing exposures comprise receivables with debtor's failure.

Details regarding the strucfure and quality of the credit portfolio are described in paragraph 40.

Individually assessed allowances

Based on regular reviews of the outstanding balances, specific allowances for impairment of loans are made for the carrying
amount of loans and advances that are idenfified as being impaired fo reduce these loans and advances to the amounts

recoverable.

The Group mainly uses the financial statements of the client and the Group's own analysis as the basis for assessment of the
loan's collectability.
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Allowances made, less amounts released during the reporfing period, are charged fo statement of comprehensive income.
Outstanding loan expasures are writfen off only when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. If in a subsequent period the
amount of an allowance for loan losses decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively fo an event occurring affer the
allowance was booked, the allowance is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

Collectively assessed allowances
Allowances are assessed collectively for losses on loans that are not individually significant and for individually significant
loans and advances that have been assessed individually and found not to be impaired.

Allowances are evaluated separately on regularly basis with each portfolio. The collective assessment is made for groups of
assets with similar risk characteristics, in order to defermine whether provision should be made due to incurred loss events for
which there is objective evidence, but the effects of which are not yet evident in the individual loans assessments.

In estimating the amount of allowances necessary, management evaluates the likelihood of repayment of individual loans and
takes info account the value of collateral and the ability of the Group fo realize the collateral.

Calculated amount of allowances is allocated proportfionally fo the partial components of the carrying amount of receivable, i.e.
principal, inferest income and penalty inferest.

Treasury bills
Treasury bills, comprising bills issued by government agencies, are stafted at cost including the amartised discount arising on
purchase. The discount is amortfised over the tferm to maturity with the amortfisation being included in interest income.

Derivatives

Derivatives including currency forwards and opfions are initially recognized in the statement of financial posifion at cost
(including fransaction costs) and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices and discounted cash flow models. The pasitive fair value of derivatives is recognized as an asset while the negafive fair
value of derivatives is recognized as a liability.

Certain derivatives embedded in ofher financial insfruments are treated as separate derivafives when their risks and
characteristics are not closely related to those of the host contract, a separate instfrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative and the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in net frading income.

Hedge accounting — Fair Value Hedge

When a derivative is designated as a hedge of the change in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a commitment,
changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognised immediately in the statement of comprehensive income fogether
with changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are attributable to the hedged risk (in the same line as the hedged item).
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Hedge accounting is discontinued if the derivative expire or is sold, tferminated, or exercised, no longer meets the criteria for fair
value hedge accounting, or the designation is revoked. Any adjustment fo a hedged item for which the effective inferest rate
method is used is amortised fo profit or loss as part of the recalculated effective inferest rate of the item over its remaining life.

(c]) sale and repurchase agreements

Where securities are sold under a commitment to repurchase at a predetermined price ('repurchase agreements'], they remain
on the sfatement of financial position and a liability is recorded equal fo the consideration received. Conversely, securities
purchased under a commitment to resell ('reverse repurchase agreements") are not recorded on the statement of financial
pasition and the consideration paid is recorded as a loan. The difference between the sale price and repurchase price is freated
as inferest and accrued evenly over the life of the fransaction. Repos and reverse repos are recognised on a sefflement date
basis.

(d) Intangible assets

Goodwill and infangible assetfs acquired in a business combination

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of an acquisition over the fair value of the Group's share of the net identifiable
assefs of the acquired subsidiary/associate at the date of acquisition. Goodwill on acquisition of subsidiaries is included under
infangible assefs. Goodwill on acquisition of associates and joint ventures is included in the carrying amount of investments
in associates. Goodwill is tested annually for impairment and carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. Gains and
losses on the disposal of an entity include the carrying amount of goodwill relating fo the entity sold.

Infangible assets acquired in a business combination are recorded at fair value on the acquisition date if the infangible asset
is separable or arises from contractual or other legal rights. Intangible assetfs with an indefinite useful life are not subject to
amortisation and are recorded af cost less impairment. Infangible assefs with a definite useful life are amortised over their
useful lives and are recorded at cost less accumulated amortisation and impairment.

Infangible assetfs

Infangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Amortisation is charged to
the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of intangible assets other than
goodwill, form the dafe the asset is available for use. The estfimated amortization rates per a year are as follows:

Software 25%
Ofher infangible assetfs N% - 50%

Customers relafionships 5% — 33%
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(e) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are sfated at histforical cost less accumulated depreciafion and impairment losses. Depreciation
is pravided on a sfraight-line basis over the esfimated useful economic life of the asset. Assefs under construction are not
depreciated. The average depreciation rates used are as follows:

Buildings 2.5%
Office equipment 12.6% - 33%
Fixtures and fittings 12.5% - 33%

Land is not depreciated.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capifalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset.

(f) Investment property
Investment property is represented by assets that are held to generate rental income or fo realise a long-term increase in valug,
and are notf used in production or for administrative purposes or sold as part of the ordinary business activities of the Group.

Investment property is stated at fair value, as determined by an independent registered appraiser or by management. Fair value
is calculated by applying generally applicable valuation methodologies such as expert opinions and yield methods. Any gain or
loss arising from a change in fair value is recognised in the statement of comprehensive income.

(g) Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a sfraight-line basis over the tferm of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an integral part of the fotal expense, over the term of the lease.

When the Group is the lessor in a lease agreement that transfers substantially all of the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset to the lessee, the arrangement is presented within loans and advances.

(h) Foreign currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are franslated info CZK at the official Czech National Bank exchange rates as
aft the datfe of the fransaction. Monetary assetfs and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the rafes of
exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position date. All resulting gains and losses are recorded in the statfement of
comprehensive income in Net trading income, in the period in which they arise.

(i) Income and expense recognition

Inferest income and inferest expense are recognised in the statfement of comprehensive income using the effective interest
rate method. The effective inferest rate is the rate that exactly discounts the estimated fufure cash payments and receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of
the financial asset or liability. The effective inferest rate is established on inifial recognition of the financial asset and liability.
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In case of modification of loan conditions, such as change of inferest rafe or instalment calendar, the effective interest rate is
updated in line with newly agreed conditions. The calculation of the effective interest rafe includes all fees and points paid or
received, fransaction costs and discounts or premiums that are an infegral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs
are incremental costs that are directly atffributable to the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset or liability.

The recognised average inferest rate is determined as the annual weighted average from open confracts as at the dafe of the
balance sheet datfe.

Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis.

(i) Taxation

Tax paid is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the relevant legislation based on the profit recognized in the
statement of comprehensive income prepared pursuant to local statutory accounting standards, after adjustments for tfax
purposes.

Deferred tax is calculated using the statement of financial position liability method, providing for femporary differences between
the accounting and taxation basis of assefs and liabilities. Deferred fax liabilities are recognized for deductible temporary
differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized only fo tThe extent that it is probable that fufure taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be utilized. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the exftent that it is no longer probable that the
related fax benefit will be realized. Currently enacted tax rates are used fo determine deferred income tfaxes.

(k) Social security and pension schemes

Contributions are made to the government's health, retirement benefit and unemployment schemes at the stafutory rafes in
force during the year based on gross salary payments. The cost of social security payments is charged to the statfement of
comprehensive income in the same period as the related salary cost. The Group has no further pension or post refirement
commitments.

(1) Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash deposited with central banks and other banks and short-
tferm highly liguid investments with original matfurities of three months or less.

(m) Provisions

A provision is recognized in tThe statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or constfructive obligation as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to seffle the obligation. If the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected fufure cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of tThe fime value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific fo the liability.

(n) Offsetting
Financial assetfs and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporfed in the statement of financial position when the Group
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the fransactions are infended to be seffled on a netf basis.
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(o) Segment reporting
Segment analysis is based on fype of clienfs and provided services. The management of the enfity is provided with the
information that allows evaluating the performance of individual segments.

The Group's reportable segments according o IFRS 8 are as follows:
— Financial markets

— Corporate banking

— Private banking

— Refail banking

- ALCO

— Unallocated

Accounting policies applied to operating segments comply with those described in Note 3. The profits of the segments represent
profits befare fax achieved by each segment excluding overhead costs and salaries of management. This segment analysis is
basis for review and stfrategic and operational decision making of the management.

For operatfing segment analysis, all assets and liabilities are allocated to the individual reporftable segments except for "other”
financial assets and liabilities and current and deferred income tax asset / liability.

IFRS 8 requires that operating segments are identified based on internal reporting about the business units of the Group which
are regularly reviewed by CEO and allow proper allocation of resources and evaluation of the performance.

(p) Business combinations and purchase price allocations

The acquiree's idenfifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities are recognised and measured at their fair values at the
acquisition date. For financial statement reporting purposes, allocation of the tfotal purchase price among the net assetfs
acquired is performed with the support of professional advisors. The valuation analysis is based on historical and prospective
information available as of the datfe of the business combination. Any prospective information that may impact the fair value of
the acquired assefs is based on management's expectations of the competitive and economic environments that will prevall
in the future. The results of the valuation analysis are also used to defermine the amortisation and depreciation periods for the
values allocated fo specific intangible and tangible fixed assefs.

In 2015, there was no business combination.

Fair value adjustments resulting from business combinations in 2014 are presented in the following table:

Soffware Loans Deposits  Deposifs and Total net
and other and advances and loans loans fram Deferred balance
Companies infangible assets tfo custaomers from banks cusfomers tax assef sheet effect

Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin (28) (32] 3 3 M (43]
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(q) Disposal groups held for sale and discontinued operations
Disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs tfo sell.
Disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale fransaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the disposal
group is available for immediate sale in ifs present condition, management has committed to the sale, and the sale is expected
to be completed within one year from the datfe of classification.

In The consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the reporfing period, and for the comparable period of the previous
reparfing period, income and expenses from discontinued operations are reporfed separatfely from income and expenses from
confinuing operations, down fo the level of profit affer taxes, even when the Group refains a non-controlling inferest in the
subsidiary affer the sale. The resulting profit or loss (after taxes) is reported separately in the statement of comprehensive
income. Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

(r) Dividends
Dividends are recognised in the statement of changes in equity and recorded as liabilities in the period in which they are
declared.

(s) Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is provided.

The revaluation of the net liability from defined benefit plans (including actuarial gains and losses) is recognised in full immediately
in other comprehensive income.

Amounts due To employees, such as amounts relafing fo accrued vacation pay or performance bonuses, are recognized as
ather liabilities.

4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS
The preparation of financial statements requires management fo make judgements, estimates and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reporfed amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Acfual results may

differ from these estimates.

Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the esfimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

These principles supplement the commentary on financial risk management.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Allowances for impairment of loan
Assets accounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on the basis described in accounting policy 3(b).
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The specific counterparty component of the fatfal allowances for impairment of loans applies fo claims evaluated individually
for impairment and is based on management's best estimate of the present value of the cash flows that are expected to be
received. In estimating these cash-flows, management makes judgements about the counterparty's financial sifuation and
the net realizable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits and the workout strategy.
All esfimates of cash flows for the calculation of the allowances are independently approved by the Credit Risk Management.

The allowances are creafted on an on-going basis as a difference between the nominal value of the receivable and the amount
recoverable.

Determining fair values

The defermination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no observable quoted market price requires
the use of valuation fechniques as described in accounting policy 3(b). For financial instruments that are traded infrequently
and have litfle price fransparency, fair value is less objective and requires varying degrees of judgement depending on liquidity,
concentration, uncertainty of the market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific amounts.

The Group measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inputs used in
making the measurements:

— Level 1. quoted priced (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

—  Level 2: derived from guoted prices, either directly (i.e. as prices of similar instruments] or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices]);
— Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not derived from quoted prices (calculated using valuation techniques).

If the market for a financial instfrument is not active, fair value is estimated by using valuation techniques. In applying valuation
technigues, management uses estimates and assumptions that are consistent with available information about estimates and
assumptions that market participants would use in setting a price for the financial instrument.

If the fair values had been higher or lower by 10% than management's esfimates, the net carrying amount of Level 3 financial
instruments would have been estimated to be CZK 441 million higher or lower than as disclosed as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
CZK 412 million).

Financial assets

In the vast majority of cases, the fair value of Level 3 investments was estimated using discounted cash flow ('DCF') models,
with inputs coming from the specific investment's business plan or cash flow projections. The individual business plans
and cash flow projectfions were critically reviewed by management before inclusion in the models. The discount rates were
based on the specificities of the industfries and countries in which the investments operate. The key assumptions used in
the valuations were the expecfed cash flows and discount rates. Further information about level 3 financial instruments is
disclosed in the nofes 9a and 9b.

Valuation of investment property
Investment property is carried af fair value and classified as Level 3 according fo the fair value hierarchy.



60 Financial Part | Consolidated Financial Statements

Fair values of investment property are defermined either by independent registered appraisers or by management, in both
cases based on discounted cash flow ("DCF') models with inputs caming from rental income projections. These projections are
critically assessed by management before inclusion in the models. The discount rates were based on the specificities of the
countries in which the investment property is located.

Valuations reflect, where appropriate, the Type of fenanfs in occupation or responsible for meeting lease commitments, or likely
to be in occupation after letting vacant property, the general market's perception of fenants' creditworthiness and the remaining
economic life of the properties.

Further information about investment property is disclosed in the note 13.

Goodwill and impairment testing

The Group conducts impairment festing of goodwill arisen in a business combination during the current period and impairment
testing of goodwill already recognised in prior years annually (see also note 48 Acquisitions and disposals of subsidiaries,
associates and joint ventures and note 16 Intangible assets).

The Group also conducts impairment testing of other intfangible assets with indefinite useful lives and of cash-generating units
(CGUs] where a frigger for impairment testing is identified. As at the acquisition date, goodwill acquired is allocated to each of
the cash-generating units expected to benefit from the combination's synergies. Impairment is determined by assessing the
recoverable amount of the cash-generatfing unit, to which goodwill relates, on the basis of a value in use that reflects esfimated
future discounted cash flows or on the basis of fair value less costs fo sell.

Fair value measurements for impairment fesfing purposes were categorized as a Level 3 measurement based on the inputs
used in the valuation tfechnigue. In the majority of cases the Group estimated the recoverable amounts of goodwill and the cash
generatfing units based on value in use. Value in use was derived from management forecasts of future cash flows updated
since the date of acquisition. The discount rates applied fo the cash flow projections are calculated as the weighted average
cost of capital (WACC) of each CGU.

a) ATLANTIK finanéni trhy a.s.

In 2014, impairment fest fo the cash-generating unit ATLANTIK financnf frhy, a.s. resulted in the impairment loss of CZK 50
million. The cash flows were derived from ATLANTIK financni frhy a.s.’s long term business plan, the key assumptions being
forecast net brokerage fees, fund administration fees, interest income. These were applied over a specific ten-year forecast
period. Expected future cash flows were discounted using a weighted-average cost of capital ("WACC") of 12.69 %.

In 2015, goodwill allocated to the ATLANTIK finanéni trhy, a.s. as cash generating unit was written off in full based on the results
of the performed impairment testing.
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b) J&T Investiéni spoleénost, a.s.

In 2015, impairment loss of the cash-generating unit J&T Investiéni spolec¢nost, a.s. was calculated based on discounted cash
flows. The cash flows were derived from the J&T Investi¢ni spole¢naost, a.s.'s long term business plan, the key assumptions
being forecast profit after tax for the period, these were applied over a specific five-year forecast period. The growth rate used
o extrapolate cash flows beyond this period was 1.98 % (2014: 1.38 %). Expected cash flows were discounted using a weighted
average cost of capital 1017 % (2014: 9.08 %). There was no impairment loss identified as a result of this impairment test in
2015 and 2014,

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

in MCZK 2015 2014
Cash on hand (note 8] 245 427
Current accounts with central banks (nofe 8) 230 348
Term deposits in central banks up tfo 3 months (note B) 17,160 10,963
Current accounts with banks [(note 7) 1,668 2,988
Loans to central banks - repurchase agreements (note 7) 30,000 -
Term deposits due from fin. institutions up to 3 months [note 7) 73 745
Loans due from banks - repurchase agreements [nofe 7) 2,41 2,299
Total 51,667 17,770

6. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

in MCZK 2015 2014
Balances with central banks (including obligatory minimum reserves) 2,099 1,601
Current accounts with central banks 230 348
Term deposifs in cenfral banks up fo 3 months 17,160 10,9863
Total balance with central banks 19,479 12,912
Cash on hand 245 427
Total 19,724 13,339

Balances with central banks represent the obligatory minimum reserves mainfained under Czech National Bank, National Bank
of Slovakia, Central Bank of the Russian Federation regulafions and the Croatian National Bank. The obligatory minimum reserve
is stated as 2% of primary deposits with maturity of less than fwo years and is inferest bearing except for Central Bank of the
Russian Federation where the obligatary minimum reserve is stated as 4.25 % of primary deposits and is non-inferest bearing
and the Croatian Nafional Bank where the obligatory minimum reserves is stated as 12 % of liquid claims and is non-inferest
bearing. The Bank must maintain the obligatory minimum reserves in accounts with the respective central banks. Compliance
with this requirement is measured using the average daily closing balance over the whole month.

With regard fo the current uncertain situation on the financial markets, the Group has a prudent liquidity policy and holds a
significant part of its liquidity surplus in highly liquid assets. Highly liquid assets include balances with the central banks, short
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tferm deposits in financial institutions and highly liquid corporate and government bonds. The Group decides on placements
based on the credibility of the counterparty and the offered condifions.

7. DUE FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

in MCZK 2015 2014
Current accounts with banks 1,658 2,988
Term deposits and loans up fo 3 months 73 745
Term deposits and loans over 3 months 70 70
Subordinated loans fo banks 217 222
Loans due fram banks - repurchase agreements 2,411 2,299
Loans fo centfral banks — repurchase agreements 30,000 -
Promissory notes over 3 months - 38
Other receivables 50 802
Total 34,379 7.164

There were no overdue current accounts with banks as of 31 December 2016 and 31 December 2074.
The contractual weighted average interest rate on deposits and loans with other banks was 0.28 % p.a. (2014: 2.49 % p.a.).
8. DERIVATIVES

(a) Derivatives held for trading:

2015 2015 2015 2015

Notional Notional Fair value Fair value

in MCZK amount buy amount sell Positive Negative
Forward currency contracts 35,410 (35,415) 75 (85)
Option contracts for share purchase 897 (818) 81 -
Option contracts for commodity purchase 197 (198]) 1 -
Currency derivative transactions IFRS b 393 (390) - -

Total as at 31 December 2015 36,897 (36,819) 157 [85)
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2014 2014 2014 2014

Notional Notional Fair value Fair value

in MCZK amount buy amount sell Positive Negative
Forward currency contfracts 38,968 (39,184) 99 (320]
Option contracts for share purchase 810 (751 59 -
Option contracts for commodity purchase 3562 [355) 1 -
Total as at 31 December 2014 40,130 (40,290) 159 (320)

All derivatives held for frading are classified as level 2 according to the fair value hierarchy.

Purchased and written options are recognized in the frading portfolio. Written options comprise derivatives embedded in
structured client deposifs. The Group has purchased matching optfions (with the same underlying assets, maturity and strike
prices] from third parties in order fo hedge the exposures. Accordingly, the fair value of the purchased options portfolio equals
to the fair value of the sum of the written options.

Forward currency confracts are commitments fo either purchase or fo sell a designated currency at a specified datfe for a
specified price. Forward currency contfracts result in a credit exposure at a specified future date for a specified price. Forward
currency contracts also resulf in exposure to market risk based on changes in quoted market prices relafive fo the contracted
amounts.

Although all these derivatives represent an economic hedge, they are presented as trading.

The foreign currency structure of these fransactions was as follows:

CzK EUR ush RUB other
LONG POSITION
31 December 20156 78% 19% 1% 1% 3%
31 December 2014 83% 15% 1% - 1%

The foreign currency structure of the second leg of these fransactions was as follows:

CzZK EUR usD RUB other
SHORT POSITION
31 December 2015 7% B89% 8% 1% 5%
31 December 2014 14% 68% 7% - 1%
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(b) Derivatives held for risk management:

Fair value hedging

2015 2015 2015 2015

Notional Notional Fair value Fair value

in MCZK amount buy amount sell Positive Negativ
Forward currency contracts 8,065 (6,083) 3 -
Total as at 31 December 2015 6,055 (6,063) 3 -
2014 2014 2014 2014

Notional Notional Fair value Fair value

in MCZK amount buy amount sell Pasitive Negativ
Forward currency contracts 11,499 (12,042) - (802)
Total as at 31 December 2014 11,4989 (12,042) - (602)

All derivatives held for risk management are classified as level 2 according to fair value hierarchy.
The objective of this hedge is to cover the fareign currency exposure fo changes in fair value of financial assetfs available for
sale and investment in equity accounted investees denominated in foreign currency over the hedging period. The Group uses

currency forwards to reach effectiveness within the hedging relationship.

9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS, FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE AND
FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD TO MATURITY

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— domestic 316 133
— fareign 53 58
Allotment certificates
— fareign 1 24
Bonds
— domestic 1,040 8,907
— fareign 1,329 2,157

Total 2,739 9,279
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2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— listed 369 191
Allotment certificates
— not listed 1 24
Bonds
— listed 2,369 9,084
Total 2,739 9,279

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— corpaorate 278 148
— financial instifufions 90 45
Allotment certificates
- financial institutions 1 24
Bonds
— government 607 6,038
- financial institutions 832 1163
— internatfional institutions - 8
— corpaorate 930 1,863
Total 2,739 9,279

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— Level 1 - quoted market price 367 187
— Level 3 — calculated using valuation techniques 2 4
Allotment certificates
— Level 1T - quoted market price 1 24
Bonds
— Level 1 - quofed market price 2,313 8,874
- Level 3 - calculated using valuation fechniques 56 180
Total 2,739 9,279

Foreign bonds include mainly company bonds of CZK 1102 million (2014: CZK 1706 million) in the sfructure of Luxembourgian
bonds of CZK 317 million (2014: CZK 216 million), Slovakian bonds of CZK 234 million (2014: CZK 430 million), Cyprian bonds of
CZK 204 million (2014: CZK 237 million) and Dutch bonds aof CZK 170 million (2014: CZK 285 million).

Foreign government bonds totalling to CZK 227 million (2014: CZK 416 million) represent Poland government bonds of CZK
163 million (2014: CZK 72 million) and Turkish government bonds of CZK 84 million (2014: CZK 40 million).

No movements from level 1to level 2 occurred in 20156 and in 2014,
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The contractual weighted average interest rate on bonds was 5.35 % p.a. (2014: 3.056 % p.a.).

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of Level 3 financial assets that are recorded at

fair value:

in MCZK Shares Bonds Total
Balance as at 1 January 2015 4 190 194
Addition - 58 58
Disposal (2) (180) (182)
Effects of movements in foreign exchange - (10) (o)
Accrued inferest - (2) (2)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 2 56 58

The Group regularly monitors changes in market conditions of particular financial assefs and in case there are available quoted
prices of those financial assets on the active market, those are transferred from Level 3 o Level 1. In 2015, the Group did not
fransfer from Level 3 to Level 1any bonds and shares (2014: CZK 321 million, CZK 20 million).

(b) Financial assets available for sale:

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— domestic 189 272
- foreign 136 175
Allotment certificates
— domestic 3,127 2,497
— fareign 1,944 1,192
Bonds
— domestic 3,713 11,440
— fareign 8,331 6,626
Promissory notes
— fareign 3 "

Total 15,442 22,113
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2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— listed 324 315
- not listed - 132
Allotment certificates
- not listed 5,071 3,689
Bonds
- listed 8,913 16,824
- not listed 1131 1142
Promissory notes
- not listed 3 i
Total 15,442 22,113

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
- financial institutions - 21
— corparate 324 4286
Allotment certificates
— financial institutions 5,067 3,689
— corpaorate 4 -
Bonds
— government 3,782 1,706
- financial institutions 1,695 1,369
— corparate 4,687 4,892
Promissory notes
- financial institutions 3 "

Total 15,442 22,113
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2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— Level 1 - quoted market price 162 239
— Level 2 — derived from guoted prices - 58
— Level 3 - calculated using valuation fechnigques 162 150
Allotment certificates
— Level 1 - quoted market price 4,969 3,682
— Level 2 — derived from guoted prices 102 7
Bonds
— Level 1 - quoted market price 5,849 14,0656
— Level 2 — derived from guoted prices 10 16
— Level 3 — calculated using valuation fechnigues 4,185 3,895
Promissory notes
— Level 2 — derived from guoted prices 3 M
Total 15,442 22113

Foreign shares in portfolio as at 31 December 2016 comprise mainly Slovakian company shares of CZK 120 million (2014: CZK
74 million).

Foreign allotment certificates comprise mainly of Malta cerfificates of CZK 1 816 million [2014: CZK 1188 million) and Slovakian
certificates of CZK 129 million (2014: CZK 4 million).

Foreign bonds in portfolio as at 31 December 2015 comprise mainly of Slovakian company bonds of CZK 6 350 million (2014:
CZK 5 076 million), Croatian company bonds of CZK 408 million (2014: CZK 514 million), Luxembourgian company bonds of CZK
369 million (2014: CZK 237 million), and bonds of Great Britain companies of CZK 194 million (2014: CZK 200 million).

No movements from level 11o level 2 occurred in 2015 and in 2014.

The contractual weighted average interest rate on bonds was 3.06 % p.a. (2014: 1.90 % p.a.).

The contfractual weighted average interest rate on promissory notes was 2.6 % p.a. (2014: 6.00 % p.a.).

In 2015, the Group has idenfified an impairment of financial assets available for sale amounting fo CZK 32 million. Impairment

resulted in permanent decrease of market price of an individual financial asset available for sale. In 2014, the impairment arose
from the decrease of the share capital of the security's issuer amounting to CZK 62 million.
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The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of Level 3 financial assetfs that are recorded at

fair value:

in MCZK Shares Bonds Total
Balance as at 1 January 2015 150 3,895 4,045
Gains / (losses]) recognised in profit or loss (2] (18) (18]
Gains / (losses] recognised in equity (1 (35] (36]
Addition 121 1,830 1,851
Disposal (74) (1,457) (1,631)
Impairment (32) - (32)
Interest income - (32) (32)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 162 4,185 4,347

The Group regularly monitors changes in market conditions of particular financial assets and in case there are available quoted
prices of those financial assetfs on the active market, those are transferred from Level 3 to Level 1. In 2015, the Group did not
fransfer from Level 3 fo Level 1any bonds and shares (2014: CZK 839 million, CZK O million).

(c] Financial assets held to maturity:

2015 2014
in MCZK Amortised cost Amaortised cost
Bonds
— fareign 609 1,329
Total 609 1,329

2015 2014
in MCZK Amortised cost Amortised cost
Bonds
- listed 609 1,329
Total 609 1,329

2015 2014
in MCZK Amortised cost Amaortised cost
Bonds
- financial institutions - 18
— corpaoratfe 609 1,31
Total 609 1,329

Foreign bonds comprise of Hungarian corporate bonds of CZK 809 million (2014: CZK 893 million).

The contractual weighted average interest rate on bonds was 5.88 % p.a. (2014: 6.14 % p.a.).
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10. REPURCHASE AND RESALE AGREEMENTS

(a) Resale agreements

The Group purchases financial assets under agreements to resell them at future dates (‘reverse repurchase agreements").
The seller commits to repurchase the same or similar instfruments at an agreed future date. Legal right to financial assets is
transferred to the Group, respectively enfity which is a loan provider. Reverse repurchases are enfered into as a facility to
provide funds fo customers. As of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, assets purchased pursuant fo the agreements
fo resell them were as follows:

Fair value Carrying
of assetfs held amount Repurchase Repurchase
in MCZK as collateral of receivable date price
Loans to banks (note 7) 33,8862 32,411 To 3 months 32,415
Loans and advances to customers (note 11) 4,882 3,163 To 1 Year 3172
Total as at 31 December 2015 38,744 35,5664 35,687
Fair value Carrying
of assefs held amount Repurchase Repurchase
in MCZK as collateral of receivable date price
Loans to banks (note 7] 3,690 2,299 To 3 months 2,312
Loans and advances to customers (note 11) 8,192 5,644 To 6 Months 5,759
Total as at 31 December 2014 11,882 7,843 8,071

(b) Repurchase agreements

Transactions where securities are sold under a repurchase agreement (repo fransaction) at a predetermined price are accounted
for as loans collateralised by the securifies. The legal fitle fo the respective securities is fransferred fa the lender. However, the
securities fransferred under a repo fransaction are still recognised in the statement of financial position. The price for the sold
securities are recognised as a liability and presented under 'Deposits and loans from banks" or "Deposits from customers”.

Fair value Carrying
of assefs given amount Repurchase Repurchase
in MCZK as collateral of liability date price
Loans from banks (note 19) 57 57 To 1 Month 57
Loans and advances from customers (note 20] 132 131 To 6 Months 131
Total as at 31 December 2015 189 188 188
Fair value Carrying
of assetfs given amount Repurchase Repurchase
in MCZK as collateral of liability date price
Loans from banks (note 19) 678 679 To 6 Months 879
Loans and advances from customers (note 20) 34 36 To 3 months 356

Total as at 31 December 2014 712 714 714
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As at 31 December 2015, the Group sold securities under repurchase agreements at CZK 57 million (2014: CZK 839 million),
which are recognized in the sftatement of financial position, and securities under repurchase agreements at CZK 34 million
(2014: CZK 34 million) which were purchased under reverse repurchase operations before.

1. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

in MCZK 2015 2014
Loans and advances to custfomers 67,481 62,790
Loans and advances to customers — repurchase agreements 3,163 5,644
Bank overdraft 4,870 3,602
Debt securities — promissory notfes 534 220
Other receivables 169 121
Less allowances for impairment of loans (note 12) (1539] (1 007)
Total net loans and advances to customers 74,668 71,170

Loans and advances fo customers as at 31 December 2016 include loans amounting o CZK 21586 million (2014: CZK 19 292
million) where the repayment of the loans is dependent upon the successful realization of the assets whose acquisition was
financed by the relevant loans. These assets are pledged in favour of the Group. The Group classifies any loans, the repayment
of which depends directly on the sale (realisation) of the financed assetfs (which may also serve as loan security), as loans
dependent on asset realisafion. The financed assefs may comprise both tangible and infangible assetfs. The Group recognises
the loans dependent on asset realisation according fo the actual nature of each individual loan.

Allowances for impairment of loans and advances to cusfomers are determined and created based upon management's best
estimate of the present value of the cash flows that are expected fo be received. In estimating these cash flows, management
makes judgements about a debtor's financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral as well as
guarantees from third parties. Methodology for allowance creation is described in note 4. Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions.

The amount of non-nterest bearing loans as at 31 December 2015 totalled to CZK 208 million (2014: CZK 107 million). These
loans were mastly acquired from the former Podnikatelska banka or loans that are after due and therefore bearing no inferest.
Receivables from these loans are fully impaired.

The contractual weighted average interest rate on loans to customers was 8.63 % p.a. (2014: 7.21 % p.a.).

The contractual weighted average interest rate on promissory notes was 1.08 % p.a. (2014: 8.96 % p.a.).

For the additional information about Loans and advances fo customers refer to note 40.
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12. ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT OF LOANS

in MCZK 2015 2014
1 January 1,007 1,224
Charge / (reversal) in the reporting period 743 284
Use / write-offs (143] (478)
Transfer to IFRS 5 (58) -
Currency difference (10) (28]
Total as at 31 December 2015 1,639 1,007

13. INVESTMENT PROPERTY

Investment property include building in the property of Interznanie, 0AO amounting to CZK 363 million (2014: CZK 426 million).
Investment fair value is deftermined based on the independent expert opinion, assuming expected income and valuation of
similar properties that have been analysed using the relevant market parameters available at valuation date (see section 3 (f)
- Investment property).

Investment property is fully insured as at 31 December 2015.

Enfire investment property is classified as Level 3 according fo fair value hierarchy.

in MCZK 2015 2014
1 January 425 646
Change (1) -
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (51) [221)
Total as at 31 December 2015 363 425

In 2075 there was a change in the share of leased area building companies in the consolidation scope of the Group which
affected the amount of investment property.

Rental income from investment property of CZK 36 million (2014: CZK 75 million) has been recognized in other operating income.
Operating expenses directly attributable to investment property of CZK 5 million (2014: CZK 7 million) have been recognized in
ofher operating expenses.
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14. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The movements during the period were as follows:

Fixtures,

Land and fittings and
in MCZK buildings equipment Total
COST
1 January 2014 183 86 269
Additions 4 24 28
Acquisitions through business combinations 1652 18 170
Disposals - (4) (4)
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (102) (12) (Mm4)
31 December 2014 237 12 349
AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
1 January 2014 10 48 58
Depreciation 12 20 32
Disposals - (4) (4)
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (5) (9) (14)
31 December 2014 17 55 72
COST
1 January 2015 237 12 349
Additions 132 16 148
Transfer to IFRS 5 (48] 7] (53)
Disposals - (2) (2)
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (18) (2) (20]
31 December 2015 305 17 422
AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
1 January 2015 17 55 72
Depreciation 7 15 22
Transfer to IFRS 5 - (4) (4]
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (2) (3)
31 December 2015 22 63 85
NET BOOK VALUE
31 December 2014 220 57 277
31 December 2015 283 54 337

Property is insured against theft and natural disaster.

The acquisitions through business combinations are represented by the property owned by the newly acquired subsidiary. In
2015, there was no effect from acquisitions (2014: Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin).
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15. INTANGIBLE ASSETS AND GOODWILL

The movements during the period were as follows:

Other Assets

intangible under
in MCZK Software assefs Goodwill  constfruction Total
COST
1 January 2014 242 130 571 56 999
Additions 54 - - 2 56
Transfer 55 - - (65) -
Acquisitions through business combinations - 2 5 24 31
Disposals (1 - - - (1)
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (3] - (140) - (143)
31 December 2014 347 132 436 27 942
AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
1 January 2014 192 71 166 - 429
Amortisation 41 17 - - 58
Impairment - - 290 - 280
Disposals m - - - m
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (2] - (115) - 7]
31 December 2014 230 88 341 - 659
COST
1 January 2015 347 132 436 27 942
Additions 51 1 - 3 5b
Transfer to IFRS 5 43 - (74) (49) (80)
Disposals (8) - - - (6)
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (2] 1 (20) - (21)
31 December 2015 433 134 342 (19]) 890
AMORTIZATION AND IMPAIRMENT LOSSES
1 January 2015 230 88 341 - 659
Amortisation 63 17 - - 80
Transfer to IFRS & (4) - (74) - (78)
Impairment - - 656 - 656
Disposals (2] - - - (2]
Effect of movement in foreign exchange (2] 1 (20) - (21)
31 December 2015 285 106 312 - 703
NET BOOK VALUE
31 December 2014 17 44 95 27 283
31 December 2015 148 28 30 (19]) 187

There was no increase in goodwill in 2016 [2014: Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin CZK 5 million), (see the note 48).



Financial Part | Consolidated Financial Statements 75

Based on the impairment testfing, a loss in respect of goodwill allocated fo the cash generating unit was recognized atf the
subsidiary ATLANTIK financni trhy, a.s. amounting to CZK 85 million [2014: CZK 50 million) and at Interznanie, OAQ cash
generating unit amounting to CZK O million (2014: CZK 240 million).

16. OPERATING LEASES

(a) Leases entered into as lessee
The Group has non-cancellable operating lease payables as follows:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Less than one year 14 92
Between one and five years 360 316
Mare than five years 38 100
Total 502 507

(b) Leases entered into as lessor
The Group leases out its headquarters fo other companies under operating leases. The Group has non-cancellable operating
lease receivables as follows:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Less than one year 36 74
Between one and five years 44 181
Total 80 255

17. PREPAYMENTS, ACCRUED INCOME AND OTHER ASSETS

in MCZK 2015 2014
Prepayments and accrued income 81 104
Receivables from custfomers fram securities frading 539 239
Other frading receivables 343 348
Receivables from fees for portfolio management 32 23
Other receivables 63 169
Advance payments — ofher 30 20
Allowances for impairment of other assets (4) (4]
Total 1,084 899

Other frading receivables as at 31 December 2015 include fees for the issue of bonds and promissory nofes of CZK 57 million
(2014: CZK 261 million) and large number of sundry items that are not significant on an individual basis.
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Allowances for impairment of other assets:

in MCZK 2015 2014
1 January 4 8
Charged / (reversed) in the period 10 1
Use / write-offs (1 (5]
Transfer fo IFRS b (9) -
Total as at 31 December 2015 4 4

18. DISPOSAL GROUPS HELD FOR SALE
The disposal group consists principally of companies which are intended to be sold or contributed in-kind as part of the Group's
on-going reorganisation plan in 2016.

The structure of the assetfs and liabilities of the disposal group held for sale is as follows:

2015

2015 J&T Ostfravice 2015 2015

in MCZK J&T Bank, a.o. Active Life UPF Other Total
Assets associated with assets held for sale 4,809 107 48 4,962
Liabilities associated with assets held for sale 2,961 - - 2,961
Net amount of disposal group held for sale 1,848 107 486 2,001

2014

J&T Ostravice 2014

in MCZK Active Life UPF Total
Assetfs associated with assetfs held for sale 130 130

Liabilities assaociated with assets held for sale - -

Net amount of disposal group held for sale 130 130
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The net profit structure of the disposal group held for sale for the year ended as aft 31 December 2015 is presented by the

company J&T Bank, a.0. The structure is as follows:

in MCZK 2015
Interest income 4864
Interest expense (268]
Net interest income 196
Fee and commission incame 27
Fee and commission expense (4)
Net fee and commission income 23
Net frading income 828
Other operating income M
Operating income 1,046
Personnel expenses (77)
Other operating expenses (48]
Depreciation and amortisation (2]
Operating expenses (127)
Profit before provisions, allowances and income tax expenses 920
Net change in provisions from financial activities M
Net change in allowances for impairment of loans (83)
Profit before tax, excluding profit from equity accounted investees 835
Profit before tax 835
Income tax expenses (48]
Profit for the period 787
CASH FLOWS FROM (USED IN) DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Net cash flows from (used in) operating activities (1,018)
Net cash flows from [used in) investing activities (431)
Net cash flows from (used in) financing activities 1,971
Net cash flows from (used in) discontinued operations 522
19. DEPOSITS AND LOANS FROM BANKS

Deposits and loans from banks comprise:

in MCzZK 2015 2014
Depaosits from banks 4,202 3,937
Loans from banks — repurchase agreements 57 679
Tota 4,259 4,616

The contractual weighted average inferest rate on deposits and loans from banks was 0.73 % p.a. as at 31 December 2015

(2014: 0.91% p.al.

77
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20. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

Deposifs from customers comprise:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Current accounts 40,5633 11,009
Term deposifs 81,073 95,814
Depositary notes - 32
Loans from cusfomers — repurchase agreements 131 36
Other 75 58
Total 121,812 106,946

The contfractual weighted average interest rate on deposits from customers was 173 % p.a. as af 31 December 2015
(2014: 2.43 % p.a.).

21. SUBORDINATED DEBT

Subordinated debt at amortised cost:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Issued subordinated bonds 874 690
Subordinated debt — term deposit from customers 1,375 1,218
Total 2,049 1,908

On 28 February 2007, the Bank issued subordinated bonds with a notional amount of EUR 25 million maturing in 2022. The
interest rate was 4.76 % p.a. as at 31 December 2016 (2014: 617 % p.a.).

The subordinated debt — term deposit from customers with a maturity up fo 2024 bear an inferest rate between 5 % and 8 %
p.a.

Czech National Bank approved the subordinated debt as a part of the capital for regulatory purposes.
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22. OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Other liabilities and provisions:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Trade payables 141 161
Ofher liabilities 654 130
Provision for employee bonuses 529 418
Provision for off-balance sheet items 74 51
Provision for layalty programmes - cusfomers 120 88
Provision for layalty programmes — employees 2 3
Other current pravisions 33 18
Payables to employees 30 29
Payables related to social cosfs 14 14
Payables from securities of clients at frader’s disposal 4,824 2,708
Estimated payables, accruals and deferred income 183 175
Other tax liabilities 65 51
Total 6,669 3,847

Other liabilities primarily include payables from clearing of CZK 10 million (2014: CZK 26 million), liabilities to securities markets
CZK 377 milion (2014: CZK O milion) and incoming and outgoing payments from nostro accounts of CZK 8 million
(2014:; CZK 3 million).

A provision for employee bonuses is established in relation to the approval of Group employees' annual bonuses. The annual bonus
is defined as variable benefit component of employee remuneration which the company may grant and pay to an employee in
proportion fo his job performance in the evaluated period, most commonly a year. It also comprises the management bonuses with
deferred due payment. The Group's remuneration policy is in accordance with the policies of risk management and remuneration
in accordance with Decree 1683/2014 Coll, on the performance of the activities of banks, credit unions and investment firms.

The loyalty programme (Magnus) has been established to provide non-monetary performances to employees in relation to the
employment and similar relationships, and bonuses and to customers when they sign up for any of selected Group products.
Since the performance is provided for an unlimited period of time and the withdrawals can be made continuously, the provision
for loyalty programme is a long-term one. The Group establishes a provision for loyalty programme for bonuses o customers
of CZK 120 million (2014: CZK 88 million) and fo employees of CZK 2 million (2014: CZK 3 million).

A provision for off-balance sheet items comprises in particular the provision for the loan promises and guarantees of
CZK 74 million (2014: CZK 51 million).

As af 31 December 2016, other provisions amounted to CZK 33 million (2014: CZK 18 million). It is expected that these provisions
will be ufilised after 12 or more months after the balance sheet date. These provisions include in particular a provision for unpaid
premium inferest from municipal deposits and a provision for commission fees in respect of the bond emission.
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Provisions:
Balance Fareign Balance
as at Additions / exchange as at
in MCZK 1.1.2015 Creations Use difference 31.12.2015
Employee bonuses 418 440 (327) (2) 529
Off-balance sheet items 51 40 (18] (2] 74
Loyalty programmes — cusfomers 88 32 - - 120
Loyalty programmes - employees 3 2 (3) - 2
Other current provisions 18 22 (7] - 33
Total 578 536 (352) (4) 758

23. SHARE CAPITAL, RETAINED EARNINGS, CAPITAL FUNDS AND OTHER RESERVES

On November 10, 2016 the J&T Bank's sole shareholder J§T FINANCE GROUP SE increased share capital of the Bank by
subscription of new shares totaling CZK 1 080 million.

Share capital is fully paid and consists of.

in MCZK 2015
10 837 126 ordinary shares with a nominal value of CZK 1 000 per share 10,637

700 000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of CZK 1.43 per share 1

Total share capital 10,638

The Group does not provide any employee incentive scheme involving the option fo buy own shares, or remuneration in the
form of equity options.

The allocation of the profit will be approved at the General Meeting. The Group's Management assumes that the profit will not
be paid as a dividend fo shareholders.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are distfributable to the Group's shareholders and are subject fo the shareholders meeting resolution. As at
31 December 2015, retained earnings amounted to CZK 5 169 million (2014: CZK 4 432 million). For detail of retained earnings
refer to Consolidated statement of changes in equity.

Capital funds
Capifal funds consist of a special purpose fund for income distribution from subordinated income certificates and other non-

distributable capital funds.

For details related fo the special purpose fund refer fo last paragraph in Other capifal instruments.
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According to a new Czech legal framewaork which does naot require maintaining the statutory reserve fund any longer, and policy
of the Group, the amount recognized as stafufory reserve fund was transferred fo other capital funds reported as a part of
retained earnings.

The other non-distributable capital funds amounted to CZK 18 million as at 31 December 2016 (2014: CZK 83 million).
Translation and revaluation reserve

Translation and revaluation reserve comprise the items arisen from the following:

— changes in the fair value of financial assets available for sale;

— all foreign exchange difference arising from the franslation of the financial statements of foreign operations that are not
infegral To tThe operations of the Group.

The sum of translafion and revaluation reserve was negatfive as at 31 December 2015 amounting fo CZK 1 425 million
(2014: CZK 536 million).

Other capital instruments

Other capital instruments comprise issued subordinated unsecured revenue cerfificates with fixed inferest revenue subject
to approval of, with no fixed maturity dafe. The cerfificates are hybrid financial instruments combining the economic features
of capital and debt securities. These cerfificates are also considered capital instruments compliant with the conditions for the
inclusion thereof info the additional Tier 1 capital (AT1). This inclusion is subject to the approval by the Czech National Bank.

On 19 June 2014, the Czech National Bank approved the prospectus of revenue cerfificate emission of tofal estimated value of
CZK 1 000 million with expected revenue of 10 % p.a.

On 12 September 2075, the Czech National Bank approved the prospectus of second revenue certificate emission of fotal
estimated value of CZK 1 000 million with expected revenue of 9 % p.a.

On 11 December 2015, the Czech National Bank approved the praspectus of third revenue certificate emission of tofal estimated
value of EUR 50 million with expected revenue of 3 % p.a.

As af 31 December 2015, the volume of outstanding certificated reached CZK 1742 million (2014: CZK 833 million).

On 30 June 2014, the Bank's Board of Directors also approved the establishment of a purpose-built capital fund for the payment
of revenue from certificates of CZK 100 million. This fund was created from refained earnings. In 2015, another CZK 100 million
was fransferred fo this fund from the 2014 profit. The payment of revenue from certificates is governed by the conditions
defined in the prospectus. In 2015, revenue of CZK 108 million (2014: CZK 20 million) was paid out from the fund.
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24. NON-CONTROLLING INTEREST

in MCZK 2015 2014
J&T Bank, a.o. 1 2
Interznanie, OAO (4) (7]
TERCES MANAGEMENT LIMITED B B8
J&T REALITY, o.p.f. 810 840
Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin 19 173
ART FOND - Stredoeurdpsky fond su¢asného umenia, a. s. M 12
Total 743 826

The following fable provides information on companies from the consolidation Group that have a significant non-controlling

interest.
31. 12. 2015

J&T REALITY, Vaba d.d. banka
in MCZK o.p.f. Varazdin
Non-contralling interest 48.92 % 2319 %
Assets 1,303 5,941
Liabilities 3 5,206
Net assets 1,300 736
Carrying amount of non-confrolling interest 610 139
Income 92 313
Profit for the period (B5) (193]
Total profit for the period (65) (193]
Profit for the period attributable fo non-controlling interest (30) (60)
Cash flows from operating acftivities 44 274
Cash flows from financing activities - (108]

Cash flows from investing activities - -

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 44 168




Financial Part | Consolidated Financial Statements

31.12. 2014

J&T REALITY, Vaba d.d. banka
in MCZK o.p.f. Varazdin
Non-contralling interest 48.92% 41.67%
Assets 1,401 4,841
Liabilities 37 4,407
Net assets 1,364 435
Carrying amount of non-controlling interest 640 173
Income 91 166
Profit for the period B2 (37)
Total profit for the period 62 (37)
Profit for the period attributable to non-controlling inferest 29 (14)
Cash flows from operating activities (244) 7
Cash flows fram financing acftivities - 26
Cash flows from investing activities 219 -
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents [(25) 33

83

25. INCOME TAX

Income tax was calculated in accordance with Czech tax regulations at the rate of 19% in 2016 (2014: 19%). The income tax rate
for 2016 will be 19%.

The Slovak branch pays tax in accordance with Slovak tax law. The fax paid by the branch in Slovakia is offset against the
income tax for the Bank as a whole paid in the Czech Republic. The income tax rate in Slovakia for 2015 is 22% (2014: 22%). As
from 1 January 2016 the fax rate in Slovakia is 22%.

The Czech Republic currently has a number of laws related fo various faxes imposed by governmental authorities. Applicable
taxes include value-added tax, corporate tax, and payroll (social) taxes and various others. Tax declarations, fogether with other
legal compliance areas (such as cusfoms and currency control matters) are subject 1o review and investigation by a number
of authorities, who are enabled by law fo impose fines, penalties and inferest charges. This results in fax risks in the Czech
Republic which are substantially mare significant than typically found in countries with more developed tax systems.

Effects of different tax rates of subsidiaries are faken info account when calculating income fax in fofal and are represented by
row "Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions”. The income tax rate in Russia for 2015 is 20% (2014: 20%). The income tax rafe

in Croatia for 2015 is 20% (2014: 20%).

Management believes that it has adequately provided for the tax liabilities in the accompanying consolidated financial statements.
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The reconciliation of the expected income tax expense is as follows:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Profit before fax 1,376 1,723
Tax non-deductible expenses 1,731 1,201
Non-taxable revenues and tax refund for the last period (1,704) (955]
Statufory income tax rate 18% 19%
Income tax expenses (267) (374)
Effect of tax rates in foreign jurisdictions (8) (7]
Income tax expenses Total (261) [381)
of which:

Deferred tax [expense) / revenue 35 19
Current tax (expense) (298] (400)
Effective tax rate 19 % 221%

The main adjustments when calculating the taxable profit from the accounting profit relate fo tax exempt income and expenses
fo be added fo the fax base. The main non-deductible expenses are tax non-deductible provisions fo receivables, gifts and
representation expenses.

26. DEFERRED TAX

The Group has the following deferred fax assetfs and liabilities:

in MCZK 2015 2014
DEFERRED TAX ASSET / [LIABILITY)

Property, plant and equipment (7] (4)
Unpaid interest, net - m
Financial assefs at fair value through profit or loss - 7
Financial assets available for sale (14) (19)
Investment property (64) (80)
Tax losses - 4
Ofher femporary differences 18 84
Net deferred tax asset / [liability) 33 (9]

The deferred fax asset and liability is calculated using the 2016 income tax rate of 19 %, for J&T Bank, a.0. 20 %, Vaba d.d. banka
Varazdin 20 % and for JGT Banka Slovak Branch 22 % (2015: 18 %, 20 %, 20 % and 22 %).

The following table shows the reconciliation between the deferred tax charge and the change in deferred fax liabilities in 2015.
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in MCZK 2015 2014
Deferred tax liability, net as at 1 January (9) (88]
Incoming from business combinatfion - 4
Deferred tax expense in the period (see note 26) 356 19
Deferred tax recognized in equity (8) 18
Currency difference 10 50
Transfer fo IFRS b 3 -
Net deferred tax asset / (liability) 33 (9]

The following table shows the net deferred fax by company as at 31 December 2015;

in MCZK Asset Liability Net
DEFERRED TAX

J&T BANKA, a.s. [parent company]) 88 - 88
ATLANTIK finanéni trhy, a.s. - (2] (2]
Interznanie OAQ - (B4) (B4]
Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin il - i
Net deferred tax asset / [liability) ag (e8] 33

The following fable shows the net deferred fax by company as at 31 December 2014:

in MCZK Asset Liability Net
DEFERRED TAX

J & T BANKA, a.s. [parent company] 70 - 70
J&T INVESTICNI SPOLECNQST, a.s. - () (1
ATLANTIK finanéni trhy, a.s. - (3] (3)
Interznanie, OAO - (80] (80)
J&T Bank, a.o. - (7] (7]
Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin 12 - 12

Net deferred tax asset liability 82 (91) (9]
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27. INTEREST INCOME

in MCZK 2016 2014

Interest income from:

Due from financial institutions 18 42
Loans and advances to customers 4,785 4,541
Repo fransactions 310 287
Bonds and other fixed income securities 568 9056
Other operations 20 21
Total 5,689 5,796

Item "Loans and advances fo customers” includes commissions for origination of loans of CZK 50 million (2014: CZK 48 million),
which are part of effective inferest ratfe.

Inferest income according to classes of assets:

in MCZK 2016 2014

Interest income from:

Financial assetfs at fair value through profit or loss:

— those held for trading 226 215
— those designated af initial recognition 1 141
Financial assefs available for sale 271 482
Financial assefs held fo maturity 80 89
Loans and other receivables 5111 4,869
- of which: Impaired loans and receivables 287 67
— of which: Forbereance 160 142
Total 5,689 5,796

28. INTEREST EXPENSE

in MCZK 2015 2014
Intferest expense on:

Deposits and loans from banks (30] (61
Deposits from customers (2,613] (2,769]
Repo transactions (3] (2)
Subordinated bonds and promissory notes (36] (39]
Other operations (18] (24)

Total (2,601) (2,885)




Financial Part | Consolidated Financial Statements 87

Inferest expense according fo classes of liabilities:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Intferest expense on:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (2,682)] (2,881)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (19] (24)
Total (2,601) [2,885)

29. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

in MCzK 2016 2014

Fee and commission incame from:

Securities and derivatives for customers 680 616
Loan activities 54 67
Payment fransactions 47 94
Other 12 20
Total 793 797

30. FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

in MCZK 2015 2014
Fee and commission expense on:

Transactions with securities (151) (124)
Payment transactions (19] (20)
Other (18) (11
Total (188) (155)

31. NET TRADING INCOME

in MCzZK 2015 2014
Realised and unrealised losses on financial instruments af fair value 218 296
Net gains / (losses] on derivative operations (4564) (1.079)
Realised and unrealised gains (losses) from receivables - m
Net profit / (loss) from foreign currency translation 408 943
Net gains / (losses) on hedging derivative operations m m
Dividend income 26 1

Total net trading income 196 159
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Net frading income comprises of:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Financial assefs and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:

- those held for trading (329] (1,005)
— those designated at initial recognition - 22
Financial assetfs available for sale 19 200
Profit or loss from loans and other receivables - 1)
Exchange rate differences 4086 943
Total 196 1569

32. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

in MCZK 2015 2014
Rental income from investment property 35 75
Rental income 1 -
Profit from transfer of FI with control and significant influence 78 -
Revenues from services and consulfing 66 68
Income from rendered operating leases 25 17
Income from re-invoicing of services 5 4
Other income 93 86
Total 303 250

Other income of CZK 93 million at 31 December 2016 (2014: CZK 86 million) includes a large number of sundry items that are
not significant on an individual basis.

33. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

in MCZK 2015 2014
Wages and salaries (668]) (809]
Directors' and Supervisory Board members' remuneration and wages (34) (30]
Compulsory soc. security contributions (148) (135)
Other social costs (20] (19)
Total personnel expenses (867) (793)
Average number of employees during the reporfing period 689 688

There were 24 members of the Group's Board of Directors at 31 December 2015 (2014: 24).
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34. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

in MCZK 2015 2014
Rent expense (139] (129)
Contributions to Deposit Insurance Fund (177) (150)
Taxes and fees (64] (97)
OPERATING COSTS:

Consulting expenses (27) (18)
Communication expenses (23] (18)
Materials (17) (27)
Advertising expenses and representation (181) (181)
Audit, legal and tax consulfing (50) (41)
Transport and accommodation, fravel expenses (19] (18]
Expenses from re-invoicing (5) (4)
Repairs and maintenance - IS, IT (45) (39)
Sponsoring and gifts (24) (16)
Services related fo rent (37) (33)
Qutsourcing (178) (138)
Expenses related to investment property (5] (7
Other operating costs (234) (202]
Total (1,203) (1.118)

Other operating costs of CZK 234 million at 31 December 20156 (2014: CZK 202 million) include a large number of sundry items
that are not significant on an individual basis.

Taxes and fees include a special bank levy to the Slovak Tax Authority. This levy does not fall within the scope of IAS 12 Income
Taxes. The Group considers the levy to be operational in nafure and has accrued the respective cost within "Other operating

expenses’.

35. ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FOR PURPOSES OF STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash Term Loans to Loans Current

and balances deposifs  central banks to banks — bank accountfs

with central in central banks - repurchase repurchase or up fo
in MCzZK banks up to 3 months agreements agreements 3 months Total
31 December 2013 264 7,855 - - 2,492 10,61
Change in 2014 511 3,108 - 2,299 1,241 71868
31 December 2014 775 10,963 - 2,299 3,733 17,770
Change in 2016 (300) 6,187 30,000 12 (2 102] 33,897
31 December 2015 475 17,1560 30,000 2,41 1,631 51,667

"Obligatory minimum reserves with central banks" is not included in "Cash and cash equivalents" for Statement of Financial
Position purposes.
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36. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Financial commitments and contingencies comprise:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Granted guaranfees 3,258 2,657
Unused credit lines 6,107 5,141
Securities held on behalf of clients 40,330 27427
Total 49,695 35,225

37. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Group's business and geographical segments. The primary format, business
segments, is based on the Group's management and internal reparting structure.

(a) Business segments

The Group comprises the following main business segments:
Financial markets

— Includes the trading and corporate finance activities, mainly activities within financial markets department regardless of
level of service and client business segment;
— Corporate Banking
- Includes loans, deposits and other fransactions and balances with corporate customers (including business segment:
corporations, non-profit organisations, financial institutions);
— Private Banking
- Includes loans, deposifs and other tfransactions and balances with private banking and premium banking customers (the
customer's aggregate sum of deposits with the Bank is at least CZK 3 million);
— Retail Banking
- Includes loans, deposits and other tfransactions and balances with retail customers (the cusfomer's aggregate sum of
deposits with the Bank is at least CZK 500 thousand);
- ALCO
— Includes balance sheet items of strategic imporfance that are managed by the Asset and Liability Committeg;
— Unallocated
— Includes balance sheet items that are not included in the segments abaove.

The Group also has a central Shared Services operation that manages the Group's premises and certfain corporate costs. Cost-
sharing agreements are used to allocate cenfral costs fo business segments on a reasonable basis.
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ALCO includes balance sheet items of strategic imporfance that are managed by the Asset and Liability Committee. The most
important items are:

— Financial assets available for sale and held to maturity

— Due from financial insfitutions

— Deposifs and loans from banks

— Cash and balances with cenfral banks

Personnel costs, operating expenses and depreciation charges that are naot allocated to business segments are included in the
segment "Unallocated".

Consolidated statement of financial pasition as at 31 December 2015:

Financial Caorporate Private Retail
in MCZK markets banking banking banking ALCO Unallocated Total
Cash and balances
with central banks - - - - 19,724 - 19,724
Due from financial institutions - 2,41 - - 31,968 - 34,379
Positive fair value of derivatives,
financial assefs 2,897 - - - 16,063 - 18,950
Investment in equity -
accounted invesfees - - - 35 - 35
Investment property - - - - - 363 363
Loans and advances
to customers 6,949 58,774 8,318 627 - - 74,668
Current fax assets - - - - - 63 63
Deferred fax assetfs - - - - - 99 99
Property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, goodwill,
prepayments, accrued income
and ofher assets - - - - - 1,608 1,608
Disposal groups held for sale - - - - 4,962 - 4,962
Total Assets 9,846 61,185 8,318 627 72,742 2,133 154,851
Negative fair value of derivatives 84 - - - 1 - 86
Depasits and loans from banks - - - - 4,268 - 4,258
Deposits from customers 104 42,987 23,122 55,699 - - 121,812
Subordinated debt - 1104 508 437 - - 2,048
Current tax liability - - - - - 5 5
Deferred tax liability - - - - - 66 66
Other liabilities and provisions - - - - - 6,669 6,669
Disposal groups held for sale - - - - 2,961 - 2,961

Total Liabilities 188 44,091 23,630 56,036 7,221 6,740 137,906
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Consalidated statement of financial position as at 31 Becember 2014

Financial Corporate Private Reftail
in MCZK markets banking banking banking ALCO Unallocated Total
Cash and balances
with central banks - - - - 13,339 - 13,339
Due from financial institutions - 2,299 - - 4,865 - 7164
Positive fair value of derivatives,
financial assets 9,438 - - - 23,442 - 32,880
Investment in equity
accounted investees - - - - 7,150 - 7,160
Investment property - - - - - 425 425
Loans and advances
to customers 8,675 51,807 9,768 932 - - 71170
Current tax assets - - - - - 2 2
Deferred fax assets - - - - - 82 82
Property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, goodwill,
prepayments, accrued income
and other assets - - - - - 1,459 1,459
Disposal groups held for sale - - - - 130 - 130
Total Assets 18,113 54,106 9,756 932 48,926 1,968 133,801
Negative fair value of derivatives 320 - - - 602 - 922
Deposits and loans from banks - - - - 4,616 - 4,616
Deposits from customers 19 39,697 20,247 46,983 — — 106,946
Subordinated debt - 11256 438 344 - - 1,908
Current tax liability - - - - - 128 128
Deferred tax liability - - - - - 91 91
Other liabilities and provisions - - - - - 3,847 3,847

Disposal groups held for sale - - - - - _ _

Total Liabilities 339 40,822 20,686 47,327 5,218 4,066 118,458
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Consalidated statement of comprehensive income for the period ended 31 Becember 2015:

Financial Corporate Private Retail
in MCZK markets banking banking banking ALCO Unallocated Total
Net interest income 237 1,752 629 339 124 7 3,088
Fee and commission income 687 88 4 13 1 - 793
Fee and commission expense (158) (28] - (4] - - (188]
Dividends from financial
assets available for sale - - - - 14 - 14
Impairment of assetfs
available for sale (32) - - - - - [(32)
Net trading income / (expense] 258 (60) - - - - 196
Other operating income 67 61 - 2 - 173 303
Operating income 1,059 1,813 633 3560 139 180 4174
Personnel expenses (129) (57) (142) (48] - (491) (867)
Other operating expenses (85) [(35) (28) [47) - (1,008] (1,203)
Depreciation and amortisation (10) (4) (1) (5] - (82) (102]
Goodwill impairment (65) - - - - - (65)
Profit before provisions,
allowances and income taxes 770 1,717 462 250 139 (1,401) 1,937
Net change in provisions
from financial activities - (23) - - - - (23)
Net change in allowances
for impairment of loans - (708) (8) (19) - - (731)
Profit before tax, excluding
profit from equity accounted
investees 770 988 456 231 139 (1,401) 1,183
Profit/(loss) from equity
accounted investees m - - - - 168 187
Profit before tax 769 988 456 231 139 (1,233) 1,350
Income tax expenses (135) (175) (81) (65) (39) 234 (261)
Continuing operations 634 813 375 166 100 (999) 1,089
Discontinued operations 57 195 - (121) 776 (120) 787
Profit for the period 691 1,008 375 45 876 (1,119) 1,876

The values disclosed are net of inter-segment fransactions and are submitted to the executive manager as such.

When assessing the performance of the segment and issuing the decision about the funds which should be allocated to the
segment, the executive manager decided that unallocated operating expenses need not be re-allocated to individual segments.
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Consalidated statement of comprehensive income for the period ended 31 Becember 2014:

Financial Corporate Private Reftail
in MCZK markets banking banking banking ALCO Unallocated Total
Net interest income 165 1,616 501 198 511 20 2,911
Fee and commission income 666 m 5 9 S] - 797
Fee and commission expense (127) [24) - (3] (1 - (165)
Dividends from financial
assets available faor sale - - - - 75 - 75
Impairment of assefs
available for sale - - - - (62) - (62)
Net trading income / (expense) 189 (30) - - - - 159
Other operating income 72 92 - 1 - 85 250
Operating income 965 1,665 506 205 529 105 3,975
Personnel expenses (108) (10]) (101) (33] - (443) (793]
Other operating expenses [(74) (687) (31) (53] - (891) (1,118]
Depreciation and amortisation (11 (18) (1 (2] - (60) (90)
Goodwill impairment (50) (240) - - - - (290]
Profit before provisions,
allowances and income tax
expenses 724 1,232 373 17 529 (1,289]) 1,686
Net change in provisions
from financial activities - (19) - - - - (19)
Net change in allowances
for impairment of loans - [227) (50) (7] - - [284)
Profit before tax, excluding
profit from equity accounted
investees 724 986 323 110 529 (1,289) 1,383
Profit/(loss) from equity
accountfed investfees - - - - - 340 340
Profit before tax 724 986 323 110 529 (948) 1,723
Income tax expenses (159]) (254) (80) (59) (123) 294 (381)
Continuing operations 565 732 243 51 4086 (655) 1,342
Discontinued operations - - - - - - -
Profit for the period 565 732 243 51 406 (655) 1,342

[b) Geographical segments

In presenting information on the basis of geographical areas, revenue is based on the customer's country of domicile and
assets/liabilities are based on the geographical location of the assets/liabilities. More details about splitting the credit risk for
loans according to the actual loan purpose and location are comprised in note 40d.
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Consalidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015:

Czech Other Other

in MCZK Republic Slovakia EU countries Total
Cash and balances with central banks 18,7156 308 701 - 19,724
Due from financial institutions 30,681 286 1,099 2,414 34,379
Fair value of derivatives, financial assetfs 9,014 5303 4,485 148 18,860
Investment in equity accountfed invesfees n - 1 23 35
Loans and advances to cusfomers 13162 18,6689 38,644 3,393 74,668
Current tax assets 93 (30) - - 63
Deferred tax assetfs 64 25 10 - 99
Investment property - - - 363 363
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assets, goodwill,

prepayments, accrued income and other assets 1,048 12 368 82 1,608
Disposal groups held for sale 108 - 48 4,808 4,962
Total Assets 72,794 25,672 45,254 11,231 154,851
Negative fair value of derivatives 18 20 43 4 85
Deposits and Loans from banks 819 212 293 1,036 4,269
Depasits from cusfomers 78,600 26,638 13,095 3,678 121,812
Subordinated debt 998 319 707 24 2,048
Current tax liability 5 - - - 5
Deferred tax liability 2 - - 64 66
Other liabilities and provisions 3,136 633 2,674 227 6,669
Disposal groups held for sale - - - 2,961 2,961

Total Liabilities 83,478 29,622 16,812 7,994 137,906




96 Financial Part | Consolidated Financial Statements

Consalidated statement of financial position as at 31 Becember 2014

Czech Other Other

in MCZK Republic Slovakia EU countries Total
Cash and balances with central banks 12,235 94 692 318 13,339
Due from financial institutions 1175 5056 2,630 2,954 7164
Fair value of derivatives, financial assetfs 21,637 5,691 4,612 3940 32,880
Investment in equity accounted investees - 7,086 10 44 7150
Loans and advances to cusfomers 16,382 12,6656 38,897 3,236 71170
Current tax assets - - - 2 2
Deferred tax assetfs 43 27 12 - 82
Investment property - - - 425 425
Property, plant and equipment, intangible assetfs, goodwill,

prepayments, accrued income and other assets 754 122 482 101 1,459
Disposal groups held for sale 108 - - 22 130
Total Assets 52,334 26,190 47,235 8,042 133,801
Negative fair value of derivatives 157 20 745 - 922
Deposifs and Loans from banks 1,269 2,217 1,140 - 4,616
Depasits from cusfomers 70,907 25,644 7,394 3,101 106,846
Subordinated debt 881 328 706 (5) 1,908
Current ftax liability 125 3 - - 128
Deferred tax liability 5 - - 86 91
Other liabilities and provisions 2,094 668 847 248 3,847

Total Liabilities 75,428 28,768 10,832 3,430 118,458
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Consaolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Becember 2015:

Czech Other Other

in MCZK Republic Slovakia EU countries Total
Interest income 16844 1,259 2,664 132 5,688
Interest expense (1,824] (548) (224) (7] (2.801)
Net interest income (180) 713 2,430 125 3,088
Fee and commission income 366 189 224 14 793
Fee and commission expense (157) (22) (7] (2] (188)
Dividends from financial assefs available for sale i - - 3 14
Impairment of assets available for sale (32) - - - (32)
Net trading income / (expense) 219 (121) 364 (268) 196
Other operating income n8 86 28 61 303
Operating income 335 865 3,039 (65) 4174
Personnel expenses (497] (280) (84) (8] (867)
Other operating expenses (613) (428) (133) (29] (1,203)
Depreciation and amortisation (81) (3) (14) (4) (102)
Goodwill impairment (65) - - - (65)
Profit before provisions, allowances and income taxes (921) 154 2,808 (104) 1,937
Net change in provisions from financial activities (23] - - - (23]
Net change in allowances for impairment of loans (280] (289) (182) - (731)
Profit before tax, excluding profit from equity

accounted investees (1,224) (135) 2,646 (104) 1,183
Profit/(loss) from equity accounted investees (1] 199 - (31) 187
Profit before tax (1,225) 64 2,646 (135]) 1,350
Income tax expenses (139] (120] (1 1) [267)
Continuing operations (1,364) (56) 2,645 (138] 1,089
Discontinued operations - - - 787 787

Profit for the period (1,364) (56) 2,645 651 1,876
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Consalidated statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 Becember 2014;

Czech Other Other

in MCZK Republic Slovakia EU countries Total
Interest income 1,673 1,084 2,627 512 5,796
Interest expense (1,837) (B841) (144) (263) (2.885])
Net interest income (2864) 443 2,483 249 2,911
Fee and commission income 334 136 294 34 797
Fee and commission expense m7) (28) () (8] (155])
Dividends from financial assefs available for sale 64 - " - 75
Impairment of assets s available for sale (82) - - - (B82)
Net trading income / (expense) 954 (98) (599) (100) 159
Other operating income 162 3 3 82 250
Operating income 1,061 459 2,186 269 3,975
Personnel expenses (518] (164) (47) (78) (793)
Other operating expenses (691) (320) (39] (B8] (1,118]
Depreciation and amortisation (65) (2) (8) (17) (90)
Goodwill impairment (50) - - [240) (290])
Profit before provisions, allowances and income taxes (261) (17) 2,094 (130]) 1,686
Net change in provisions from financial activities (19] - - - (19)
Net change in allowances for impairment of loans (108]) (151) (7] (18) (284)
Profit before tax, excluding profit from equity

accounted investees (388) (168) 2,087 (148) 1,383
Profit/(loss) from equity accounted investees - (359) - (19) 340
Profit before tax (388]) 191 2,087 (167]) 1,723
Income ftax expenses (263) (96) - [22) (381)
Continuing operations (651) 95 2,087 (189]) 1,342
Discontinued operations - - - - -
Profit for the period (651) 95 2,087 (189]) 1,342

38. RELATED PARTIES — GENERAL
The outstanding balances and transactions with related parfies of the Group are with general related parfies as presented in
the following fables. All transactions with such entities tfook place under standard market conditions.

The related partfies are sorfed in the following catfegories:

[] Parent. This category includes J&T FINANCE GROUP SE and its maijority owners Jozef Tkad and Ivan Jakabovic.

] Subsidiaries. This category includes subsidiaries of J&T FINANCE GROUP SE which are included in its consolidated financial
statements by reason of majority ownership.

] Associates and joint ventures. This category includes associates and joint ventures of the Group.

IV] Key management personnel of the entity or its parent. This category includes related parties which are connected through
key management personnel of the Group or its parent.
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in MCZK . I 1. V. Total
BALANCE SHEET ITEMS AS AT 31.12.2015

Receivables i 920 14 7,554 8,498
Payables 1182 2,404 - 391 3,877
Granted guaranfees - 7 - 2 9
Received guarantees 862 415 - 282 1,639
Provided loan commitments 7 37 - 28 72
Received collateral - 73 - 442 515
PROFIT / LOSS ITEMS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31.12.2015

Expenses (155) (252) (100) (88) (595)
Income 118 181 145 782 1184
in MCZK . I 1. V. Total
BALANCE SHEET ITEMS AS AT 31.12.2014

Receivables 4 1,078 500 8,791 10,373
Payables 619 1134 1,243 782 3,768
Granted guaranfees 2 10 - 4 16
Received guarantees 8569 524 - 599 1,982
Provided loan commitments 174 59 - 20 253
Received collateral - 98 - 489 587
PROFIT / LOSS ITEMS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31.12.2014

Expenses (73) (219) (129]) (28) [447)
Income 30 197 132 579 938

Receivables from members of the Board of Directors and the Supervisory Board

in MCZK 20156 2014
Provided loans 24 27

Loans fo employees of the Group as at 31 December 2016 amounted to CZK 114 (2014: CZK 93 million). The loans provided fo
the Board of Directors and Supervisory Board were provided under standard market conditions.
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39. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The strategy, main goals and processes
The fundamental goal of risk management is profit maximization with respect fo the exposed risk tfaken, while considering the
Group’s risk appetite.

In doing so, it must be ensured that the Group activities outcome is predictable and in compliance with bath frading goals and
risk appefite of the Group.

In order fo meet this goal, the risks faced by the Group are managed in a guality and prudential manner within the framework

of the Group:

— Interms of that, risks are monitored, assessed and eventually limited, af least as strictly as required by Czech National Bank.
The internal limits are being reconsidered regularly and in case of significant changes of market conditions to ensure their
compliance with both the overall group’s strategy and market and credit conditions. The adherence fo the limits is monitored
and reported daily. In case of their pafential breach, the Group immediately adopts adequate remedial measures.

— The Group establishes goals for capital adequacy that it wants to attain over a specified time horizon (i.e. the level to which
risks should be covered by capital) and threshold limits below which capital adequacy cannat decrease.

All internal limits have been approved independently of business units of the Group.

40. CREDIT RISK

The Group's primary exposure fo credit risk arises through its loans and advances and financial assets. The amount of credit
exposure in this regard is represented by the carrying amounts of the assefs in the statement of financial posifion. In addition,
the Group is exposed fo off balance sheet credit risk through commitments to extend credit.

Concentrations of credit risk (whether on or off balance sheet] that arise from financial instruments exist for groups of
counterparties when they have similar economic characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations

to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions.

(a) Exposition forbearance

in MCZK 2015 2014
Perfarming exposition 66,91 687,763
— performing expasition forbearance 3132 2,451
Non-perfarming exposifion 7,757 3,407
— non-performing exposition forbearance 3,736 3,369
Total 74,668 71,170

The share of loan exposition forbearance on fotfal loans and advances fo custfomers 9.18% 8.18%
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(b) Concentration of loans to customers by economic sector:

in MCZK 2015 2014
NOT FORBEARANCE

Non-financial organisations 48,213 47,365
Financial arganisations 16,003 14,876
Households 3,580 3,102
Other 4 7
Total 67,800 65,350
in MCZK 2015 2014
FORBEARANCE

Non-financial organisatfions 6,222 4,648
Financial arganisations 467 491
Households 129 827
Other 50 53
Total 6,868 5,820

(c]) Concentration of loans to customers by industry:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Financial activities 21,801 19,167
Real estate activities 15,454 15,889
Manufacturing 7777 7,046
Construction 5,810 3,464
Production and disfribution of electricity, gas and heat 5,748 5,660
Information and communication 4,720 3,691
Accommodation and food service activities 3,606 2,917
Mining and quarrying, agriculture 2,714 3,348
Private households and employed persons 2,142 2,485
Transporting and sforage 1,601 1,466
Wholesale and retail frade 971 1,470
Sports, entertainment and recreation activities 913 1,204
Professional, scientific and technical activities 710 2,723
Waste collection, modification and disposal n 47
Other 690 714

Total 74,668 71,170
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(d) Concentration of loans to customers by location:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Cyprus 26,318 30,643
Slovakia 19,669 12,8556
Czech Republic 13,162 16,382
Luxembaourg 4,461 -
Croatia 3,084 2,458
Paland 2,450 2,362
British Virgin Islands 1,813 8856
Jersey, C.I. 866 -
Netherlands 865 1,376
Ireland 570 1,307
Austria 433 398
Malta 304 181
Russia 78 1,604
Great Britain 58 272
Cayman Islands - 569
Others 636 188

Total 74,668 71,170
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(e) Concentration of loans to customers by location of realization of project and collateral:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Czech Republic 33,117 28,290
Slovakia 23,301 21,8994
Croatia 4,686 4,771
Russia 3,870 4,424
Poland 2,450 3,080
Slovenia 1,922 1,339
Great Britain 1,087 449
Cyprus 893 606
Greece 707 724
Ukraine 840 1,213
Maldives 631 -
Austria 214 333
USA 184 878
Netherlands 178 12
Luxemburg 41 3b
Germany 1 3,208
Other 738, 8
Total 74,668 71170

The concentration of credit risk arising from repurchase agreements and loans to clients of brokers reflects the counterparty
risk associated with securities and cash received as collateral.
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(f) Credit risk associated with financial assets

As at 31 Becember 2016

Repurchase
agreements Loans and Repurchase

Loans - financial advances agreements
in MCZK to banks institutions to customers — customers
Financial assets impaired:
Impaired financial assets at amaortised cost
individually assessed not forbearance:
Gross amount - - 2170 -
Impairment - - (228) -
Carrying amount - - 1,944 -
Impaired financial assets at amortised cost
individually assessed forbearance:
Gross amount - - 2,767 -
Impairment - - (1,299] -
Carrying amount - - 1,468 -
Impaired financial assets at amortised cost
collectively assessed not forbearance:
Gross amount - - 72 -
Impairment - - (14) -
Carrying amount - - 58 -
Impaired financial assets at amortised cost
collectively assessed forbearance:
Gross amount - - - -
Impairment - - - -
Carrying amount - - - -
Total financial assets impaired - - 3,471 -
Financial assets not impaired: 1,968 32,41 68,045 3,163
Neither past due nor impaired:
— forbearance - - 5,340 -
— not forbearance 1,968 32,41 61,734 3,163
Past due not impaired:
- forbearance - - 60 -
- notf forbearance - - an -
tfo maturity date - - 1 -
up to 1 month - - 144 -
1 month to 8 months - - 718 -
B8 months fo 12 months - - 1 -
more than 12 months - - 109 -
Total financial assets not forbearance 1,968 32,41 64,647 3,163
Total financial assets forbearance - - 6,868 -
Total 1,968 32,41 71,515 3,163
of which: Financial assets neither past due nor impaired
with a sign of impairment: - - 9,158 -
Gross amount not forbearance - - 3,758 -

Gross amaount forbearance

5,400
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As at 31 December 2014

Repurchase
agreements Loans and Repurchase

Loans - financial advances agreements
in MCZK to banks institutions to customers — cusftomers
Financial assets impaired:
Impaired financial assets at amortised cost
individually assessed not forbearance:
Gross amount - - 330 -
Impairment - - (298] -
Carrying amount - - 34 -
Impaired financial assets at amartised cost
individually assessed forbearance:
Gross amount - - 3,235 -
Impairment - - (709) -
Carrying amount - - 2,526 -
Impaired financial assets at amartised cost
collectively assessed not forbearance:
Gross amount - - - -
Impairment - - - -
Carrying amount - - - -
Impaired financial assets at amortised cost
collectively assessed farbearance:
Gross amount - - 54 -
Impairment - - (2] -
Carrying amount - - 52 -
Total financial assets impaired - - 2,612 -
Financial assets not impaired: 4,865 2,299 63,014 5,644
Neither past due nor impaired: 4,865 2,299 59,175 5,644
- notf forbearance 4,865 2,299 56,034 5,544
- forbearance - - 3,141 -
Past due not impaired: - - 3,839 -
- notf forbearance - - 3,738 -
- forbearance - - 101 -
to maturity date - - 1,377 -
up fo 1 month - - 978 -
1 month to 8 months - - 458 -
B8 months to 12 months - - 192 -
more than 12 months - - 836 -
Total financial assets not forbearance 4,865 2,299 59,806 5,644
Total financial assets forbearance - - 5,820 -
Total 4,865 2,299 65,626 5,644
of which: Financial assets neither past due nor impaired
with a sign of impairment: - - 3,833 -
Gross amount not forbearance - - 803 -

Gross amount forbearance - - 3,230 -
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Assets classified as "Financial assets neither past due nor impaired with a sign of impairment" and "Past due not impaired"”

represent those loans with a sign of impairment whose net present value of expected cash flows exceeds their carrying valug,

and therefore no provision has been created.

The part of the receivables that is not past due is presented in the line "To maturity date" and the Group does not assume any

problems with counterparty's payment discipline. Past due receivables are presented in the appropriate columns according fo

the period past due.

(g) Collateral and credit enhancements for financial assets

2015 2015 2014 2014
in MCZK Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Neither past due nor impaired: 61,889 69,652 42,11 74171
Guarantees 2,716 3,139 6,638 6,755
Acceptances of promissory note 1128 1,873 1,363 2,248
Real estate 7,71 39,8963 7,699 10,042
Cash deposits 2,292 2,292 1,319 1,319
Securities 4,502 6,397 7,208 9,408
Other 4,796 7,044 6,004 10,492
Securifies received under reverse repurchase agreements 38,744 38,744 1,882 1,882
Neither past due nor impaired from IFRS 5 1,266 1,266 - -
Real esfate 683 683 - -
Cash deposits 44 44 - _
Other 538 539 - -
Past due but not impaired: 60 344 1,085 1,451
Guarantees - - - -
Acceptances of promissory nofe - - 1 1
Real estate 58 342 992 1,356
Cash deposits 2 2 53 53
Securifies - - 36 36
Other - - 3 5
Securifies received under reverse repurchase agreements - - - -
Impaired: 1,425 1,967 1,598 1,777
Guarantees 81 81 - -
Acceptances of promissory nofe - - - -
Real estate 1120 1,636 1,418 1,664
Cash deposits 8 8 8 8
Pledges — securifies 96 103 356 36
Other 120 139 137 170

Securifies received under reverse repurchase agreements

Only co-accepted promissory notes of a 3rd party were accepted as security of loans by the Group. The amount of security

is up fo the value of guarantee provided by promissory note guaranfar. The Group did not receive any financial assefs from
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indemnity claims based on loans in default.

The carrying value represents the collateral value adjusted by the collateral sfress coefficient. The carrying value is limited by
the carrying value of receivable. The fair value is not adjusted by stress coefficient and it is not limited by the carrying value
of receivable.

The carrying value of securities received under reverse repurchase agreements is represented in the quoted market price of
the securifies.

(h) Unconsolidated structured entities

The Group engages in various business activities with sfructured entities which are companies designed fo achieve a specific
business purpose and usually designed so that votfing or similar rights are not dominant factor in deciding who confrols the
entity.

A structured enfity has offen some or all of the following feafures or attributes:

— Resfricted acfivifies;

— A narrow and well defined objective;

— Insufficient equity To permit the structured entity fo finance ifs acftivities without subordinated financial support.

The Group provides financing to cerfain structured entities for the purchase of assets that are collateralized in favor of the
Group by the sfructured entities. The Group enters info fransactions with these entities in the normal course of business o
facilitate customer fransactions and for specific investment opporfunities. The entifies covered by this disclosure note are not
consalidated because the Group does nat control them through voting rights, contfract, funding agreements, or other means.

Income derived from involvement with structured enfities represents inferest income recognized by the Group on the funding
provided tfo sfructured enfities.

The Group's interests in unconsolidated structured entities refer to contractual involvement that exposes the group to variability
of refurns from the performance of the strucfured entities.

The maximum exposure to loss for the Group is defermined by considering the nafure of the interest in the unconsolidated
structured entity and represents the maximum loss that the Group could be required to report as a result of its involvement
with unconsolidated stfructured entities regardless of the probability of the loss being incurred.

The maximum exposure for loans is reflected by their carrying amounts in the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December
2015 amounting to CZK 3 246 million (2014: CZK 2 976 million) and there was no loss incurred in 2015 in respect of these loans
provided.

The total assets value for the significant unconsolidated structured entity which was idenfified, as indication of its size, is CZK
7 059 million (2014: CZK 4 311 million).
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(i) Credit risk processes

Evaluating the risk of failure of counterparty is based on a credit analysis, processed by the Credit Risk Management dept. and
Risk Management dept. These analyses provide conclusions for prompt measures when the counterparty's credit situation
worsens.

The resulfs from the credit development analyses are reported to the Board of Directors, which decides on adjustments of limits
or relations with the counterparty (namely in the form of closing or limiting positions or adjustment of limits).

Credif risk is monitared on a regular basis, except for the credit risk of banking book reporfed on a monthly basis.

The extent of the risk is evaluated by Risk Management dept. When actual or possible breach of the adopted infernal credit limits
is identified, the Financial Markets dept. is informed, in order To ensure the compliance of the risk exposure with the sef limits.
In pre-defermined cases, the information is passed to the Board of Directors.

(i) Credit risk monitoring

Assessment of the credit risk in respect of counterparty or an issued debt is based on an infernal rating of the Group. The
rating is deftermined using the credit scale of either S&P or Moody's. If the counterparties or their debt are not externally rated,
an infernal rafing is assigned based on the Group scoring system.

The Group scoring sysfem has seven rating levels based on a standardized point evaluation of relevant criteria, which describe
the financial posifion of the confractual party and its ability and willingness to fulfil its credit obligations — in bath cases including
the expected development, quality and adequacy of the collateral, as well as proposed conditions for effecting the fransaction.

(k) Credit risk measurement
The Group regularly analyses and monitors credit risk. At portfolio level, credit risk is managed primarily based on the IRB
(Infernal Rating Based - BASEL II) methodology.

In order to assess the impact of extremely unfavourable credit conditions, the Group performs credit development analyses.
This enables identification of sudden potential changes in the values of open positions of the Group that might arise as a result
of events that are improbable, but possible.

For the frading portfalio, an impact of a sudden drop of credit rating by one level to open positions in bonds is evaluated.

The decrease in fair value at the end of the corresponding reporting period:

in MCZK 2016 2014

Decrease of the frading portfolio value due to a rating migration by one credit class 103 62

(in the Standard & Poor's scale]
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(1) Risk management of customer trades

The Group prevents the possibility of a credit exposure arising from cusfomer frades, i.e. frades which are transacted on the

customer's account and where the Group has the role of a commissioner (customer trades such as spot buy, spot sell, sell /

buy or buy / sell] as follows:

1. The amount of the customer collateral is confinuously held higher than the amount of the customer loan at least by a pre-
specified minimum required haircut. The level of this haircut is assigned fo every instrument.

2. Should the current collateralization of the customer portfolio fall below the 30 per cent of the minimum required haircut, the
Group closes all of the customer's positions immediately.

3. The Group accepts only instruments of specified minimal creditworthiness as collateral for cusfomer frades.

In addition, the Group also restricts the fatal volume of individual insfruments used as collateral.

As of 31 December 2015, the Group recorded customer trades totalling CZK 411 million (2014: CZK 414 million) and those are not
recognized in the Group financial statements.

41. LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk represents a risk that the Group is not able to meet its commitments as they are becoming mature. The Bank is
required to report several indicators to the National Bank which is done on a regular basis. The Group's effort in terms of liquidity
risk is to diversify its sources of funding so as fo decrease the degree of risk emerging from specific source cutf-off and hence
forego problems.

The Group performs an everyday monitoring of its liquidity position to indicate potfential liquidity problems. The analysis takes
info account all sources of funding that the Group is using and inferconnected obligations the Group has to pay. For the purpose
of sufficient liquidity reserve the Group holds sufficient amount of liquid instruments (such as government bonds), maintains
balances with central banks on a reasonable level and collects short-term receivables.

The Group assorts all cash flows intfo fimeframes according fo maturities of the instruments to which the cash flows relate,
and subsequently observes the resulting cumulative liquidity profile which is crucial for sound liguidity risk management. Such
an analysis is also done for cash flows denominated in currencies different from CZK.

Three scenarios are used in ferms of liquidity risk management:
AJ Expected Scenario

B) Risky Scenario

C) Stress Scenarios

Stress Scenarios are based on sfress imposed on components that might be negatively affected when liquidity crisis starts
to approach.
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For the purposes of measuring liquidity risk on the basis of the scenarios, liquidity indicators are evaluated and their compliance
with adopted internal / external limits is monitored on a daily basis. When present or possible breach of the adopted internal /
external liquidity limifs is identified, the Treasury dept. as well as ALCO is informed, in order fo ensure the compliance with the
sef limits. In pre-determined cases, the information is passed fo the Board of Directors.

The Group has an emergency plan for liquidity management that estfablishes the procedures applied in the case of possible
liquidity crisis. The decision-making power is given by internal rules o the Board of Directfars.

The main precautionary measures infroduced by the Risk Deparfment of the Group in this area fo respond fo the economic
crisis were as follows:

— implementation of sfress fests based on various crisis scenarios;

— prudent infernal limits for on-demand and mid-term available liquidity.

a) Liquidity risk of liquidity relevant instruments as of 31 December 2015:
Table shows the liguidity risk based on remaining contractual maturity dafes.

Over 3

Carrying Contractual Up fo months & up 1to b >5 Undefined
in MCZK amount cash flows 3 months fo 1 year years years maturity
ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 19,724 19,724 17,830 - - - 2,084
Due from financial institfutions 34,379 34,612 34,103 9 136 363 2
Financial assefs (without derivatives) 18,790 21171 243 1,623 5,224 8,316 5,766
Investment in equity accounted
investees 35 356 - - - - 36
Loans and advances to customers 74,668 91,741 13,064 15,837 41,696 2113 31
Total 147,596 167,283 65,040 17,469 47,055 29,792 7,927
OFF BALANCE
Unused credit lines 8,367 6,357 6,002 131 37 130 57
Unused credif lines from IFRS & 575 575 38 4 533 - -
Granted guarantees 2,434 2,434 2,367 10 42 1 14

Over 3

Carrying Contractual Up fo months & up 1to b >b Undefined
in MCZK amount  cash flows 3 months fo 1vyear years years maturity
LIABILITIES
Deposits and loans from banks 4,259 4,275 3,362 875 48 - -
Deposits from customers 121,812 123,821 62,062 32,803 28,883 83 -
Subordinated debt 2,049 2,788 29 100 1,001 1,658 -
Total 128,120 130,884 65,433 33,778 29,932 1.741 -
Net Liquidity position 19,476 36,399 (393]) (16 309) 17,123 28,051 7,927
Cumulative liquidity position - - (393) (16 702) 421 28,472 36,399

Contractual cash flows represent expected confracfual future cash flows.
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As of 31 December 2016 deposits from customers do not include depository notes (2014: CZK 32 million) distributed according
to their maturity (Note 20).

Expected liquidity
In the warst case scenario, the latest possible repayment date is assumed, which is based on latest expected completion date
of each particular project. The projects’ latest expected completion date may not be the same as the contractual maturity date.

Over 3
Carrying Contractual Up to months & up 1to b >b Undefined
in MCZK amount  cash flows 3 maonths to 1 year years years maturity
Loans and advances to cusfomers 74,668 91,741 12,681 14,071 42,988 22,019 81

Loans that are already in the process of refinancing negotiation are presented according the expected date of refinancing.

a) Liquidity risk of liquidity relevant instruments as of 31 December 2014:
Table shows the liguidity risk based on remaining contractual maturity dates.

Over 3

Carrying Contractual Up to months & up 1to b >5 Undefined
in MCZK amount  cash flows 3 months fo 1vyear years years maturity
ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 13,339 13,339 1,771 - - - 1,668
Due from financial institutions 7164 7,259 6,891 9 108 243 8
Financial assetfs (without derivatives] 32,721 36,201 1,821 1722 15,720 12,687 4,361
Investment in equity accounted
investees 7,160 7150 - - - - 7150
Loans and advances to customers 71170 88,302 14,5356 15,219 33,860 24,621 77
Total 131,544 152,251 35,018 16,950 49,678 37,451 13,154
OFF BALANCE
Unused credit lines 5,141 5,062 2,867 1,018 1187 - -
Granted guaranfees 2,657 2,657 2,648 108 - - -

Over 3

Carrying Contractual Up fo months & up 1to b >b Undefined
in MCZK amount  cash flows 3 maonths to 1 year years years maturity
LIABILITIES
Deposits and Loans from banks 4,818 (4,851] (3.371) (B8] (1,214] - -
Deposits from customers 106,948 (109,079) (50,638) (32,130) (26,260) (51 -
Subordinated debt 1,908 (2,720) (38) (97) (583) (2.002) -
Total 113,470 (116,450) (54,047) (32,293) (28,057) (2,053) -
Net Liquidity position 18,074 35,801 (19,029) (15,343) 21,621 35,398 13,154

Cumulative liquidity position - - (19,029) (34,372) (12,751) 22,647 35,801
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Expected liquidity

Over 3
Carrying Contractual Up fo months & up 1to b >5 Undefined
in MCZK amount  cash flows 3 maonths fo 1 year years years maturity
Loans and advances to customers 71170 88,302 14,043 14,969 34,433 24,609 248
b) Liquidity risk of derivatives as of 31 December 2015:

Carrying Contractual up fo up fo 1 year to
in MCZK amount cash flows 3 months 1 year 5 years
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS
Forward currency contracts
— outflow - (17,159]) (16,685) (634]) (40)
— inflow 78 17,238 16,648 548 41
OTHER DERIVATIVES
— inflow 82 82 - - 82
Total 160 161 64 14 83
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Forward currency contracts
— outflow (85) [24,316) [23,625]) [728]) (3]
— inflow - 24,223 23,455 708 62
Total (85) (93) (70) (22) )]
b) Liquidity risk of derivatives as of 31 December 2014:

Carrying Contractual up fo up to 1 year to
in MCZK amount cash flows 3 months 1 year 5 years
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS
Farward currency confracts
- outflow - (6,643) [4,425) (2.118) -
— inflow 99 6,636 4,500 2,136 -
OTHER DERIVATIVES
- inflow 80 60 - - 80
Total 159 163 75 18 60
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Forward currency confracts
- outfflow (922] (44,878) (39.008) (5.668) (2)
— inflow - 43,773 38,656 51156 2
OTHER DERIVATIVES
- outflow - (2) - () (1)

Total [922) (905) (350) (554) (1




Financial Part | Consolidated Financial Statements 13

42, MARKET RISK
Market risk is the risk of loss fo the Group arising from market movements in gquoted market prices of investment instruments,
exchange rates and inferest rafes. Market risk consists of the trading portfolio market risk and investment portfolio market risk.

Market risk of the frading portfalio includes:

— Interest rate risk;

— Foreign exchange risk;

—  Other market risk (equity risk, commodity risk].

Further information on inferest rafe risk and foreign exchange risk is provided in Note 43 and Note 44, respectively.

The Group uses the Value at Risk ("VaR'") methodology to evaluate market risk of its trading portfolio, the foreign currency ('FX")
and commodity posifion using a confidence level of 99% and a horizon of 10 business days.

The risks are evaluated and compared fo limits set by the Risk Management Deparfment on a daily basis. If tThe limits are
breached, the Financial Markets deparfment is informed, in order fo ensure the compliance of the risk exposure with the limits.
In pre-defermined cases, the information is passed fo the Board of Directors.

The decision making power is given by infernal rules to the Board of Directors and Investment Commitfee.

The Group perfarms back festing on a daily basis for market risk by applying a method of hypaothetical back festfing.

The VaR statistics as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 are as follows:

in MCZK 2015 2014
VaR market risk overall 788 133
VaR interest rate risk (general risk) 49 7
VaR FX risk 787 127
VaR stock risk 15 10
VaR commodity risk 3 3

In order fo assess the impact of extremely unfavourable market conditions, the Group performs sfress festing. This enables
identification of sudden potential changes in the values of open positions of the Group that might arise as a result of events
that are improbable, but possible. As part of the sfress testing, a short-term, medium-term and long-term historic shock scenario
is applied to the trading portfolio, and the foreign currency and commodity pasitions of the Group as a whole. These scenarios
evaluate the deepest drop of the current portfolio value which would have happened in the previous one [short-ferm scenario),
two (medium-term scenario) or seven years (long-term scenario). The potential change in the fair value of the portfolio is
monifored and assessed.
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in MCZK 2015 2014
CHANGE IN THE FAIR VALUE OF THE TRADING PORTFOLIO DUE TO HISTORIC SHOCK SCENARIO

short-term scenario 509 49
medium-term scenario 586 80
long-term scenario 595 144

The market risk of the banking portfolio consists mainly of FX risk.

The Group performs sfress testing of the investment portfolio using a standardised inferest rate shock, i.e. an immediate
decrease / increase in inferest rates by 200 basis points ('bp) along the entire yield curve.

The decrease in the present value of the investment portfolio in percentage points of equity would be as follows:

2016 2014
[% TIER 1 + TIER 2)

Decrease in the present value of the investment portfolio due fo a sudden change in inferest rates by 200 bp 14.03 14.31
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43. INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The
length of fime for which the rate of interest is fixed for a financial instrument indicates to what extent it is exposed fo an
interest rate risk. The fable below provides information on the extent of the Group's interest rate exposure based either on the
contfractual maturity date of its financial instruments or, in the case of instruments that re-price to a market rate of inferest
before maturity, the next re-pricing dafe. Those assetfs and liabilities that do not have a confractual maturity date or are zero-
interest-bearing are grouped fogether in the "maturity undefined" category.

Inferest rafe risk exposure as at 31 December 2015 was as follows:

Up fo 1 vyear fo Over Maturity
in MCZK 1 year 5 years 5 years undefined Total
ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 19,092 - - 632 19,724
Due from financial institutions 34,160 - 216 3 34,379
Fair value of derivatives, financial assets 7,838 2,065 3,212 5,847 18,950
Investment in equity accounted investees - - - 36 36
Loans and advances to cusfomers 58,632 12,981 2,917 138 74,668
Investment property, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, goodwill - - - 887 887
Current tax assef - - - 63 63
Deferred tax asset - - - 99 99
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 3 - - 1,081 1,084
Disposal groups held for sale - - - 4,962 4,962
Total assets 119,723 15,036 6,345 13,747 154,851
LIABILITIES
Negative fair value of derivatives 84 1 - - 85
Depaosits and loans from banks 4,218 42 - 1 4,258
Deposits from customers 94,270 27628 66 (152] 121,812
Subordinated debt 783 535 781 (10) 2,048
Current tax liability - - - 5 5
Deferred tfax liability - - - 66 66
Other liabilities and provisions 1439 3 - 6 617 6 669
Disposal groups held for sale - - - 2,961 2,961
Share capital - - - 10,638 10,638
Retained earnings and other reserves (incl. NCI) - - - 6,307 6,307
Total liabilities and equity 99,482 28,208 827 26,333 154,851
Net interest rate risk position 20,241 (13,173) 5,518 (12,5886) -

Cumulative interest rate risk position 20,241 7,068 12,586 - -
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Deposits from customers do not include depository notes (2014: CZK 32 million) distributed according their maturity (Note 20).

Interest rate risk exposure as at 31 December 2014 was as follows:

Up tfo 1 year fo Over Maturity
in MCZK 1 year 5 years 5 years undefined Total
ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 12,497 - - 842 13,339
Due from financial institutions 6,934 - 222 8 7164
Fair value of derivatives, financial assets 16,930 6,980 3,249 5,721 32,880
Investment in equity accountfed invesfees - - - 7150 7150
Loans and advances to cusfomers 62,748 5,015 2,869 548 71170
Investment property, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets, goodwill - - - 985 9856
Current tax asset - - - 2 2
Deferred fax asset - - - 82 82
Prepayments, accrued income and other assefs - - - 889 899
Disposal groups held for sale - - - 130 130
Total assets 99,109 11,995 6,330 16,367 133,801
LIABILITIES
Negative fair value of derivatives 922 - - - 922
Deposits and loans from banks 3,408 1,208 - - 4,616
Deposits from customers 84 6554 22,442 28 (78) 108,948
Subordinated debt 719 130 1,069 - 1,908
Current tax liability - - - 128 128
Deferred tfax liability - - - 91 91
Other liabilities and provisions - - - 3,847 3,847
Disposal groups held for sale - - - - -
Share capital - - - 9,668 9,668
Retained earnings and other reserves (incl. NCI) - - - 5,786 5,786
Total liabilities and equity 89,603 23,780 1,085 19,333 133,801
Net interest rate risk position 9,506 (11,785) 5,245 [2,966] -
Cumulative interest rate risk position 9,506 [2,279) 2,966 - -

44. FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, including off-balance sheet exposures, represent the Group's exposure
fo currency risk. Both realized and unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses are reporfed directly in the statement of
comprehensive incame.

The main fool used for managing foreign currency risk is the VaR methodology which is applied using a 99% confidence level
and a ten-day holding period.
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As at 31 December 2015, the exposure to Group's fareign exchange risk translated into millions of CZK was as follows:

in MCZK CzK Usb EUR RUB Other Total
ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 18,671 70 367 - 6816 19,724
Due from financial institutions 30,288 2,810 1,360 - 141 34,379
Fair value of derivatives, financial assets 5,879 3986 12,245 - 430 18,950
Investment in equity accounted investees B - 5] 23 - 36
Loans and advances to customers 18,799 2,270 51,8756 49 1,675 74,668
Current tax asset 93 - (30) - - 63
Deferred tax asset 64 - 25 - 10 99

Investment property, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, goodwill,
prepayments, accrued income and other

assefs 561 18 B11 440 241 1,871
Disposal groups held for sale 107 800 1,276 2,684 95 4,962
Total 74,448 6,264 67,835 3,196 3,108 154,851
LIABILITIES

Deposits and loans from banks 1144 196 2,778 - 141 4,269
Deposits from customers 77588 2,409 39,992 164 1,659 121,812
Subordinated debt 997 - 1,062 - - 2,048
Current tax liability 5 - - - - 5
Deferred fax liability 2 - - 64 - 66
Disposal groups held for sale 12 589 198 2162 - 2,961
Other liabilities and equity 22,3684 308 2,829 (1,603) 1 23,699
Total 102,112 3,602 46,648 787 1,801 154,851
Long position off-balance sheet:

items from derivative transactions 32,734 241 8,221 206 1157 42,669
items from derivative fransactions

from IFRS b - 2868 38 856 - 393
items from spot fransactions

with share instruments 15 63 - - - 78

Short position off-balance sheet:

items from derivatfive fransactfions 7,089 3,481 29,708 656 2139 42,492
items from derivative transactions

from IFRS b - 73 12 305 - 390
items from spof fransactions

with share instfruments 15 63 - - 78

Open position asset/(liability) (2,029]) (282) [274) 2,330 325 70
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As at 31 Becember 2014, the exposure fo foreign exchange risk franslated into millions of CZK was as follows:

in MCZK CzK Usb EUR RUB Other Total
ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 12,199 136 1486 2563 606 13,339
Due from financial institutions 830 2,988 2,638 224 584 7164
Fair value of derivatives, financial assets 19,289 508 12,016 485 572 32,880
Investment in equity accounted investees - - 7,108 44 - 7150
Loans and advances to customers 18,730 6,654 41,905 1,397 2,484 71170
Current tax assef - - - 2 - 2
Deferred tax asset 43 - 27 - 12 82

Investment property, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, goodwill,
prepayments, accrued income and other

assets 674 126 2568 518 308 1,884
Disposal groups held for sale 108 - - 22 - 130
Total 51,873 10,41 63,996 2,955 4,566 133,801
LIABILITIES

Deposits and loans from banks 1,453 151 2,800 4 208 4,616
Deposits from customers 70,071 2,736 30,9846 1,804 1,389 106,846
Subordinated debt 878 - 1,030 - - 1,908
Current tax liability 125 - 3 - - 128
Deferred tfax liability 5 - - 86 - 91
Disposal groups held for sale - - - - - -
Other liabilities and equity 18,016 347 2,360 (818) 207 20,112
Total 90,548 3,234 37,139 1,076 1,804 133,801
Long position off-balance sheet:

items from derivative transactions 44,277 5086 7,983 n 218 52,9956
items from spot fransactions

with share insfruments 44 1 1 - - 48

Short position off-balance sheet:

items from derivative transactions 8,678 8,618 36,6875 52 722 53,746
items from spot fransactions

with share insfruments 45 - 1 - - 48
Open position asset/(liability) (3,078] (934) (835) 1,838 2,258 (751)

45. OPERATIONAL RISK
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from fraud, unauthorised acfivities, error, omission, inefficiency or system failure. It arises
from all the Group's activities and is a risk faced by all business organisations. Operational risk includes legal risk.

The Group's objective is To manage operational risk so as fo balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage fo the Group's
reputation with overall cost effectiveness and avoid contfrol procedures that would restrict inifiafive and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the implementation of controls fo address operational risk is assigned to management within each
subsidiary. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall standards within the Group for the management of
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operational risk which is done by the Risk Management Deparfment and which cover the following areas:

— Requirements far the reconciliation and monitaring of fransactions.

— Identification of operational risk within the framework of each subsidiary's control system and development of conditions
for decreasing and limiting operational risk (while the required level of activities is secured), as well as its impacts and
consequences; recommendations for appropriate solutions in this area.

— Reporting of operational risk events by entering the corresponding information info the Group's database of operational risk
events

- This overview of the Group's operational risk events allows the Group fo specify the direction of the steps and processes
to take in order to limit these risks, as well as o make decisions with regard fo:

— accepting the individual risks that are faced;
— inifiating processes leading fo limitation of possible impacts; or
— decreasing the scope of the relevant activity or disconfinuing it entirely.

46. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Group palicy is fo hold sfrong capital base in order o mainfain the confidence of creditors and the market, while ensuring
the future development of her business.

Starting 1 January 2014 the consolidated capital adequacy ratios are calculated in accordance with the Regulation (EU) no.
575/2013 of the European Parliament and Council Regulation (the "CRR") of 26 June 2013. Until 31 December 2013 the capital
adequacy ratio was calculated in accordance with the Czech National Bank ("CNB") decree no. 123/2007 Coll.

Own funds (regulatory capital) of the Group are analysed in two parts:
— Tier 1capital, which consist of;

— Common Equity Tier 1 capital [CET1), which includes paid-up ordinary share capital, share premium, retained earnings
(profit for the period is not included), accumulated other comprehensive income, net of goodwill, intangible assets and
additional value adjustments;

— Additional Tier 1 capital (AT1), which includes capital instruments (subordinated income certificates) issued in accordance
with CRR (See nate 23 Other capital instruments).

— Tier 2 capital, which consists of eligible subordinated debt approved by Czech National Bank in the amount of CZK

1932 million (31 December 2014: CZK 1 857 million).

Unftil 31 Becember 2013, the capital adequacy ratfio was calculated as the rafio of regulafory capital to capital requirements
multiplied by 8 % according to regulatory requirements. The capital adequacy ratfio had fo be a minimum value of 8 %.

From 1 January 2014 the capifal adequacy rafios are calculated for CET1, Tier 1 capital and total regulatory capital. The value
represents the ratio of capital 1o risk weighted assets (RWA). CNB also requires every institution to hold additional capital
conservation buffer of 2.6 % on all the levels of regulatory capital.
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Minimum requirements for capital ratios are as follows:

Capital
Minimum  conservation Total
requirement buffer requirement
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) 4.6% 2.6% 7.0%
Tier 1 capital B8.0% 2.5% 8.6%
Total regulatory capital 8.0% 2.5% 10.5%

Regulatory capital and equity reconciliation
The tables below summarize the composition of own funds (regulatory capital) and equity and capital ratios for 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014, providing a complete reconciliation of individual items of regulatory capital to equity items.

31 December 2015

Regulatary
in MCZK capital Equity
Paid-up capital registered in the Commercial Register 10,638 10,638
Retained earnings 2,953 3,192
Profit for the period - 1,967
Accumulated other comprehensive income (1,371) (1,425)
Reserve funds 15 88
Non-conftrolling interest 87 743
() Additional value adjustments (AVA] (19] -
[-) Intangible assets other than goodwill (157) -
Deferred tax liabilities associated with intangible assets other than goodwill 12 -
(1) Goodwill (30) -
Paid-in AT1 insfruments, share premium 1,742 1,742
Total Tier 1 capital 13,870 n/a
Total Tier 2 capital 1,932 -

Total regulatory capital/equity 15,802 16,945
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31 December 2014

Regulatary

in MCZK capital Equity
Paid-in capital registered in the Commercial Register 9,668 9,668
Retfained earnings 2,949 3,102
Profit for the period - 1,330
Accumulated other comprehensive income (578]) (635]
Reserve funds 83 183
Non-contralling interest 107 826
() Additional value adjustments [AVA] (0] -
() Intangible assets other than goodwill (189] -
Deferred tax liabilities associated with intangible assets other than goodwill 10 -
[-) Goodwill (95) -
Paid-in AT1 insfruments 898 898
Total Tier 1 capital 12,7386 n/a
Total Tier 2 capital 1,857 -
Total regulatory capital/equity 14,593 15,343
RWA and capital ratios

in MCZK 31 December 2016 31 Becember 2014
Total risk weighted assets [RWA) 113,600 108,573
Capital adequacy ratios

In percentage 31 December 2015 31 BDecember 2014
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) 10.68% 10.90%
Tier 1 capital 12.21% 1M.73%
Total regulatory capital 13.91% 13.44%

Based on the opinion of the Czech National Bank, refained earnings were reduced by the amount of the anficipated payment
from subordinated income cerfificates (AT1instruments] in the next four quarters not covered by a special-purpose fund for the
payment of the income from those cerfificates before their inclusion in regulatory capital.

The key goal of capital management of the Group is to ensure that the risks faced do not threaten the solvency of the Group
and capital adequacy regulatory limit compliance. In addition, within the strategic framework of the Group the board stipulated
the value above 12% for mid-term capital adequacy goal as a reflection of the risk appefite of the Group.

The purpose for seffing the minimum value for capital adequacy requirements is to estfablish a frigger mechanism, which
provides a guarantee that the capital adequacy will not decrease fo the regulatory minimum.
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The compliance of the Group capifal with established limits and goals for the capifal adequacy is evaluated regularly by the
ALCO committee and the Group's management.

The decision making power with regard to evenfual measures that should be implemented fo decrease the level of exposed risk
(e.g., decreasing the size of risks, acquiring additional capital, efc.) is given to the Board of Directors.

47. FAIR VALUES INFORMATION

Estimation of fair values
The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial insfruments
reflected in the table.

Loans and advances fo customers and Due from financial institutions: Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected
future cash flows of principal and inferest using the appropriate yield curve and risk spread. Expected future cash flows are
esfimated considering the credit risk and any indication of impairment. The esfimated fair values of loans reflect changes in
credit status since the loans were provided and changes in inferest rates in the case of fixed rate loans.

Financial assetfs held to maturity: Fair value is based on quoted market prices fraded in active markets at the statement of
financial position date.

Deposifts and loans from banks and customers and Subordinated debt: For demand deposits and deposits with no defined
maturity, fair value is taken to be the amount payable on demand at the statement of financial position date. The estimated fair
value of fixed-maturity depaosits is based on discounted cash flows using appropriate yield curve.

The fair value of the issued subordinated bonds does not contain direct fransaction costs, which were expensed on issue.

As at 31 December 2016

Total Fair Total Carrying
in MCZK Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value amount
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks - 19,718 - 19,718 19,724
Due from financial institutions - 34,343 - 34,343 34,379
Loans and advances fo customers - 73,390 2668 76,968 74,668
Financial assefs held to maturity 625 - - 625 608
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposits and loans from banks - 4,244 - 4,244 4,259
Deposits from customers - 121,366 - 121,366 121,812

Subordinated debt - 1,967 - 1,967 2,049
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As at 31 December 2014

Total Fair Total Carrying
in MCZK Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 value amount
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks - 13,337 - 13,337 13,339
Due from financial institutions - 7142 - 7142 7164
Loans and advances to cusfomers - 68,803 3,333 72,138 71170
Financial assefs held fo maturity 1,391 - - 1,391 1,329
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Depasits and loans from banks - 4,669 - 4,669 4,618
Deposits from customers - 105,900 - 105,900 106,946
Subordinated debt - 1,763 - 1,763 1,908

48. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS OF SUBSIDIARIES, ASSOCIATES AND JOINT VENTURES

a) Acquisitions of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures
The Group did not acquire any new subsidiaries in 2015. The Group increased the capital of subsidiaries (see nate 1).

The capital increase in subsidiaries, see below for details:

Date of Conftribution Total cash
in MCZK acquisifion Cost to capital outflow
CAPITAL INCREASE IN SUBSIDIARIES IN 2015
J&T Bank, a.o. 20.6.20156 - 2,768 -
Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin 5.2.2015 - 135 -
Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin 28.9.2015 - 231 -
J&T Cafe, s.r.o. 31.12.2015 - 1 -
Total - 3,125 -

Date of Confribution Total cash
in MCZK acquisifion Cost to capital outflow
NEW SUBSIDIARIES IN 2014
Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin 9.6.2014 - 272 -
J&T Cafe, s.r.o. 30.8.2014 - 3 -
J&T Bank, zao 13.8.2014 - 204
Total - 479 -
Cash acquired 687
Total cash inflow/[outflow) 687

Conftribution to capital of Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin and J&T Cafe, s.r.o. was made on the same day as the acquisition in 2014.
The capital increase of J&T Cafe, sr.o. was subsequently credited against the repayment of debts to Bank.

Conftribution to capital of subsidiaries does not represent the cash outflow from the Group.
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New associates in 2015

Date of Confribution Total cash
in MCZK increased Cost to capital outflow
NEW ASSOCIATES IN 2015
XT-Card a.s. 26.11.2015 B - B
Total 6 - 6

The Group did not acquire any new associate in 2014.
The Group increased the share capital of the Po&tové banka, a.s. [see note 1).

The capital increase in associates represents cash out from the group, see below for details:

Date of Conftribution Total cash
in MCZK acquisition Cost to capital outflow
NEW ASSOCIATES IN 2014
Pogtova banka, a.s. 4.7.2014 - 599 599
Postova banka, a.s. 11.7.2014 - 82 82
Total - 681 681
b) Formation/establishment of subsidiaries and joint ventures
The Group did not form/establish any new subsidiaries in 2015.

The Group increased the capital of the PGJT BV. (see nate 1),

Date of Confribution Total cash
in MCZK acquisifion Cost to capital outflow
CAPITAL INCREASE IN JOINT VENTURES IN 2015
PGJT B.V. 18.7.2015 - 13 13
Total - 13 13

Date of Confribution Total cash
in MCZK acquisition Cost to capital outflow
NEW SUBSIDIARIES AND JOINT VENTURES IN 2014
ART FOND - Stredoeurdpsky fond stcasného umenia, a. s. (subsidiary) 5.12.2014 - 8 -
J&T REALITY, o.p.f. [subsidiary) 27.2.2014 - 219 -
Total - 227 -

Contribution fo capital of subsidiaries does not represent the cash outflow from the Group. Confribution to capital of joint
ventures does represent the cash outflow from the Group as they are not consolidated using full method.
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c) Effect of acquisitions of subsidiaries
The acquisitions of new subsidiaries (only consolidated “full method"] had the following effect on the Group’s assets and
liabilities:

The Group did not acquire any new subsidiaries in 2015.

1.1.-31.12. 2014

in MCZK 2014
Cash and balances with central banks 968
Obligatory minimum reserves 326
Due from financial institutions 9
Financial assetfs available for sale 864
Loans and advances to custfomers 2,432
Property, plant and equipment 171
Ofher infangible assetfs 27
Deferred tax asset 8
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 71
Deposits and Loans from banks 248
Deposits from customers 3,656
Other liabilities and provisions 306
Net identifiable assets and liabilities 457
Non-controlling interest (190)
Goodwill on acquisition of new subsidiaries 5
Consideration transferred, paid in cash 272
Cash acquired 687
Profit or loss since acquisition date (37)
Revenues since acquisition date 57
Profit or loss of the acquired enftities for the year 2014 (24)]
Revenues of the acquired entity for the year 2014 93

d) Disposals of subsidiaries
The Group did not dispose of any subsidiary in 2016 and 2074,
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e) Disposals of associates
The Group sold of the Pogtova banka, a.s. in 2015 (see note 1).

Date of Total cash
in MCZK acquisifion Cost inflow
PoStovéa banka, a.s. 13.3.2015 B15 B15
PosStovéa banka, a.s. 23.12.2015 6,260 6,260
Total 6,865 6,865

49. INVESTMENTS IN EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTEES

The following table shows a break-down of individual investments in equity accounted investees. All financial information
presented in this nofe represent the audited figures.

As at 31 December 20156

in MCZK PGJT BV  XT-Card a.s. Total
Group's share in the consolidated fair value of equity at the date of acquisition 1186 B 122
Exchange rate differences 5 - 5
Group's share in the post-acquisition profit / (loss) year 2013 (13) - (13)
Group's share in the post-acquisition profit / (loss) year 2014 (18) - (18)
Group's share in the post-acquisition profit / (loss) year 2016 (32] - (32]
Group's share in the post-acquisition other comprehensive income [29] - (29)
Total 29 6 35
As af 31 December 2014
Postovéa

in MCZK banka, a.s. PGJT B.V. Total
Group's share in the consalidated fair value of equity at the date of acquisition 5,636 103 5,739
Goodwill 239 - 239
Exchange rate differences 404 8 412
Group's share in the post-acquisition profit / (loss) year 2013 334 (13] 321
Group's share in the post-acquisition profit / (loss) year 2014 358 (18] 340
Group's share in the post-acquisition other comprehensive income 124 (25) 99

2
Total 7,095 55 7,150
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Summary financial information for equity accounted investees as at 31 December 2015:

Postova

in MCZK banka, a.s. PGJT B.V. XT-Card a.s. Total
Type Associate  Joinf ventfure Assaciate

Assets - 344 23 367
Liabilities - 60 il 71
Net Assets - 284 12 296
Income - 29 B 36
Expenses - 93 7 100
Profit / (loss) - (64) (1) (65)
Group's share - 50% 32% X
Group's share in profit / [loss) of equity accounted investees 199 (32) - 167

Summary financial information for equity accounted investees as at 31 December 2014:

Postova

in MCZK banka, a.s. PGJT B.V. Total
Type Associate  Joinf ventfure

Assets 122,775 329 123,104
Liabilities 102,766 21 102,787
Net Assets 20,009 308 20,317
Income 45,608 27 45,633
Expenses [44,7458) (64] (44,809)
Profit / (loss] 761 (37) X
Group's share 37.17% 50% X
Group's share in profit / [loss) of equity accounted investees 358 (18] 340

50. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In February 2016, the Bank sold its ownership interest in the company ART FOND - Stredoeurdpsky fond sti¢asného umenia,
a.s.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
to the Shareholders
of J & T BANKA, a.s.

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of J & T BANKA, a.s. prepared in accordance with
Infernational Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as of 31 Becember 2015, and the consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consaolidated statement
of changes in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year then ended, and the nofes fo these consolidated
financial statements including a summary of significant accounting palicies and ather explanatory notes. Information about J &
T BANKA, a.s. set outf in Notfe 1to these consolidated financial statements.

Statutory Body's Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The stafutory body of J & T BANKA, a.s. is responsible for the preparation of consolidated financial statements that give a frue
and fair view in accordance with Infernational Financial Reporfing Standards as adopfed by the European Union and for such
infernal controls as the statutory body defermines are necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these consolidated financial statfements based on our audit. We conducted our
audit in accordance with the Act on Auditors, Internatfional Standards on Auditing, and the relevant guidance of the Chamber of
Auditors of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit To obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statfements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due fo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments,
the auditor considers infernal controls relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial
statements in order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal controls. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting palicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
overall presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair view of the financial position of J & T BANKA, a.s. as of
31 December 2015, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Infernational
Financial Reporfing Standards as adoptfed by the European Union.

Other Information
Other information is defined as information (other than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor's report] included
in the consolidated annual report. The sfafufory body is responsible for the ather information.
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Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements of J & T BANKA, a.s. as of 31 December 2015 does not cover the ofther
information and we do not express any form of opinion thereon. In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is fo read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information included
in the consolidated annual report is not materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statfements or our knowledge
obtained in the audit, whether the consolidated annual report is prepared in accordance with applicable legislation and whether
such information otherwise does not appear to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude
that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required fo report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.

Prague
31 March 20186

KPH G Chﬁ, ,\7,/,{«6, Leoed

KPMG Ceska republika Audit, s.r.o. Vladimir Dvoracek
Regisfration number 71 Partner
Registrafion numbe 2332
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in MCZK Note 2015 2014
ASSETS

Cash and balances with central banks 5} 19,023 12,328
Due from financial institutions 7 33,6681 6,295
Positive fair value of derivatives 8 102 100
Loans and advances to cusfomers 11a 70,042 66,3M
Financial assefs at fair value through profit or loss 9a 2,731 8,768
Financial assets available for sale 9b 14,862 21,100
Financial assefs held fo maturity 9c 609 1,31
Disposal groups held for sale 1 1,368 107
Ownership interests 1 3,309 8,800
Current tax assef 59 -
Deferred tax asset 23 88 70
Property, plant and equipment 13 48 51
Intangible assefs 14 1056 15
Prepayments, accrued income and other assefs 16 993 684
Total Assets 146,990 126,041
in MCZK Note 2015 2014
LIABILITIES

Deposits and loans from banks 17 4,343 4,637
Deposits from customers 18 117,068 100,356
Negative fair value of derivatives 8 125 988
Subordinated debt 19 2,049 1,897
Current tax liability - n7
Ofher liabilities and provisions 20 6,616 3,770
Total Liabilities 130,191 111,665
Share capital 21 10,638 9,668
Retained earnings and other reserves 21 6,161 4,818
Total Equity 16,799 14,376
Total equity and liabilities 146,990 126,041

The accompanying notes, set out on pages 138 to 208, are an infegral part of these financial statements.
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Statement of comprehensive
income for the year ended
31 December 2015

in MCZzZK Note 2015 2014
Inferest income 24 5,363 5,166
Interest expense 25 (2,459) (2,628]
Net interest income 2,894 2,627
Fee and commission income 28 603 5786
Fee and commission expense 27 (127] (98]
Net fee and commission income 476 481
Dividends from financial assefs available for sale 14 75
Dividends from ownership inferests 384 122
Net trading income 28 25 270
Impairment of assets available for sale 9b (32) (62)
Other operating income 29 834 98
Operating income 4,595 3,611
Personnel expenses 30 (731 (B840)
Other operating expenses 31 (1,033) (975]
Depreciation and amortisation 13, 14 (87) (581
Operating expenses (1,831) (1,666)
Profit before provisions, allowances and income tax expenses 2,764 1,945
Net change in provisions from financial activities 20 (23) (19)
Net change in allowances for impairment of loans 12 (542] (259)
Allowances for ownership interests 1 (238]) (92]
Profit before tax 1,963 1,675
Income tax expenses 22 (230) (332]
Profit for the period 1,733 1,243
PROFIT FOR THE PERIOD ATTRIBUTABLE TO:

Shareholders 1,733 1,243

Profit for the period 1,733 1,243
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in MCZK Note 2015 2014

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME - ITEMS THAT ARE OR MAY BE RECLASSIFIED
SUBSEQUENTLY TO PROFIT OR LOSS

Revaluation reserve — financial assetfs available for sale

Net change in fair value 148 72
Net amount reclassified to profit or loss (123) (84)
Foreign exchange franslation differences (5] (20)
Other comprehensive income for the period, net of tax 18 (32)
Total comprehensive income for the period 1,751 1,21

The accompanying notfes, sef out on pages 138 fo 209, are an infegral part of these financial statements.
The Board of Directors approved these financial statements on 31 March 2016.

Signed on behalf of the Board:

c
Stépan Aser, MBA Ing. Igor Kovae
Member of the Board of Directors Member of the Board of Directors
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Statement of changes
in equity for the year ended
31 December 2015

Share Retained
in MCZK capital earnings
Balance at 1 January 2014 9,668 3,103
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
Profit for the period - 1,243
Transfer of legal reserve fund - 1656
Dividends - (B31)
Issue of capital insfruments - -
Conftribution to Perpetuity fund - (100])
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Fair value reserve (available-for-sale financial assets):

Nef change in fair value - -

Net amount reclassified fo profit or loss - -
Foreign exchange translation differences - -
Balance at 1 January 2015 9,658 3,770
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FOR THE PERIOD
Issue of capital 1,080 -
Profit for the period - 1,733
Dividends - (1143)
Issue of capital instfruments - -
Conftribution to Perpetuity fund - (100)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Fair value reserve (available-for-sale financial assetfs]:

Net change in fair value - -

Net amount reclassified to profit or loss - -
Foreign exchange translation differences - -
Balance at 31 December 2015 10,638 4,260

On November 10, 2016 the J&T Bank's sole shareholder JST FINANCE GROUP SE increased share capital of the Bank by
subscription of new shares tataling CZK 1 080 million.

Information about Other capital funds and Perpetfuity fund is disclosed in note 21.

The accompanying notfes, sef out on pages 138 fo 209, are an infegral part of these financial statfements.
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Other reserves Perpetuity Other capital Revaluation
and funds fund instruments reserve Total
155 - - 101 12,917
- - - - 1,243
(158] - - - -
- - - - (631)
- (20) 899 - 879
- 100 - - -
- - - 72 72
- - - (84) (84)
- - - (20) (20)
- 80 899 69 14,376
- - - - 1,080
- - - - 1,733
- - - - (1143)
- (108] 843 - 736
- 100 - - -
— - - 148 148
- - - (123) (123)

- 72 1,742 87 16,7989
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Statement of cash flows

for the year ended
31 December 2015

in MCZK Note 2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Profit before ftax 1,963 1575
Adjustments for:

Depreciation and amortisation 13, 14 67 51
Allowances for impairment of loans 12 542 269
FX difference from allowances for impairment of loans 12 (8] 7
Amortized costs of sold infangible and fangible fixed assefs B -
Change in other provisions 180 171
Change in revaluation of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss 45 (687)
Ownership interests — unrealised FX difference / FV hedge 998 (144)
Creation of allowances for ownership interests 1 236 92
Profit from sale of associate (737) -
Financial assets availale for sale - unrealised FX difference / FV hedge 92 (28]
Impairment of financial assets available for sale 9b 32 62
Net unrealized foreign exchange gains/losses (191) (59]
[Increase) / decrease of operating assets:

Compulsory minimum reserves in central banks (528) (943)
Due from financial institutions 770 122
Originated loans and receivables (4,285) (10,194)
Financial assefs held fo maturity 702 53b
Financial assefs af fair value through profit or loss 5,992 (2.083]
Financial assefs availale for sale 6,153 (814)
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets (309) (223)
Increase / (decrease) of operating liabilities:

Deposits and loans from banks (194) (199]
Deposits from customers 16,702 18,338
Other assets/liabilities 2,666 6814
Income tax expenses paid (431) (253)
Net increase / (decrease] in fair values of derivatives

Fair value of derivative instruments (865) 587
Net cash flows from operating activities 29,620 7,406
CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

Increase in share capital — subscription of new shares 1,080 -
Dividends paid (1143) (B831]
Issue of other capital instruments 843 899
Distribution from capital instruments (108) (20]
Subordinated debt 124 376
Foreign currency difference from subordinated debt 28 13
Net cash flows from financing activities 824 637
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in MCZK Note 2015 2014
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Acquisition of and proceeds from sale of intfangible and tangible fixed assetfs, net (58] (78]
Participations — contribution to capital (3.138] (1,.387)
Disposal of associate 6,866 -
Net cash flows used in investing activities 3,669 (1,462)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents 34,113 6,581
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of period 5, 32 16,1656 9,634
Effects of exchange rate fluctuations on cash held 191 40
Cash and cash equivalents at end of period 5, 32 50,459 16,165
Cash flows from operating acftivities include:

Interest received 5,408 4,777
Interest paid 1,966 1,813
Dividends received 423 197

The accompanying notes, set out on pages 138 fo 209, are an infegral part of these financial statfements.
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Notes to the financial
statements for the year ended
31 December 2015

1. GENERAL INFORMATION
J & T BANKA, a.s. ('the Bank'] is a joint stock company incorporated on 13 October 1992 in the Czech Republic.

The Bank received a licence to act as securities frader on 256 April 2003 and on 22 December 2003, the Bank's licence was
extended to include that activity.

The Bank's activities are focused on private, investment, corporate and retail banking.

The Bank is subject to the regulatory requirements of Czech National Bank ("CNB"). These requirements include limits and other
resfrictions concerning capital adequacy, the classification of loans and off-balance sheet liabilities, large exposure with clients
of the Bank, liquidity and the Bank's foreign currency position efc.

In December 2016, the Czech National Bank ('CNB") started administrative procedures with the Bank based on an on-sife
inspection concerning the implementation of cerfain provisions of the Banking Act, the Act on Capital Market and Decree no.
183/2014 Coll. prudential rules for banks, credit unions and securities dealers. The Bank submitted a statement on the findings
reporfed by CNB. As at the dafe of the financial statements, the Bank has initiated appropriate actions that will remedy the
findings identified by CNB.

The registered office of the Bank is at Pobfezni 14, Prague 8, Czech Republic. The Bank (including a branch in the Slovakia) had
on average 443 employees in 2016 (2014: 434). The Bank operates in the Czech Republic and Slovakia.

Slovakia branch of the Bank was established on 23 November 2005, and was registered in the Commercial Register of the
District Court Bratislava |, section Po, file 1320/B as the organizational unit "J & T BANKA, a.s., pobotka zahrani¢ni banky",
Dvorakovo nabrezie 8, 811 02 Bratislava, and with the identification number 365 864 693.

On BDecember 15, 2008, J&T FINANCE GROUP, a.s. confributed ifs 100% inferest in the Bank fo the capital of J&T FINANCE, a.s.,
Pobiezni 297/14, 186 00 Praha 8, which became the Bank's sole sharehaolder.

On January 1, 20089, Slovakia joined the Euro Area and adopted Euro fo replace Slovak crown. With effect from that date, the
Branch prepares financial stafements and maintfains its accounting records in Euro.

As a result of a cross-border merger by acquisition dated September 23, 2013, J&T FINANCE, a.s., the Bank's parent company,
merged with J&T Finance Group, a.s. and Techno Plus, a.s. as at 1 January 2014. J&T FINANCE, a.s. became the successor
company, changing its name o JST FINANCE GROUP SE and its legal form to European Society (Societas Europaea, SE).

The Bank's ultimate parent is JGT FINANCE GROUP SE, a joint-stock company owned by Jozef Tkat (45.57%), lvan Jakabovit
(46.67%), CEFC Shanghai International Group Limited (4.79%) and CEFC Hainan Infernational Holdings CO., Ltd. (4.07%).



Financial Part | Separate Financial Statements 139

Ownership interests
The below listed comanies became the Bank’s subsidiaries, associated companies and joint venture with the intention of the
sharehalder fo centralize financial services under the Bank’s supervision.

The Bank provides cusfomers with comprehensive banking services, asset management, financial and capital market
fransactions for the retail segment, as well as support fo start-up and restructuring projects. The Group's operating segments
are described in the nofe 34.

Balance atf Share capital % Principal Country of
Company 31.12.2015 in mil. CZK shareholding activities incorporation
J&T Bank, a.o. 2,b22* 2,144 98.96* Banking activities Russia
ATLANTIK finan¢nf trhy, a.s. 82 81 100 Investment activities Czech Republic
J&T INVESTICNI SPOLECNOST, a.s. 149 20 100 Investment activities Czech Republic
J&T IB and Capital Markets, a.s. 2 2 100 Advisory activities Czech Republic
TERCES MANAGEMENT LIMITED 377 0,08 99 Investment activities Cyprus
PGJT B.V. 121 216 50 Financial activities Netherlands
J&T REALITY, o.p.f. 675 - 53.08 Investment activities Czech Republic
Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin 635 818 76.81 Banking activities Croatia
J&T Cafe, s.r.o. - 3 100 Hospitality activities Czech Republic
ART FOND - Stredoeurdpsky fond
sUcasneého umenia, a.s. 7 18 38.46 Activities in the Arts Slovakia
Total 4,570

On February 16, 2015, the subsidiary company J&T Bank, a.0. changed its trade name to J&T Bank, a.o.

On May 20, 2015, the Bank increased its ownership inferest in J&T Bank, a.0. by a subscription of 112 000 000 pieces of new
ordinary shares in tofal nominal value of RUB 5.6 million.

* In Sepftember 2015, there was signed an agreement between CEFC Shanghai and J&T Bank, a.s. based on which CEFC
Shanghai will acquire 50% ownership interest in J&T Bank, a.0. The fransaction is subject of approval by the national regulators
in Russia. As a result of the agreement, the Bank presents JGT Bank, a.0. as an asset held for sale. The Bank does not lose the
contral over J&GT Bank, a.o.

In 2015, tThe Bank increased ifs ownership inferest in Vaba d.d. Bank of Varazdin. On February 5, 2015, subscribed for 3 7560 000
units of new ordinary shares in fotal nominal value of HRK 37.5 million. On September 28, 2015, the Bank subscribed for 6 500 000
units of new ordinary shares in fatal nominal value of HRK 65 million. By these steps Bank gained more than 76% of Vaba dd
Bank Varazdin.

On February 24, 2015, the Bank entered into an agreement with J & T FINANCE GROUP SE relating fo the sale of shares in
Postova banka, a.s. The agreement became effective on March 13, 2015, and resulted in fransfer of 3.17% ownership interest,
10 473 pieces of ordinary shares, nominal value 1107 EUR per share, fo J & T FINANCE GROUP SE.
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On February 25, 2015, the Bank entfered info an agreement with PBI, a.s. for the sale of 37.17% ownership inferest in Postova
banka, a.s. The agreement became effective on December 23, 2015, and resulted in transfer of 112 506 pieces of ordinary
shares, nominal value 1107 EUR per share.

In 2015, the Bank increased ifs ownership interest in the company J & T Cafe, s.r.o. by the amount of CZK 0.8 million as an
additional charge beside the share capital.

On July 18, 2015, the Bank increased its ownership inferest in the company PGJT B\V. by confribution fo capital funds in the
amount of RUB 30 millian.

On December 312015, the Bank created allowance for the entire value of the ownership inferest in the company of J & T Cafe,
s.r.0. on December 31, 2016 due to its planned liquidation in 2016.

The Bank created allowances for ownership inferests fotfaling CZK 236 million in 2015.

Disposal groups held for sale as at 31 Becember 2015 are as follows:

Balance at % Principal Country of
Company 3112.2015  shareholding activities incorporation
Investments in companies
J&T Osfravice Active Life UPF 107 48.74 owning real estate Czech Republic
J&T Bank, a.o. 1,261 49.97 Banking activities Russia
Total 1,368

Subsidiaries of Bank as at 31 December 2014 are shown in the following table:

Balance af Share capital % Principal Country of
Company 31.12.2014 in mil. CZK shareholding activities incorporation
J&T Bank, zao 633 306 99.64 Banking activities Russia
ATLANTIK finan¢nf trhy, a.s. 147 81 100 Investment activities Czech Republic
J&T INVESTICNI SPOLECNOST, a.s. 149 20 100 Investment activities Czech Republic
J&T IB and Capital Markets, a.s. 2 2 100 Advisory activities Czech Republic
TERCES MANAGEMENT LIMITED 501 0,056 98 Investment activities Cyprus
PGJT B.V. m 222 50 Financial activities Netherlands
Postova banka, a.s. 8,279 10,1656 3717 Banking activities Slovakia
J&T REALITY, o.p.f. 692 - 53.08 Investment activities Czech Republic
Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin 275 4866 58.33 Banking activities Croatia
J&T Cafe, s.r.o. 3 3 100 Hospitality activities Czech Republic
ART FOND - Stfredoeuropsky fond
sUcasneého umenia, a.s. 8 18 38.46 Activities in the Arts Slovakia
Total 8,800

On February 27, 2014, the Bank increased the share capital of J&T REALITY, o.p.f. by amount of EUR 8 million. Affer the increase
the Bank holds an ownership share of 53.08%. The Bank fully controls the company through its subsidiary company J&T
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INVESTICNI SPOLECNOST, a.s., that manages this fund.

On June 9, 2014, the Bank acquired 58.33% ownership inferest in Vaba d.d. banka Varazdin.

In July 2014, the Bank increased its ownership inferest in Postova banka, a.s. On 4 July, the Bank subscribed 18 706 new
ordinary shares with a faotal nominal value of EUR 21 814 542 and on July 11 the Bank subscribed 2 673 new ordinary shares
with a fafal nominal value of EUR 2 959 011. The bank increased its ownership inferest by 0.81% in this associate from 36.36%
fo current inferest of 37.17%.

On September 30, 2014, the Bank acquired 100% ownership inferest in J&T Cafe, s.r.o.

On November 13, 2014, the Bank acquired 38.468% ownership interest in ART FOND — Stfredoeurdpsky fond sti¢asného umenia,
a. s. Under the terms of the Shareholders Agreement, the Bank has a contralling influence over this company.

The Bank created allowances for ownership inferests fotaling CZK 92 million in 2074.

Disposal groups held for sale as at 31 December 2014 are as follows:

Balance at % Principal Country of
Company 3112.2014  shareholding activities incorporation
Investments in companies
J&T Osfravice Active Life UPF 107 48.74 owning real estate Czech Republic
Total 107

During 2014, the Bank sold 2.17% share of own ownership inferest in the fund J&T Ostravice Active Life UPF.

2. BASIS OF PREPARATION

(a) Statement of compliance

The financial statements comprise the accounts of the members of the Bank and have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards ('IFRS") as adopted by the European Union for the reporting period of 1 January
2015 — 31 December 2015 ("reporting period").

(b) Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared under the histarical cost convention except for investment property, financial assets
and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, available-for-sale assefs and derivatives, which are measured at fair value.

The Bank maintains their accountfing books and prepare their statfements for regulatory purposes in accordance with local
statutory accounting principles. The accompanying financial statements are based on the statufory accounting records

together with appropriate adjustments and reclassifications necessary for fair presentation in accordance with IFRS.

Below stated accounting methods have been applied consistently in all periods presented in this financial statements.
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In particular, information about significant areas of uncertainty estimation and critical judgements in applying accounting policies
that have a significant effect on the amounts recognized in the financial stafements are described in note 4.

Issued but not yet effective International Financial Reporting Standards
A number of new standards, amendments fo stfandards and inferpretfations are not yet effective or not yet adopted by the EU
for the year ended 31 December 2015, and have naot been applied in preparing these financial statfements:

Amendments to IFRS 11 — Accounting for Acquisitions of Inferests in Joint Operations

Effectfive for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016; To be applied prospectively. Early application is permitted.
These Amendments require business combination accounting to be applied fo acquisitions of inferests in a joint operation that
constifutfes a business.

Business combination accounting also applies tfo the acquisition of additional interesfs in a joint operatfion while the joint
operator retains joint contral. The additional inferest acquired will be measured at fair value. The previously held inferests in the

joint operation will not be remeasured.
The Bank expects that the amendments, when inifially applied, will nat have a a significant effect on the financial statements.

Amendments fo IAS 1 - Presentation of Financial Statements
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2016. Early application is permitted. The Amendments o IAS 1
include the following five, narrow-focus improvements fo the disclosure requirements contfained in the standard.

The guidance on materiality in IAS 1 has been amended tfo clarify that:
— Immaterial information can detract from useful information.

— Materiality applies fo the whole of the financial statfements.

— Materiality applies to each disclosure requirement in an IFRS.

The guidance on the order of the notes (including the accounting policies) have been amended, to:
— Remove language from IAS 1that has been interprefed as prescribing the order of notes to the financial statements;
— Clarify that enfities have flexibility about where they disclose accounting palicies in the financial statfements.

The Bank expects that the amendments, when initially applied, will not have a a significant effect on the presentation of the

financial statements.

Amendments fo IAS 19 — Defined Benefit Plans: Employee Contributions

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 February 2015. The amendments apply refrospectively. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are relevant only to defined benefit plans that involve contributions from employees or third parties
meeting certain criteria. Namely that they are:

— sef ouf in the formal terms of the plan;

— linked tfo service; and
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— independent of the number of years of service.

When these criteria are met, a company is permitted (but not required) to recognise them as a reduction of the service cost in
the period in which the related service is rendered.

The Bank expects that the amendments, when initially applied, will not have a a significant effect on the financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 27 — Equity method in the separate financial statements
Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January 2016 and apply refrospectively. Early application is permitted.

The amendments to IAS 27 allow an entity fo use the equity method in ifs separate financial statements fo account for
investments in subsidiaries, assaociates and joint ventures.

Other new Infernational Financial Reporting Standards and Interpretations not yet due

The Bank has not early adopted any IFRS sfandards where adoption is not mandatory at the sfatement of financial position
date. Where fransition provisions in adopted IFRS give an entity the choice of whether fo apply new sfandards prospectively or
refrospectively, The Bank elects to apply the sfandards prospectively from the date of transition.

Management of the Bank does not expect that these other new sftandards will have a significant effect on the financial statements.
(c) Functional and presentation currency
The accompanying financial statements are presented in the national currency of the Czech Republic, the Czech crown ("CZK'),

rounded to the nearest million.

3. ACCOUNTING POLICIES
The particular accounting policies adopted in preparation of the accompanying financial statements are described below.

(a) Financial instruments

Classification

Financial instruments af fair value through profit or loss are those that the Bank principally holds for the purpose of short-term
profit taking. These include investments and derivative contracts that are not designated as effective hedging instruments and
liabilities from short sales of financial insfruments.

Originated loans and receivables comprise loans, advances fo banks and customers other than purchased loans and promissory notfes.

Held-to-maturity assets are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed maturity that the Bank
has the infent and ability fo hold to maturity.

Available-for-sale assetfs are financial assets that are not measured at fair value through profit or loss or held to maturity.
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The Bank's accounting policies provide scope for assets and liabilities to be designated at inception into different accounting

cafegories in cerfain circumstances:

— In classifying financial assets or liabilities as "frading’, management has determined that the Bank meets the descriptfion of
frading assetfs and liabilities;

— The Bank regularly evaluates the liquidity of partficular financial instrument with respect fo market conditions;

— Inclassifying financial assets as held-fo-maturity, management has defermined that the Bank has both the positive infention
and the ability To hold the assets unfil their maturity date as required.

Recaognition

Financial assetfs af fair value through profit or loss are recognized on the dafe the Bank commits to purchase the assets.
From this date, any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of the assets are recognized in the statement of
comprehensive income.

The Bank recognizes available-for-sale assefs on the date it commits to purchase the assets. From this date, any gains or
losses arising from changes in the fair value of the assefs are recognized in equity as differences from revaluation of assefs.

Held-to-maturity assets are accounted for at frade date.

Measurement

Financial instruments are measured initially at fair value, including transaction costs, with the exception of transaction costs
related to financial insfruments designated at fair value through profif or loss which are recognized directly in the statement of
comprehensive income.

Subseguent fo initial recognition, all instruments designated at fair value through profit or loss and all available-for-sale assets
are measured at fair value, except any instrument that does not have a quoted market price on an active market and whose fair
value cannot be reliably measured, which is stated at cost, including fransaction costs, less impairment losses.

All non-trading financial liabilities, originated loans and receivables and held-to-maturity assefs are measured at amortfised
cost less impairment losses. Amortised cost is calculated using the effective interest rate method. Premiums and discounts,
including initial fransaction costs, are included in the carrying amount of the related instrument and amortised based on the
effective inferest rate of the insfrument.

Fair value measurement principles

The fair value of financial instruments is based on their quoted market price at the statement of financial position date without
any deduction for fransaction costs. If a quoted market price is not available, the fair value of the instrument is estimated using
pricing models or discounted cash flow fechnigues.

Where discounted cash flow techniques are used, esfimated fufture cash flows are based on management's best esfimates
and the discount rate is a marketf-related rate at the statfement of financial pasifion date for an instrument with similar ferms and
conditions. Where pricing models are used, inputs are based on markef-related measures at the statement of financial position date.
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Gains and losses on subsequent measurement

Gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial instruments at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in tThe sfatement of comprehensive income while gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of available-for-sale
assefs are recognized directly in equity as differences arising from revaluation of assefs and liabilities. Changes in fair value
are derecognised from equity through profit or loss af the moment of sale. Inferest from available-for-sale assets is recorded in
the sfatement of comprehensive income.

Derecognition
A financial asset is derecognised when the Bank loses control aver the contfractual rights that comprise that asset. This occurs
when the rights are realised, expire or are surrendered. A financial liability is derecognised when it is exfinguished.

Available-for-sale assefs and financial assets af fair value through profit or loss that are sold are derecognised and the
corresponding receivables from the buyer are recognised on the day the Bank commits to sell the assets.

Held-to-maturity assets and originated loans and receivables are derecognised on the day they are sold by the Bank.

Impairment
Financial assetfs are reviewed at each statement of financial pasition date to defermine whether there is objective evidence of
impairment. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated.

The Bank assesses at the end of each guarter, whether there is any objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of
financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial assetfs is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is
objective evidence of impairment as a result of one or maore events that have occurred after the inifial recognition of the asset
(an incurred loss event) and that loss event (or events) has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the financial asset
or the group of financial assets that can be reliably esfimated.

Evidence of impairment may include: indicatfions that the borrower or a group of barrowers is experiencing significant financial
difficulty; the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation; default or delinquency in interest or
principal payments; and where observable data indicates that there is a measurable decrease in the esfimated future cash
flows, such as changes in arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

If an impairment of a financial asset available far sale is identified, the accumulated gains or losses recorded earlier in other
comprehensive income are reclassified and recorded in profit or loss in the given period.

In case of an impairment of a financial asset available for sale as a result of a decrease in the registered capital, the resulting
income is recognised as a received dividend in profit or loss.

Loans and advances to customers and deposifts with banks
Loans and advances to cusfomers and deposits with banks are carried at the amount of principal outstanding including
accrued interest, net of impairment. The impairment is booked as specific allowance for loan losses.
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The Bank classifies all its receivables from clients into the following five basic cafegories laid down by Decree of the Czech
National Bank No. 183/2014 Sb.: receivables without obligor default divided info standard and watch receivables, and receivables
with obligor default divided into non-standard, doubtful and loss receivables.

In the evaluation of individual loans, the classification fakes info account bath qualitative and quanfitative criteria. The criferia

mentioned include the following:

— maijor financial problems of the debtor

— breach of a confract, e.g. delayed payment of inferest or principal or failure fo pay them;

- relief provided by the creditor fo the debtor for economic or other legal reasons relating fo debtor's financial problems, that
the creditor would not have oftherwise provided;

— likelihood of bankruptcy or other financial restructuring of the debtor;

— extinction of an active market for the given financial asset for financial reasons; or

— observable facts demonstrating a measurable decline of estimated future cash flow from the group of financial assetfs after
their initial recognition despite the existing impossibility to detect the decrease for individual financial assets in the group

— and other.

Forbearance

The Bank freafs forbearance in accordance with the Technical Standard on non-performing exposures and forbearance
measures published by the European Banking Authority (EBA) and in accordance with the Public Statement of the European
Securities and Markets Authority (ESMA] on the freatment of forbearance practices in the financial statements of the financial
institutions prepared in accordance with Infernational Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS).

Forbearance is an exposure where the bank decides, due to debtor's financial problems, fo grant a concession which in other
circumstances would not be granfed. The concession may consist in the modification of the terms and conditions of the
confract or in debt refinancing. The modification of ferms and conditions may include, but is not limited to, a decrease in interest
rate, reduction of the interest or principal, change in the repayment schedule (e.g. postponement of inferest payment due date,
tfemparary payment holiday, prolongatfion of the final due date of the loan, fee or accessories for the debtfor, modification or non-
monitoring of covenants, inferest or instalment capitalisation, partial debt write-off). Any modification of terms and conditions or
refinancing which is not result of debtor's financial problems cannot be interpreted as forbearance. Concessions may resulf in
beffer inferest risk management and mitigafion of pofential fufure loan losses.

Performing and non-performing exposures may also be recognised as exposures without concession provided no madification
of terms and conditions or refinancing was made in respect fo the given receivable.

Non-performing exposures comprise receivables with debtar's failure.
Details regarding the structure and quality of the credit portfolio are described in note 36.

Based on regular reviews of the ouftstanding balances, specific allowances for impairment of loans are made for the carrying amount
of loans and advances that are identified as being impaired fo reduce these loans and advances fo the amounts recaverable.
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The Bank mainly uses the financial statements of the client and the Bank's own analysis as the basis for assessment of the
loan's collectability.

Allowances made, less amounts released during the reporfing period, are charged fo statement of comprehensive income.
Outstanding loan expasures are writfen off only when there is no realistic prospect of recovery. If in a subsequent period the
amount of an allowance for loan losses decreases and the decrease can be linked objectively fo an event occurring affer the
allowance was booked, the allowance is reversed through the statement of comprehensive income.

In esfimating the amount of allowances necessary, management evaluates the likelihood of repayment of individual loans and
takes info account the value of collateral and the ability of the Bank tfo realize the collateral.

Calculated amount of allowances is allocated proportionally to the partial components of the carrying amount of receivable, i.e.
principal, inferest income and penalty inferest.

Treasury bills

Treasury bills, comprising bills issued by Czech Republic government agencies, are sfated at cost including the amortfised
discount arising on purchase. The discount is amortised over the ferm to maturity with the amortisation being included in
interest income.

Derivatives

Derivatives including currency forwards and opfions are initially recognized in the sfatement of financial posifion at cost
(including fransaction costs) and are subsequently remeasured at their fair value. Fair values are obtained from quoted market
prices and discounted cash flow models. The pasitive fair value of derivatives is recognized as an asset while the negative fair
value of derivatives is recognized as a liability.

Cerfain derivatives embedded in other financial instfruments are treated as separate derivatives when their risks and
characteristics are notf closely related fo those of the host contract, a separafe instfrument with the same terms as the
embedded derivative would meet the definition of a derivative and the hybrid (combined) instrument is not measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.

Changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in net trading income.

Hedge accounting — Fair Value Hedge

When a derivafive is designafted as a hedge of the change in fair value of a recognised asset or liability or a commitment,
changes in the fair value of the derivative are recognised immediately in the statfement of comprehensive income fogether
with changes in the fair value of the hedged item that are atfributable to the hedged risk (in the same line as the hedged item).

Hedge accounting is discontinued if the derivative expire or is sold, ferminated, or exercised, no longer meets the criteria for fair
value hedge accounting, or the designation is revoked. Any adjustment fo a hedged itfem for which the effective inferest rafe
method is used is amortised fo profit or loss as part of the recalculated effective interest rate of the item over its remaining life.
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(b) Sale and repurchase agreements

Where securities are sold under a commitment to repurchase at a predetermined price ('repurchase agreements'], they remain
on the sfatement of financial position and a liability is recorded equal to the consideration received. Conversely, securities
purchased under a commitment to resell (‘reverse repurchase agreements') are not recorded on the statement of financial
posifion and the consideration paid is recorded as a loan. The difference between the sale price and repurchase price is treated
as inferest and accrued evenly over the life of the fransaction. Repos and reverse repos are recognised on a sefflement datfe
basis.

(c) Intangible assets
Infangible assets are stated at historical cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses. Amortisation is charged to
the statement of comprehensive income on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful lives of b years.

(d) Tangible assets
Tangible assets are stated at histarical cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses.Depreciation is pravided on

a sfraight-line basis aver the estimated useful economic life of the asset. Assets under construction are not depreciated.

The average depreciation rates used are as follows:

Buildings 2.5%
Office equipment 12.6% — 33%
Fixtures and fittings 12.6% - 33%

Land is not depreciated.

Subsequent expenditure
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it increases the future economic benefits embodied in the specific asset.

(e) Operating lease payments
Payments made under operating leases are recognised in profit or loss on a sfraight-line basis over the tferm of the lease. Lease
incentives received are recognised as an infegral part of the total expense, over the tferm of the lease.

When the Bank is the lessor in a lease agreement that fransfers substanftially all of the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of an asset fo the lessee, the arrangement is presented within loans and advances.

(f) Foreign currency

Transactions denominated in foreign currencies are franslated into CZK at the official Czech National Bank exchange rates as
at the date of the fransaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are franslated at the rates of
exchange prevailing at the statement of financial position datfe. All resulfing gains and losses are recorded in the statement of
comprehensive income in Net frading income, in the period in which they arise.
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(g) Income and expense recognition

Inferest income and interest expense are recognised in the stafement of comprehensive income using the effective inferest
rate methad. The effective inferest rate is the rate that exactly discountfs the estimated fufure cash payments and receipts
through the expected life of the financial asset or liability (or, where appropriate, a shorter period) to the carrying amount of
the financial asset or liability. The effective inferest rate is established on initial recognition of the financial asset and liability.
In case of modification of loan condifions, such as change of inferest rafe or instalment calendar, the effective interest rate is
updated in line with newly agreed conditions. The calculation of the effective inferest rate includes all fees and points paid or
received, fransaction costs and discounts or premiums that are an infegral part of the effective interest rate. Transaction costs
are incremental costs that are directly affributable fo the acquisition, issue or disposal of a financial asset ar liability.

The recognised average inferest rate is defermined as the annual weighted average from open contracts as at the date of the
balance sheet date.

Fees and commissions are recognized on an accrual basis.

(h) Taxation
Tax paid is calculated in accordance with the provisions of the relevant legislation based on the profit recognized in the statement
of comprehensive income prepared pursuant o local stafufory accounting standards, after adjustments for fax purposes.

Deferred tax is calculated using the statement of financial pasition liability method, providing for tfemporary differences between
the accounting and tfaxatfion basis of assefts and liabilities. Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for deductible temporary
differences. A deferred tax asset is recognized only to tThe extent that it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the asset can be ufilized. Deferred fax assets are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the
related fax benefit will be realized. Currently enacted fax rates are used to determine deferred income taxes.

(i) Social security and pension schemes

Contributions are made to the government's health, retirement benefit and unemployment schemes at the stafutory rates
in force during the year based on gross salary payments. The cost of social security payments is charged fo the statement
of comprehensive income in the same period as the related salary cost. The Bank has no further pension or post retirement
commitments.

(i) cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash balances on hand, cash deposited with central banks and ofher banks and short-
ferm highly liquid investments with original maturities of three months or less.

(k) Provisions

A pravision is recognized in the statement of financial position when the Bank has a legal or constfructive obligation as a result
of a past event, and it is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to seffle the obligafion. If the effect is
material, provisions are determined by discounting the expected fufure cash flows at a pre-tax rate that reflects current market
assessments of the fime value of money and, where appropriate, the risks specific fa the liability.
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() Offsetting
Financial assefs and liabilities are offset and the net amount is reporfed in the statement of financial pasition when the Bank
has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognized amounts and the fransactions are infended fo be seffled on a net basis.

(m) Ownership interests

The subsidiary consists of participation with controlling influence in an entity where the Bank identified control/supervision.
Conftrol arises when the Bank receives or is enfitled to receive variable refurns from its participation in the company and has
the ablility to affect those refurns through its power over the company, regardless of the ownership share.

In case of control/supervision all following conditions must be met:

— power aver the company in which has been invested;

— the right or authority to acquire rights to obtain variable refurns based on the investment in the company;

— the ability to use the power over the company, in order fo influence the amount of the Bank's returns from this investment.

An assaociate enterprise consists of parficipation with significant influence in an enfity where the Bank has significant influence
and which is neither a subsidiary nor a joint venture. Significant influence is the power to participate in decisions on the
financial and operating policy of the invested subject, but it does not involve control or joint control over those palicies.

A joint venture is a joint arrangement where partfies that together control the arrangement have rights fo the net assets of this
arrangement. Joint control is the confractually agreed sharing of control over the arrangement which exists when decisions
about the relevant activifies require the unanimous consent of the parties that share conftrol.

Ownership interests are appraised at cost. The Bank creates allowances fo this appraised ownership inferests on the date of
the annual financial statements in the amount of the difference between the value of appraised ownership inferests recorded
in the accounting and the recoverable amount.

The Bank applies fair value hedge accountfing for ownership inferests held in foreign currency that applies only to foreign
currency risk.

(n) Disposal groups held for sale

Disposal groups classified as held for sale are measured at the lower of their carrying amount and fair value less costs fo sell.
Disposal groups are classified as held for sale if their carrying amounts will be recovered principally through a sale fransaction
rather than through continuing use. This condition is regarded as met only when the sale is highly probable and the disposal
group is available for immediate sale in its present condition, management has committed fo the sale, and the sale is expected
to be completed within ane year from the date of classification.

Disposal groups held for sale are measured at the lower of:
— Net book value of the asset af the date of classification fo "disposal group held for sale’;
— The fair value less estimated cosfs to sell.
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Property, plant and equipment and intfangible assets once classified as held for sale are not depreciated or amortised.

(o) Segment reporting
Segment analysis is based on type of clients and provided services. The management of the entity is provided with the
information that allows evaluating the performance of individual segments.

The Bank's reportable segments according to IFRS 8 are as follows:
— Financial markets

— Corporatfe banking

— Private banking

— Retail banking

- ALCO

— Unallocated

Accounting palicies applied to operating segments comply with those described in Note 3. The profits of the segments represent
profits before tax achieved by each segment excluding overhead costs and salaries of management. This segment analysis is
basis for review and strategic and operational decision making of the management.

For operating segment analysis, all assets and liabilities are allocated to the individual reporftable segments except for "other"
financial assets and liabilities and current and deferred income tax asset / liability.

IFRS 8 requires that operating segments are identified based on internal reporting about the business units of the Bank which
are regularly reviewed by CEQ and allow proper allocation of resources and evaluation of the performance.

(p) Dividends
Dividends are recognised in the statement of changes in equity and recorded as liabilities in the period in which they are
declared.

(q) Employee benefits
Short-term employee benefit obligations are measured on an undiscounted basis and are expensed as the related service is
provided.

The revaluation of the net liability from defined benefit plans (including actuarial gains and losses) is recognised in full immediately
in other comprehensive income.

Amounts due To employees, such as amounts relafing fo accrued vacation pay or performance bonuses, are recognized as
ather liabilities.
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4. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND ASSUMPTIONS

The preparation of financial statements requires management to make judgements, estimaftes and assumptions that affect
the application of accounting policies and the reporfed amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses. Actual results may
differ from these estimates.

Esfimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an on-going basis. Revisions fo accounting estimates are recognized
in the period in which the esfimate is revised and in any future periods affected.

These principles supplement the commentary on financial risk management.
Key sources of estimation uncertainty

Allowances for impairment of loan
Assets accounted for at amortised cost are evaluated for impairment on the basis described in accounting policy 3(a).

The specific counterparty component of the fotfal allowances for impairment of loans applies o claims evaluated individually
for impairment and is based on management's best estimate of the present value of the cash flows that are expected fo be
received. In estimating these cash-flows, management makes judgements about the counterparty's financial sifuation and
the net realizable value of any underlying collateral. Each impaired asset is assessed on its merits and the workout strategy.
All estimates of cash flows for the calculation of the allowances are independently approved by the Credit Risk Management.

The allowances are created on an on-going basis as a difference between the nominal value of the receivable and the amount
recoverable.

Determining fair values

The defermination of fair value for financial assets and liabilities for which there is no observable quoted market price requires
the use of valuation fechniques as described in accounting policy 3(a). For financial instruments that are traded infrequently
and have liffle price tfransparency, fair value is less objective and requires varying degrees of judgement depending on liquidity,
concentration, uncertainty of the market factors, pricing assumptions and other risks affecting the specific amounts.

The Bank measures fair values using the following fair value hierarchy that reflects the significance of the inpufs used in
making tThe measurements:

— Level 1. quoted priced (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities;

— Level 2: derived from quoted prices, either directly (i.e. as prices of similar instruments) or indirectly (i.e. derived from prices);
- Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not derived from quoted prices (calculated using valuation technigues).

If the market for a financial instrument is not active, fair value is estimated by using valuation technigues. In applying valuation
technigues, management uses estfimates and assumptions that are consistent with available information about estimates and
assumptions that market participants would use in setting a price for the financial instrument.
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If the fair values had been higher or lower by 10% than management's esfimates, the net carrying amount of Level 3 financial
instruments would have been estimated to be CZK 441 million higher or lower than as disclosed as at 31 December 2015 (2014:
CZK 424 million).

Financial instruments

In the vast majority of cases, the fair value of Level 3 investments was estimated using discounted cash flow ('DCF') models,
with inputs coming from the specific investment's business plan or cash flow projections. The individual business plans
and cash flow projectfions were critically reviewed by management before inclusion in the models. The discount rates were
based on the specificities of the industries and countries in which the investments operate. The key assumptions used in
the valuations were the expected cash flows and discount rates. Further information about level 3 financial instruments is
disclosed in the nofes 9a and 9b.

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

in MCZK 2015 2014
Cash on hand and current accounts with central banks (note B) 162 181
Term deposits in central banks up to 3 months (note 6] 17150 10,963
Loans to central banks - repurchase agreements [note 7) 30,000 -
Loans due from banks - repurchase agreements [note 7) 2,41 2,299
Current accounts with banks or payable within 3 months (note 7) 736 2,712
Total 50,459 16,155

6. CASH AND BALANCES WITH CENTRAL BANKS

in MCZK 2016 2014

Balances with central banks (including obligatory minimum reserves) 1,71 11856

Current accounts with central banks 1 -

Term deposits in central banks up fo 3 months 17,160 10,963
Total balance with central banks 18,862 12,148
Cash on hand 161 181
Total 19,023 12,329

Balances with central banks represent the obligatory minimum reserves maintained under Czech National Bank [,CNB') and
National Bank of Slovakia [,NBS"). The obligatory minimum reserve is stated as 2% of primary deposits with maturity of less than
two years. The Bank must maintain the obligatory minimum reserves in accounts with the respective central banks. Compliance
with this requirement is measured using the average daily closing balance over the whale maonth.

With regard fo the current uncertain situation on the financial markets, the Bank has a prudent liquidity policy and holds a
significant part of its liquidity surplus in highly liquid assetfs. Highly liquid assefs include balances with the central banks, short
term depaosits in financial institutions and highly liquid corporate and government bonds. The Bank decides on placements
based on the credibility of the counterparty and the offered conditions.
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7. DUE FROM FINANCIAL INSTITUTIONS

in MCZK 2015 2014
Current accounts with banks 656 2m
Term deposits and loans up fo 3 months 80 601
Term deposits and loans over 3 months 66 60
Loans to central banks — repurchase agreements [note 10) 30,000 -
Loans due from banks - repurchase agreements [note 10) 2,41 2,299
Subordinated loans fo banks 398 422
Other receivables due from banks 50 802
Total 33,661 6,295

Subordinated loans fo banks are provided fo related banks.

Other receivables due from banks includes cash collateral of derivative transactions amounting to CZK 48 million (2014: CZK
798 million).

There were no overdue current account with banks as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014,
The contfractual weighted average interest rate on deposits and loans with other banks was 0.3% p.a. (2014: 2.6% p.a.).
8. DERIVATIVES

(a) Derivatives held for trading:

20156 2015 20156 20156

in MCZK Notional Notional Fair value Fair value
amount buy amount sell Pasitive Negative

Forward currency confracts 38,434 (38,473) 97 Mma3)
Other derivates 197 (198) 1 -
Total as at 31 December 2015 38,631 (38,671) 98 (113)
2014 2014 2014 2014

Notional Notional Fair value Fair value

in MCZK amount buy amount sell Positive Negative
Forward currency confracts 39,939 (40,223) 99 (388]
Other derivates 352 (355) 1 -
Total as at 31 December 2014 40,291 (40,578) 100 (386])

All derivatives held for frading are classified as level 2 according o the fair value hierarchy.
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Purchased and written options are recognized in the frading portfolio as other derivatives. Written options comprise derivatives
embedded in structured client deposits. The Bank has purchased matching options [with the same underlying assets, maturity
and strike prices) from third parties in order to hedge the exposures. Accordingly, the fair value of the purchased options
porffolio equals to the fair value of the sum of the writfen opfions.

Forward currency confracts are commitments fo either purchase or fo sell a designated currency at a specified datfe for a
specified price. Forward currency confracts result in a credit exposure at a specified future date for a specified price. Forward
currency contracts also resulf in exposure fo market risk based on changes in quoted market prices relafive fo the contfracted
amounts.

Although all these derivatives represent an economic hedge, they are presented as frading, because IAS 39 does not allow
include this ftype of derivatives in the category of hedging derivatives.

The fareign currency stfructure of these transactions was as follows:

CzZK EUR uso other
LONG POSITION
31 December 2015 74% 22% 2% 2%
31 December 2014 83% 15% 1% 1%

The foreign currency structure of the second leg of these fransactions was as follows:

CzK EUR Uso other
SHORT POSITION
31 December 2015 14% 639% 8% 9%
31 December 2014 13% 70% 18% 1%
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(b) Derivatives held for risk management:

Fair value hedging

2015 2015 2015 2015

Notional Notional Fair value Fair value

in MCZK amount buy amount sell Positive Negative
Forward currency contracts 8,065 (6,083) 4 (12]
Total as at 31 December 2015 6,055 (6,063) 4 (12]
2014 2014 2014 2014

Notional Notional Fair value Fair value

in MCZK amount buy amount sell Pasitive Negative
Forward currency contracts 11,449 (12,042) - (802)
Total as at 31 December 2014 11,448 (12,042) - (602)

All derivatives held for risk management are classified as level 2 according to fair value hierarchy.
The objective of this hedge is to cover the fareign currency exposure fo changes in fair value of financial assetfs available for
sale and investment in equity accounted investees denominated in foreign currency over the hedging period. The Bank uses

currency forwards to reach effectiveness within the hedging relationship.

9. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS, FINANCIAL ASSETS AVAILABLE FOR SALE AND
FINANCIAL ASSETS HELD TO MATURITY

(a) Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— domestic 316 133
— fareign 53 58
Allotment certificates
— domestic - 25
— fareign 1 -
Bonds
— domestic 1,040 8,907
— fareign 1,321 1,645

Total 2,731 8,768
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2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
- listed 369 191
Allotment certificates
— not listed 1 25
Bonds
- listed 2,361 8,662
Total 2,731 8,768

Shares in portfolio as at 31 December 2016 comprise mainly non-government bonds of CZK 1 094 million (2014: CZK 1 229
million] in the structure of Luxemburgian bonds of CZK 317 million (2014: CZK 215 million), Slovakian bonds of CZK 234 million
(2014: CZK 3392 million), Cyprian bonds of CZK 196 million (2014: CZK 225 million) and Netherlands bonds of CZK 170 million
(2014: CZK 286 million).

Foreign government bonds totaling the amount of CZK 227 million (2014: CZK 416 million) represent Poland government bonds
of CZK 163 million (2014: CZK 72 million) and Turkish government bonds of CZK 84 million (2014: CZK 40 million).

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
- financial institutions 90 45
— corparate 279 1486
Allotment certificates
- financial institutions 1 25
Bonds
— government 608 6,004
- financial institutions 832 733
— corparate 921 1,806
- international institutions - 9
Total 2,731 8,768

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— Level 1 - quofed market price 387 187
— Level 3 — calculated using valuation techniques 2 4
Allotment certificates
— Level 1 - quoted market price 1 25
Bonds
— Level 1T - quoted market price 2,306 8,362
— Level 3 - calculated using valuation fechnigues 56 190

Total 2,731 8,768
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The contractual weighted average interest rate on bonds was 5.36% p.a. (2014: 2.67% p.a.).

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of Level 3 financial assets that are recorded at

fair value:

in MCZK Shares Bonds Total
Balance as at 1 January 2015 4 190 194
Addition - 58 58
Disposal (2) (180) (182)
Effects of movements in foreign exchange - (10) (o)
Accrued inferest - (2) (2)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 2 56 58

The Bank regularly monitors changes in market conditions of parficular financial assefs and in case there are available quoted
prices of those financial assets on the active market, those are fransferred from Level 3 fo Level 1. In 2015, the Bank did not
fransfer from Level 3 fo Level 1any bonds and shares (2014: CZK 267 million and CZK 20 million).

(b) Financial assets available for sale:

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— domestic 189 271
- foreign 136 118
Allotment certificates
— domestic 3,022 2,492
— fareign 1,942 1,180
Bonds
— domestic 3,713 1,422
— fareign 5,851 5,607
Total 14,852 21,700

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
- listed 324 315
- not listed - 74
Allotment certificates
- noft listed 4,984 3,682
Bonds
- listed 8,432 15,888
- not listed 1132 1141

Total 14,852 21,100
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Foreign shares in portfolio as at 31 Becember 2015 comprise mainly Slovakian corparate shares in the amount of CZK 120 million
(2014: CZK 74 million).

Foreign allotment certificates comprise Malta certificates of CZK 1813 million (2014: CZK 1186 million) and Slovakian certificates
of CZK 129 million (2014: CZK 4 million).

Foreign bonds include Slovakia bonds of CZK 5 298 million (2014: CZK & 076 million), Luxembourg bonds of CZK 353 million
(2014: CZK 118 million) and Great Britain bonds of CZK 194 million (2014: CZK 200 million).

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— corporatfe 324 389
Allotment certificates
- financial institutions 4,964 3,682
Bonds
— government 3,384 11,084
— financial institutions 1,640 1,224
— corpaorate 4,640 4,721
Total 14,852 21,700

2015 2014
in MCZK Fair value Fair value
Shares
— Level 1 - quoted market price 162 239
— Level 3 — calculated using valuation techniques 162 160
Allotment certificates
— Level 1T - quoted market price 4,964 3,682
Bonds
— Level 1 - quofed market price 5,379 13,134
— Level 3 - calculated using valuation techniques 4,185 3,895
Total 14,852 21,100

The contractual weighted average interest rate on bonds was 2.76% p.a. (2014: 1.92% p.a.).

In 2015, the Bank has identified an impairment of financial assets available for sale amounting fo CZK 32 million. Impairment
resulfed in permanent decrease of market price of an individual financial asset available for sale. In 2014, the impairment arose
from the decrease of the share capital of the security's issuer amounting to CZK 62 million.
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The following ftable shows a reconciliation of the opening and closing balances of Level 3 financial assetfs that are recorded at

fair value:

in MCZK Shares Bonds Total
Balance as at 1 January 2015 150 3,895 4,045
Total gains / (losses) recognised in profit or loss (2] (18) (18]
Total gains / (losses) recognised in equity 1 (35] (38]
Addition 121 1,830 1,851
Disposal (74) (1,457) (1.631)
Impairment (32) - (32)
Interest income - (32) (32)
Balance as at 31 December 2015 162 4,185 4,347

The Bank regularly monitors changes in market conditions of particular financial assets and in case there are available quoted

prices of those financial assets on the active market, those are fransferred from Level 3 to Level 1. In 20715, the Bank did not

fransfer from Level 3 fo Level 1any bonds and shares (2014: CZK 839 million, CZK O million).

(c] Financial assets held to maturity:

2016 2014
in MCZK Amortised cost Amaortised cost
Bonds
— fareign 609 1,31
Total 609 1,31

2015 2014
in MCZK Amortised cost Amortised cost
Bonds
- listed 609 1.3M
Total 609 1,311

2015 2014
in MCZK Amortised cost Amaortised cost
Bonds
— corpaorate 609 1,31
Total 609 1,31

The contractual weighted average interest rate on bonds was 5.88% p.a. [2014: 6.14% p.a.).

Foreign bonds include Hungarian corporate bonds amounting to CZK 6809 million (2014: CZK 893 million).
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10. REPURCHASE AND RESALE AGREEMENTS

(a) Resale agreements

The Bank purchases financial assefs under agreements 1o resell them at future dates (‘reverse repurchase agreements").
The seller commits fo repurchase the same or similar instruments at an agreed future dafe. Legal right to financial assetfs
is transferred fo the Bank, respectively entity which is a loan provider. Reverse repurchases are entfered into as a facility to
provide funds fo customers. As of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014, assets purchased pursuant fo the agreements
fo resell them were as follows:

Fair value Carrying
of assefs held amount Repurchase Repurchase
in MCZK as collateral of receivable date price
Loans to central banks (note 7] 30,000 30,000 To 1 Month 30,000
Loans to banks (note 7) 3,862 2,41 To 3 Months 2,415
Loans and advances to customers (note 11) 4,866 3,027 To 3 Months 3,045
Total as at 31 December 2015 38,728 35,438 35,460
Fair value Carrying
of assefs held amount Repurchase Repurchase
in MCZK as collateral of receivable date price
Loans to banks [note 7) 3,690 2,299 To 3 Months 2,312
Loans and advances to customers [(note 11) 7,816 5,313 To 3 Months 55256
Total as at 31 December 2014 11,606 7,612 7,837

(b) Repurchase agreements

Transactions where securities are sold under a repurchase agreement (repo transaction) at a predetermined price are accounted
for as loans collateralised by the securifies. The legal fitle fo the respective securities is fransferred fa the lender. However, the
securities fransferred under a repo fransaction are still recognised in the statement of financial position. The price for the sold
securifies are recognised as a liability and presented under "Deposits and loans from banks" or "Deposits from customers”.

Fair value Carrying
of assefs given amount Repurchase Repurchase
in MCZK as collaferal of liability date price
Loans from banks [note 17) 57 57 To 1 Month 57
Loans and advances from customers (nofe 18) 34 33 To 3 Months 33

Total as at 31 December 2015 91 90 a0
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Fair value Carrying
of assefs given amount Repurchase Repurchase
in MCZK as collateral of liability date price
Loans from banks [note 17) 839 840 To 1 Month 640
Loans and advances from customers (note 18] 34 356 To 3 Months 36
Total as at 31 December 2014 673 675 675

As at 31 December 2016, the Bank sold securities under repurchase agreements at CZK 57 million (2014: CZK 839 million], which
are recognized in the statement of financial position, and securities under repurchase agreements at CZK 34 million (2014: CZK
34 million) which were purchased under reverse repurchase operations before.

1. LOANS AND ADVANCES TO CUSTOMERS

in MCZK 2015 2014
Loans and advances to customers 63,120 57,828
Loans and advances fo customers — repurchase agreements (note 10) 3,027 5,313
Bank overdraft 5,030 3,928
Debt securities — promissory notes 103 103
Other receivables 93 78
Less allowances for impairment of loans (note 12) (1.331) (940)
Total net loans and advances to customers 70,042 66,31

Loans and advances to customers as at 31 December 2015 include loans amounting to CZK 19 401 million (2014: CZK 19 292
million) where the repayment of the loans is dependent upon the successful realization of the assefs whose acquisition was
financed by the relevant loans. These assets are pledged in favour of the Bank. The Bank classifies any loans, the repayment
of which depends directly on the sale (realisation) of the financed assefs (which may also serve as loan security), as loans
dependent on asset realisation. The financed assets may comprise both tfangible and infangible assets. The Bank recognises
the loans dependent on asset realisation according fo the actual nature of each individual loan.

Allowances for impairment of loans and advances to customers are determined and created based upon management's best
estimate of the present value of the cash flows that are expected fo be received. In estimating these cash flows, management
makes judgements about a debtor's financial situation and the net realizable value of any underlying collateral as well as
guarantees from third parties. Methodology for allowance creation is described in nate 4. Critical accounting estimates and
assumptions.

The amount of non-inferest bearing loans as at 31 December 2076 totalled to CZK 209 million (2014: CZK 107 million). These
loans were mostly acquired from the former Podnikatelska banka or loans that are already overdue and no inferest is charged.

Receivables from these loans are fully impaired.

The contractual weighted average interest rate on promissory notes was 5% p.a. (2014: 6% p.a.).



Financial Part | Separate Financial Statements 163

The contractual weighted average interest rate on loans to customers was 8.57% p.a. (2014: 6.89% p.a.).

For the additional information about Loans and advances to customers refer to note 36.

12. ALLOWANCES FOR IMPAIRMENT OF LOANS

in MCZK 2015 2014
1 January 940 1,150
Charge / (reversal) in the reporting period 542 2569
Use / write-offs (143) (478)
Currency difference (8) 7
Total as at 31 December 1,331 940

Use of allowances for impairment of loans for the year ended 31 December 2016 amounting to CZK 133 million (2014:
CZK 466 million) represents the sale of receivables with gross value of CZK 154 million (2014: CZK 1 033 million), o which
provisions of CZK 137 million (2014: CZK 466 million) were created at the time of sale. The selling price of these receivables was
CZK 21 millions (2014: CZK 566 millian).

Af the same time, allowances for impairment of loans were used for write-offs of loans amounting to CZK 10 million (2014:
CZK 10 million] for the year ended 31 Becember 2016, the gross amount of these loans was CZK 10 million (2014: CZK 10 million).
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13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

The movements during the period were as follows:

Fixtures,

Land fittings and
in MCZK and buildings equipment Total
COST
1 January 2014 20 51 71
Additions - 22 22
Disposals - (1 ()
31 December 2014 20 72 92
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
1 January 2014 3 28 31
Depreciation 2 9 n
Disposals - (1) (1)
31 December 2014 5 36 41
COST
1 January 2015 20 72 92
Additions 1 B 7
Disposals - (1) (1)
31 December 2015 21 77 98
ACCUMULATED DEPRECIATION
1 January 2015 5 36 41
Depreciation 2 7 9
31 December 2015 7 43 50
NET BOOK VALUE
31 December 2014 15 36 51
31 December 2015 14 34 48

The Bank did not record any fixed tangible assets under construction at the end of 2015 and 2014,

Property is insured against theft and natural disaster.
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14. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The movements during the period were as follows:

Assets
under

in MCZK Soffware construction Total
COST
1 January 2014 212 56 268
Additions 53 - 53
Transfer 58 (58] -
Disposals (1) (1)
31 December 2014 320 - 320
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
1 January 2014 166 - 166
Amortisation 40 - 40
Disposals (1) - (1)
31 December 2014 205 - 205
COST
1 January 2015 320 - 320
Additions 51 - 51
Disposals (5] - 13)
31 December 2015 366 - 366
ACCUMULATED AMORTISATION
1 January 2015 205 - 205
Amortisation 58 - 58
Disposals (2) - (2]
31 December 2015 261 - 261
NET BOOK VALUE
31 December 2014 115 - 115
31 December 2015 105 - 105

Infangible fixed assets under construction from 2074 that included paid advances for the acquisition of assets were reclassified
info the appropriate type of purchased assets in 2015.
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15. OPERATING LEASES

(a) Leases entered into as lessee

The Bank has non-cancellable operatfing lease payables as follows:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Less than one year 99 30
Between one and five years 306 308
Mare than five years 38 100
Total 442 498

(b) Leases entered info as lessor

The Bank has non-cancellable operating lease receivables as follows:

in MCZK 2016 2014

Less than one year 1 1

Between one and five years 2 2
Total 3 3

16. PREPAYMENTS, ACCRUED INCOME AND OTHER ASSETS

in MCZK 2015 2014
Prepayments and accrued income 66 68
Receivables from customers fram securities frading 538 239
Other frading receivables 270 268
Receivables from fees for portfolio management 32 23
Other receivables 58 68
Advance payments — ofther 31 20
Allowances for impairment of other assets m (2]
Total 993 684

Otfher frading receivables as at 31 December 2015 include reward for the issue of bonds and promissaory nates of CZK 57 million
(2014: CZK 261 million) and large number of sundry items that are not significant on an individual basis.

Receivables from customers from securities frading increased primarily because of a higher volume of trades in the client
accounts.
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Allowances for impairment of ofher assets:

in MCZK 2015 2014
1 January 2 2
Charged / (reversed) in the period m -
Total as at 31 December 1 2

17. DEPOSITS AND LOANS FROM BANKS

Deposifs and loans from banks comprise:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Deposits from banks 4,288 3,897
Loans from banks — repurchase agreements 57 640
Total 4,343 4,537

Deposits from banks includes current depasits, term deposits and other financial liabilifies.

The contractual weighted average interest rate on deposits and loans from banks was 0.64% p.a. as at 31 December 2015
(2014: 0.85% p.a.).

18. DEPOSITS FROM CUSTOMERS

Deposifs from customers comprise:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Current accounts 17,856 10,018
Term deposits 99,169 90,302
Loans from customers — repurchase agreements 33 36
Total 117,058 100,356

The contractual weighted average interest rate on deposits from customers was 1.79% p.a. as at 31 December 2015 (2014: 2.31% p.a.).
19. SUBORDINATED DEBT

Subordinated debt at amortised cost:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Issued subordinated bonds 874 690
Subordinated debt — term deposit from customers 1,375 1,207

Total 2,049 1,897
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On 28 February 2007, the Bank issued subordinated bonds with a notional amount of EUR 25 million matfuring in 2022. Czech
National Bank approved the subordinated debt as a part of the capital for regulatory purposes. The interest rate was 4.75% p.a.
as at 31 December 2016 (2014: 6.17% p.a.).

The subardinated debt — ferm deposit from customers with a maturity up fo 2025 bear an inferest rate between 5% and 8%
p.a. Czech National Bank approved the subordinated debt as a part of the capital for regulatory purposes.

20. OTHER LIABILITIES AND PROVISIONS

Otfher liabilities and provisions:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Trade payables 140 1561
Other liabilities 831 98
Other current pravisions 28 17
Provision for off-balance sheet items 71 48
Provision for untaken vacation 10 10
Provision for employee bonuses 506 392
Pravision for loyalty programmes - customers 120 88
Provision for loyalty programmes - employees 2 2
Payables to employees 24 24
Payables related fo social costs 10 10
Payables from securities of clients at trader’s disposal 4,841 2,719
Estimated payables, accruals and deferred income 172 166
Other tax liabilities 61 47
Total 6,616 3,770

Other liabilities primarily include payables from clearing of CZK 10 million (2014: CZK 28 million), liabilities to securities markets
CzZK 377 million (2014: CZK O million) and incoming and outgoing payments from nostro accounts of CZK 8 million (2014: CZK
3 million).

Payables to clients from securities at the trader’s disposal increased primarily because of an increased volume of client
fransactions with securitfies.

A provision for employee bonuses is estfablished in relation to the approval of Group employees' annual bonuses. The annual
bonus is defined as variable benefit component of employee remuneration which the company may grant and pay to an
employee in proportion fo his job performance in the evaluated period, most commaonly a year. It also comprises the management
bonuses with deferred due payment. The Bank's remuneration palicy is in accordance with the policies of risk management
and remuneration in accordance with Decree 163/2014 Sb., on the performance of the activities of banks, credit unions and
investment firms.
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The loyalty programme (Magnus) has been established fo provide non-monetary performances to employees in relation to the
employment and similar relafionships, and bonuses and to custfamers when they sign up for any of selected Group products.
Since the performance is provided for an unlimited period of time and the withdrawals can be made continuously, the pravision
for loyalty programme is a long-ferm one. The Bank establishes a provision for loyalty programme for bonuses to customers of
CZK 119 million (2014: CZK 88 million) and to employees of CZK 2 million (2014: CZK 2 million).

A provision for off-balance sheet items comprises in particular the provision for the loan promises and guarantees of CZK
70 million (2014: CZK 48 million).

As at 31 Becember 2015, other provisions amounted to CZK 28 million (2014: CZK 17 million). It is expected that these provisions
will be ufilised after 12 or more months after the balance sheet dafe. These provisions include in particular a provision for unpaid
premium inferest from municipal deposits and a provision for commission fees in respect of the bond emission.

Provisions:
Balance as af Fareign Balance as af
1 January Additions / exchange 31 December
in MCZK 2015 Creations Use difference 2015
Off-balance sheef items 48 38 (18) - 71
Untaken vacation 10 8 (8] - 10
Employee bonuses 392 441 (328]) m 508
Loyalty programmes - customers 88 32 - - 120
Loyalty programmes - employees 2 3 (3) - 2
Other current provisions 17 18 (7] 28
Total 557 540 (859]) (1] 737

21. SHARE CAPITAL, RETAINED EARNINGS AND OTHER RESERVES

On November 10, 2016 the J&T Bank's sole shareholder JGT FINANCE GROUP SE increased share capital of the Bank by
subscription of new shares fofaling CZK 1 080 million.

Share capital is fully paid and consists aof:

in MCZK 2015
10 837 126 ordinary shares with a nominal value of CZK 1 000 per share 10,637
700 000 ordinary shares with a nominal value of CZK 1.43 per share 1
Total share capital 10,638

The owners of ordinary shares are entitled fo the payment from approved dividends.

The allocation of the profit will be approved at the General Meeting. The Bank's Management assumes that the relevant part of
the profit will be fransferred into a dedicated fund for the payment of the income from subordinated income certificates that are
part of the bank's equity and the remaining amount will be fransferred fo retfained earnings. The Bank does not assume that the
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profit for 2015 will be paid as a dividend to shareholders.

The Bank does not provide any employee incentive scheme involving the option fo buy own shares, or remuneration in the form
of equity opfions.

Retained earnings

Retained earnings are distributable to the Bank's shareholders and are subject fo the shareholders meeting resolution. As at
31 December 2076, retained earnings amounted to CZK 4 260 milllion (2014: CZK 3 770 million). For detail of retained earnings
see Sftafement of changes in equity.

Capital funds
Capital funds consist of a special purpose fund for income distfribution from subordinated income certificates.

For details related fo the special purpose fund refer fo last paragraph in Other capital instruments.
Revaluation reserve

a) Revaluation reserve from financial assets availale for sale

Gains and losses on the revaluation of financial assets available for sale are recognized directly in equity through a revaluation
reserve. On 31 December 2015, the revaluation reserve from the revaluation of financial assets available for sales amounted to
CZK 90 million (2014: CZK 67 million).

b) Other revaluation reserves
Other revaluation reserves are represented by the FX difference from the translation of the Slovak branch's statements
amounted ta CZK (3] million (2014: CZK 2 million).

Other capital instruments

Otfher capifal instfruments comprise issued subordinated unsecured revenue certificates with fixed inferest revenue dependent
of the fulfilment of pre-defined conditions, with no fixed maturity date. The certificates are hybrid financial instruments combining
the economic features of capital and debt securities. These certfificates are also considered capital insfruments compliant with
the conditions for the inclusion thereof into the additional Tier 1 capital (AT1). This inclusion is subject to the approval by the
Czech National Bank.

On 19 June 2014, the Czech National Bank approved the prospectus of revenue certificate emission of total estimated value of
CZK 1 000 million with interest revenue of 10% p.a.

On 12 September 2015, the Czech National Bank approved the prospectus of second revenue certificate emission of total
estimated value of CZK 1 000 million with inferest revenue of 9% p.a.
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On 11 December 2015, the Czech National Bank approved the prospectus of third revenue cerfificate emission of fofal estimated
value of EUR 50 million with interest revenue of 9% p.a.

As at 31 December 2015, the volume of emitted certificated reached CZK 1742 million (2014: CZK 8383 million).

On 30 June 2014, the Bank's Board of Directors also approved the establishment of a purpose-built capital fund for the payment
of revenue from certificates of CZK 100 million. This fund was created from refained earnings. In 2015, another CZK 100 million
was fransferred to this fund from the 2014 profit. The payment of revenue from cerfificates is governed by the conditions
defined in the prospectus. In 2015, revenue of CZK 108 million (2014: CZK 20 million] was paid out from the fund.

22. INCOME TAX
Income fax was calculated in accordance with Czech tax regulations at the rate of 19% in 2016 (2014: 19%). The income tax rafe
for 2016 will be 19%.

The Slovak branch pays tfax in accordance with Slovak tax law. The fax paid by the branch in Slovakia is offset against the
income tax for the Bank as a whole paid in the Czech Republic. The income tax rate in Slovakia for 2015 is 22% (2014: 22%). As
from 1 January 2016 the fax rate in Slovakia is 22%.

The Czech Republic currently has a number of laws related to various taxes imposed by governmental authorities. Applicable
taxes include value-added tax, corporate tax, and payroll (social) taxes and various others. Tax declarations, fogether with other
legal compliance areas (such as cusfoms and currency control matters) are subject o review and investigation by a number
of authorities, who are enabled by law fo impose fines, penalties and inferest charges. This resulfs in fax risks in the Czech
Republic which are substantially mare significant than typically found in countries with more developed tax systems.

Management believes that it has adequately provided for the tax liabilities in the accompanying financial statements.

The reconciliation of the expected income tax expense is as follows:

in MCZK 2016 2014
Profit before tax 1,963 1,676
Tax non-deductible expenses 874 723
Non-taxable revenues and tax refund for the last period (1,6558] (443)
Statutory income tax rate 19% 19%
Income fax expenses 243 352

Correction of tax expenses from previous periods and additional payments - 1

Difference from Slovak branch tax 12 il
Deferred fax (note 23) (28] (32]
Total income tax expenses 230 332

Effective fax rate 1.7% 211%




172 Financial Part | Separate Financial Statements

The main adjustments when calculating the taxable profit from the accounting profit relate fo tax exempt income and expenses
fo be added fo the tax base. The main non-deductible expenses are fax non-deductible provisions fo receivables, creation of
provisions and representation expenses.

Main fax non-deductible expenses are dividend income from ownership inferests, dissolve/use of allowances for receivables
and use/write-offs of allowances. A significant portion of non-taxable revenues was represented by the gain from the sale of

ownership inferests.

Income tax expenses amounting to CZK 243 million (2014: CZK 362 million) are calculated in accordance with the Czech
accounting standards from profit adjusted according fo the Czech Law on Income Tax, as amended.

23. DEFERRED TAX

The Bank has the following deferred tax assetfs and liabilities:

in MCZK 2015 2014
DEFERRED TAX ASSET / [LIABILITY])

Property, plant and equipment (7] (2)
Unpaid interest, net - 1)
Financial assefs available for sale (21) (18)
Ofher femporary differences 16 89
Net deferred tax liability 88 70

The deferred tax asset and liability is calculated using the 2016 income tax rate of 19% (2015: 19%).

The following fable shows the reconciliation between the deferred tax charge and the change in deferred fax liabilities in 2015.

in MCZK 2015 2014
Deferred tax liability, net as at 1 January 70 36
Deferred tax expense in the period (note 22) 25 32
Deferred tax recognized in equity (8) 2

Currency difference (Slovak branch) (1) 1

Net deferred tax liability as at the end of the period 88 70
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24. INTEREST INCOME

in MCZK 2016 2014

Interest income from:

Due from financial institutions 31 80
Loans and advances to cusfomers 4,497 3,985
Repo fransactions 297 271
Bonds and other fixed income securities 508 807
Other operations 20 22
Total 5,363 5,165

Item "Loans and advances fo customers” includes commissions for origination of loans of CZK 50 million (2014: CZK 48 million),
which are part of effective inferest rafe.

Inferest income according to classes of assets:

in MCZK 2015 2014

Interest income from:

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss:

— those held for trading 226 215
— those designated af initial recognition - 70
Financial assefs available for sale 245 4568
Financial assefs held fo maturity 57 84
Loans and other receivables 4,825 4,327
- of which: Impaired loans and receivables 83 57
— of which: Forbearance 160 142
Total 5,363 5,165

25. INTEREST EXPENSE

in MCZK 2015 2014
Intferest expense on:

Deposits and loans from banks (27] (29]
Deposits from customers (2,377) (2,437)
Repo transactions (1) (1)
Subordinated bonds and promissory notes (36] (37)
Other operations (18] (24)

Total (2,459) (2,528)
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Inferest expense according fo classes of liabilities:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Intferest expense on:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (2,441 (2,604)
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss (18) (24)
Total (2,459) (2,528)

26. FEE AND COMMISSION INCOME

in MCZK 2016 2014

Fee and commission incame from:

Securities and derivatives for customers 508 430
Loan activities 59 61
Payment fransactions 31 73
Other 7 12
Total 603 576

27. FEE AND COMMISSION EXPENSE

in MCZK 2015 2014
Fee and commission expense on:

Transactions with securities (104) (76)
Payment transactions (12) (14)
Other (1 1)
Total (127) (95]

28. NET TRADING INCOME

in MCzZK 2015 2014
Realised and unrealised losses on financial instruments atf fair value 260 369
Net gains / (losses] on derivative operations (681) (1,029)
Realised and unrealised gains (losses) from receivables - M
Net profit / (loss) from foreign currency translation 401 930
Net gains / (losses) on hedging derivative operations m -
Dividend income 26 1

Total net trading income 25 270
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Net frading income comprises of:

in MCZK 2016 2014

Financial assefs and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss:
- those held for trading (5386]) (894)

— those designated at initial recognition - -

Financial assetfs available for sale 160 235
Profit or loss from loans and other receivables - 1)
Exchange rate differences 401 930
Total 25 270

29. OTHER OPERATING INCOME

in MCZK 2015 2014
Rental income 1 -
Income from re-invoicing of services 5 4
Income from sale of awnership inferests 737 -
Income from rendered operating leases 16 17
Other income 75 77
Total 834 98

Income from the sale of ownership interests of CZK 737 million represents realized gain on the sale of 37.17% shares of Postova
banka, a.s. (see nate 1).

Other income includes a large number of sundry items that are not significant on an individual basis.

30. PERSONNEL EXPENSES

in MCZK 2015 2014
Wages and salaries (560]) (488)
Directors' and Supervisory Board members' remuneration (31) (29)
Compulsory soc. security contributions (124) (108)
Other social costs (18] (17)
Total personnel expenses (731) (640)
Average number of employees during the reporfing period 443 434

There were 4 members of the Bank's Board of Directors at 31 December 2015 (2014: 4).
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31. OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

in MCZK 2015 2014
Rent expense (120) (mn
Conftributions to Deposit Insurance Fund (166] (141)
Taxes and fees (57) (77]

OPERATING COSTS:

Repairs and maintenance — other (4] (3)
Consulting expenses (24) (12)
Communication expenses (17] (12]
Materials (13) (25])
Advertising expenses and representation (157) (174)
Audit, legal and tax consulting (35) (25])
Transport and accommodation, travel expenses (18) (14)
Expenses from re-invoicing (5) (4)
Sponsoring and gifts (24) (18]
Repairs and maintenance — IS, IT (38) (35)
Services related to rent (28) (22]
Outsourcing (178) (138)
Other operating costs (148] (166])
Total (1,033) (975)

Other operating costs of CZK 148 million at 31 December 20156 (2014: CZK 166 million) include a large number of sundry items
that are not significant on an individual basis.

Taxes and fees include a special bank levy to the Slovak Tax Authority. This levy does not fall within the scope of IAS 12 Income
Taxes. The Bank considers the levy to be operational in nature and has accrued the respective cost within "Other operating

expenses”.

32. ANALYSIS OF THE BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AS SHOWN IN THE STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

Cash and Term deposits Loans fo Loans  Current bank
) in central central banks fo banks - accounts
balances with

central banks banks up fo - repurchase repurchase or up fo
in MCZK 3 months agreements agreements 3 months Total
31 December 2013 145 7,855 - - 1,534 9,634
Change in 2014 36 3,108 - 2,299 1178 6,621
31 December 2014 181 10,963 - 2,299 2,712 16,155
Change in 2015 (18] 8,187 30,000 112 (1,978] 34,304

31 December 2015 162 17,150 30,000 2,41 736 50,459
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33. FINANCIAL COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Financial commitments and contingencies comprise:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Granted guaranfees 2,852 2,827
Unused credit lines 6,165 5,104
Securities held on behalf of clients 27,453 17,919
Total 36,470 25,850

34. SEGMENT REPORTING

Segment information is presented in respect of the Bank's business and geographical segments. The primary format, business
segments, is based on the Bank's management and internal reporting structure.

(a) Business segments

The Bank comprises the following main business segments:
Financial markets

— Includes the trading and corporate finance activities, mainly activities within financial markets department regardless of
level of service and client business segment;
— Corporate Banking
- Includes loans, deposits and other fransactions and balances with corporate customers (including business segment:
corporations, non-profit organisations, financial institutions);
— Private Banking
- Includes loans, deposifs and other fransactions and balances with private banking and premium banking customers (the
customer's aggregate sum of deposits with the Bank is at least CZK 3 million);
— Retail Banking
- Includes loans, deposits and other fransactions and balances with retail customers (the cusfomer's aggregate sum of
deposits with the Bank is at least CZK 0.5 million];
- ALCO
— Includes balance sheet items of strategic imporfance that are managed by the Asset and Liability Committee;
— Unallocated
— Includes balance sheet items that are notf included in the segments abave.
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ALCO includes balance sheet items of strategic imporfance that are managed by the Asset and Liability Committee. The most
important items are:

— Financial assets available for sale and held to maturity,

— Due from financial insfitutions,

— Deposifs and loans from banks,

— Cash and balances with central banks.

Personnel costs, operating expenses and depreciation charges that are naot allocated to business segments are included in the
segment "Unallocated".

The Bank also has a central Shared Services operation that manages the Bank's premises and certain corporate costs. Cost-
sharing agreements are used tfo allocate central costs to business segments on a reasonable basis.

Statement of financial paosition as at 31 December 2015:

Financial Carporate Private Retail
in MCZK markets banking banking banking ALCO Unallocated Total
Cash and balances
with central banks - - - - 18,023 - 19,023
Due from financial institutions - 2,41 - - 31,250 - 33,661
Positive fair value of derivatives,
financial assefs 2,830 - - - 16,464 - 18,294
Ownership interests - - - - 3,309 - 3,309
Loans and advances
to customers 6,686 55,082 8,318 56 — — 70,042
Current tax assets - - - - - 59 59
Deferred tax assets - - - - - 88 88
Prepayments, accrued income
and other assets - - - - - 1146 1146
Disposal groups held for sale - - - - 1,368 - 1,368
Total Assets 9,416 57,493 8,318 56 70,414 1,293 146,990
Negative fair value of derivatives 124 - - - 1 - 125
Deposits and loans from banks - - - - 4,343 - 4,343
Deposits from customers — 42,673 23122 51,263 — — 117,068
Subordinated debt - 1104 508 437 - - 2,049
Ofher liabilities and provisions - - - - - 6,616 6,616

Total Liabilities 124 43,777 23,630 51,700 4,344 6,616 130,191
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Financial Corporate Private Retail
in MCZK markets banking banking banking ALCO Unallocated Total
Cash and balances
with central banks - - - - 12,3289 - 12,3289
Due from financial institutions - 2,299 - - 3,998 - 6,295
Positive fair value of derivatives,
financial assets 8,867 - - - 22,412 - 31,2789
Ownership interests - - - - 8,800 - 8,800
Loans and advances
to customers 7,994 48,481 9,758 80 - - 66,311
Deferred fax assetfs - - - - - 70 70
Prepayments, accrued income
and other assets - - - - - 850 850
Disposal groups held for sale - - - - 107 - 107
Total Assets 16,861 50,780 9,756 80 47,644 920 126,041
Negative fair value of derivatives 386 - - - 602 - 988
Deposits and loans from banks - - - - 4,637 - 4,637
Deposits from customers - 38,439 19,424 42,493 - - 100,356
Subordinated debt - 1114 439 344 - - 1,897
Current tax liability - - - - - 17 n7z
Other liabilities and provisions - - - - - 3,770 3,770
Total Liabilities 386 39,553 19,863 42,837 5,139 3,887 111,665

179
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Statement of comprehensive income for the period ended 31 December 2015:

Financial Corporate Private Reftail
in MCZK markets banking banking banking ALCO Unallocated Total
Net inferest income 166 1,616 629 415 162 5] 2,894
Fee and commission income 520 78 4 3 - - 603
Fee and commission expense (103) (24) - - - - (127]
Dividends from financial assefs
available for sale - - - - 14 - 14
Dividends from investment
in equity - - - - 384 - 384
Impairment of assets available
for sale (32) - - - - - (32)
Net trading income / (expense) 25 - - - - - 25
Other operatfing income - - - - 738 98 834
Operating income 576 1,668 633 418 1,296 104 4,595
Personnel expenses (81) (45) (142) (27] - (438) (731)
Other operating expenses (50) (9] (28) (29) - (917) (1,033)
Depreciation and amaortisation - - (1 - - (B8] (87)
Profit before provisions,
allowances and income taxes 445 1,514 462 362 1,296 (1,315) 2,764
Nef change in provisions
from financial acftivities - (23] - - - - (23]
Net change in allowances for
loan losses - (532) (8) (4) - - (542)
Allowances for investment in
equity - - - - (238) - (238)
Profit before tax 445 959 456 358 1,060 (1,315) 1,963
Income tax expenses (52] m2] (54) (42)] (124) 154 (230]
Profit for the period 393 847 402 316 936 (1,161) 1,733

The values disclosed are netf of infer-segment fransactions and are submitfed fo the executfive manager as such.

When assessing the performance of the segment and issuing the decision about the funds which should be allocated fo the
segment, the executive manager decided that unallocated operating expenses need not be re-allocated fo individual segments.
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Statement of comprehensive income for the period ended 31 December 2014:

Financial Corporate Private Retail
in MCZK markets banking banking banking ALCO Unallocated Total
Net inferest income 80 1,131 516 346 534 20 2,627
Fee and commission income 489 79 5 3 - - 578
Fee and commission expense (78) (20] - - - - (98]
Dividends from financial assefs
available for sale - - - - 75 - 75
Dividends from investment
in equity - - - - 122 - 122
Impairment of assets available
for sale - - - - (2] - (62)
Net trading income / (expense) 270 - - - - - 270
Other operatfing income - - - - - 98 98
Operating income 764 1,190 521 349 669 118 3,61
Personnel expenses (72) (43) (nomn (21) - (403) (B40)
Other operating expenses (37) (5] (31 (45) - (857) (975)
Depreciation and amortisation - - (1 - - (50) (51)
Profit before provisions,
allowances and income taxes 655 1,142 388 283 669 [1.192) 1,945
Net change in provisions
from financial acftivities - (19) - - - - (19]
Net change in allowances
for loan losses - (207) (50) (2] - - [259]
Allowances for investment
in equity - - - - (92) - (92]
Profit before tax 655 916 338 281 577 (1,192) 1,675
Income tax expenses (138]) (193] 71 (59] (121) 250 (332]

Profit for the period 517 723 267 222 458 (942) 1,243
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(b) Geographical segments

In presenting information on the basis of geographical areas, revenue is based on the customer's country of domicile and
assefs/liabilities are based on the geographical location of the assets/liabilities. More details about splitting the credit risk for
loans according o the actfual loan purpose and location are comprised in note 37d.

Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2015:

Czech Other Other
in MCZK Republic Slovakia EU countries Total
Cash and balances with central banks 18,7156 308 - - 19,023
Due from financial institutions 30,614 285 332 2,530 33,661
Fair value of derivatives, financial assets 8,828 5,251 4,043 172 18,294
Investment in equity accounted investees 908 7 1133 1,261 3,308
Loans and advances to customers 12,063 19,617 356,079 3,393 70,042
Current fax assets 89 (30) - - 59
Deferred tax assefs 63 25 - - 88
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 916 99 121 10 1146
Disposal groups held for sale 107 - - 1,261 1,368
Total Assets 72,193 25,462 40,708 8,627 146,990
Negative fair value of derivatives 58 20 43 4 125
Deposifs and Loans from banks 819 212 n2 1,300 4,343
Depaosits from customers 78,663 26,643 8,202 3,660 117,068
Subordinated debt 998 319 707 24 2,048
Other liabilities and provisions 3,124 633 2,643 216 6,616

Total Liabilities 83,653 29,627 1,707 5,204 130,191
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Statement of financial position as at 31 December 2014;

Czech Other Other
in MCZK Republic Slovakia EU countries Total
Cash and balances with central banks 12,235 94 - - 12,328
Due from financial institutions 1,166 506 1,817 2,817 6,296
Fair value of derivatives, financial assetfs 21,667 5,663 3,775 234 31,279
Investment in equity accountfed invesfees 9893 6,287 887 633 8,800
Loans and advances to cusfomers 16,474 12,6656 36,168 2,014 66,311
Deferred tax assetfs 42 28 - - 70
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 547 99 198 B 850
Disposal groups held for sale 107 - - - 107
Total Assets 52,111 25,321 42,845 5,764 126,041
Negative fair value of derivatives 223 20 745 - 988
Deposits and Loans from banks 1,268 2,213 1,036 29 4,637
Deposits from customers 70,996 25,626 3,263 581 100,366
Subordinated debt 881 328 695 (5] 1,897
Current tax liability M4 3 - - n7z
Other liabilities and provisions 2,082 656 816 216 3,770
Total Liabilities 75,555 28,744 6,545 821 111,665

Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2015;

Czech Other Other
in MCZK Republic Slovakia EU countries Total
Net inferest income (264]) 885 2,325 148 2,894
Fee and commission incame 192 198 190 22 603
Fee and commission expense (103) (21) (1) (2] (127]
Dividends from financial assefs available for sale 1 - - 3 14
Dividends from investment in equity 104 280 - - 384
Net trading income / (expense] (784) 86 350 393 25
Impairment of assets available for sale (32) - - - (32)
Other operating income 89 741 4 - 834
Operating income (787) 1,950 2,868 564 4,595
Personnel expenses [454) [278) - 1) (731
Other operating expenses (690] [427) (9) (7) (1,033)
Depreciation and amortisation (B4) (3) - - (87)
Profit before provisions, allowances and income taxes (1,895) 1,244 2,859 556 2,764
Net change in provisions from financial activities (23) - - - (23)
Net change in allowances for impairment of loans (203] (302) (37) - (542)
Allowances for investment in equity (89) - (187) - (238)
Profit before tax [2,190) 942 2,655 556 1,963
Income tax expenses (110) (120) - - (230]

Profit for the period (2,300) 822 2,655 556 1,733
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Statement of comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December 2074;

Czech Other Other
in MCZK Republic Slovakia EU countries Total
Net interest income 849 (769) 2,442 106 2,627
Fee and commission incame 156 134 269 17 576
Fee and commission expense (21) (70) (2] (2] (98]
Dividends from financial assefs available for sale 64 - " - 75
Dividends from investment in equity 122 - - - 122
Net trading income / (expense] 988 (18] (B824) (79) 270
Impairment of assets available for sale (82) - - - (82)
Other operating income Els 3 - - 98
Operating income 2,191 (717) 2,096 41 3,61
Personnel expenses (488) (154) - - (B840)
Other operating expenses (658] (319) - - [975)
Depreciation and amortisation (48] (3) - - (51)
Profit before provisions, allowances and income taxes 1,001 (1,193) 2,096 41 1,945
Net change in provisions from financial activities (19) - - - (19)
Net change in allowances for impairment of loans (108) (151 - - (259)
Allowances for investment in equity (92] - - - (92]
Profit before tax 782 (1,344) 2,096 41 1,675
Income tax expenses (238] (98) - - (332)
Profit for the period 546 (1,440) 2,096 41 1,243

35. RELATED PARTIES — GENERAL

The oufstanding balances and fransactions with related parties of the Bank are with general related parties as presented in the
following tables. All fransactions with such entities fook place under standard market conditions.

The related partfies are sorfed in the following cafegories:

. Parent company. This category includes J&T FINANCE GROUP SE and its majority owners Jozef Tka¢ and lvan Jakabovic.

Il.  Subsidiaries. This category includes subsidiaries of J&T FINANCE GROUP SE which are included in its consolidated financial
statements by reason of majority ownership.

lll. Associates and joint ventures. This cafegory includes fransactions with joint venture PGJT BV. and ifs subsidiary
PROFIREAL, 00O. Transactions with Postova banka, a.s. and its subsidiaries are included in income and expense as well,
Receivables and payables fowards Posfova banka, a.s. and ifs subsidiaries are included in cafegory Il. as af 31 December
20715 as a resulf of the sale aof a share in Posfova banka, a.s. on 23 December 2015.

IV. Key management personnel of the entity or its parent. This category includes related parties which are connecfed through
key management personnel of the Bank or its parent.
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in MCZK . I 1. V. Total
BALANCE SHEET ITEMS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2015

Receivables N 1,348 14 7,649 8,922
Payables 1178 3,618 - 386 5,081
Granted guaranfees - 248 - 2 248
Received guarantees 862 418 - 282 1,642
Provided loan commitments 7 508 1 28 542
Received collateral - 73 - 442 515
PROFIT / LOSS ITEMS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2015

Expenses (154) (258) (100) (88) (600)
Income 118 894 145 7586 1.9M
in MCZK . I 1. V. Total
BALANCE SHEET ITEMS AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2014

Receivables 4 1,987 500 8,791 1n,282
Payables 619 1,734 1,240 781 4,354
Granted guaranfees 2 475 - 4 481
Received guarantees 8569 524 - 599 1,982
Provided loan commitments 174 280 - 20 474
Received collateral - 98 - 489 587
PROFIT / LOSS ITEMS FOR PERIOD ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2014

Expenses (73) (222) (129) (28) (450)
Income 25 265 132 579 1,001

Receivables from members of the Board of Directaors and the Supervisory Board

in MCZK 2015 2014
Provided loans 24 27

Loans to employees of the Bank as at 31 December 2016 amounted to CZK 70 million (2014: CZK 44 million). The loans provided
fo the Board of Direcfars and Supervisory Board were provided under standard market conditions.
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36. RISK MANAGEMENT POLICIES AND DISCLOSURES

The strategy, main goals and processes
The fundamental goal of risk management is profit maximization with respect fo the exposed risk tfaken, while considering the
Bank's risk appetite.

In doing so, it must be ensured that the Bank activities outcome is predictable and in compliance with both trading goals and
risk appefite of the Bank.

In order fo meet this goal, the risks faced by the Bank are managed in a quality and prudential manner within the framework of

the Bank:

— Interms of that, risks are monitored, assessed and eventually limited, af least as strictly as required by Czech National Bank.
The internal limits are being reconsidered regularly and in case of significant changes of market conditions to ensure their
compliance with both the overall group’s strategy and market and credit conditions. The adherence fo the limits is monitored
and reported daily. In case of their potential breach, the Bank immediately adopts adequate remedial measures.

— The Bank establishes goals for capital adequacy that it wants fo attain over a specified time horizon (i.e. the level to which
risks should be covered by capital) and threshold limits below which capital adequacy cannat decrease.

All internal limits have been approved independently of business units of the Bank.

37. CREDIT RISK

The Bank's primary exposure to credit risk arises through ifs loans and advances and financial assets. The amount of credit
exposure in this regard is represented by the carrying amounts of the assets in the statement of financial posifion. In addition,
the Bank is exposed fo off balance sheet credit risk through commitments to extend credit.

Concentrations of credit risk (whether on or off balance sheet] that arise from financial instruments exist for groups of
counterparties when they have similar economic characteristics that would cause their ability to meet contractual obligations

to be similarly affected by changes in economic or other conditions.

(a) Exposition forbearance

in MCZK 2015 2014
Perfarming exposition 65,426 63,827
— performing expasition forbearance 3132 2,451
Non-performing exposifion 4,618 2,484
— non-performing exposition forbearance 3,736 2,447
Total 70,042 66,311

The share of exposition forbearance on the fotfal loans provided fo clients 9.81% 7.39%




Financial Part | Separate Financial Statements 187

(b) Concentration of loans to customers by economic sector:

in MCZK 2015 2014
TOTAL NOT FORBEARANCE 63,174 61,413
Non-financial organisations 44,491 45,369
Financial arganisations 15,668 13,8560
Households 3,012 2,187
Other 3 7
TOTAL FORBEARANCE 6,868 4,898
Non-financial organisations 6,222 3,800
Financial organisations 467 418
Households 129 528
Other 50 53
Total 70,042 66,31

(c]) Concentration of loans to customers by industry:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Financial activities 21,267 18,860
Real estate acftivities 14,316 14,9566
Manufacturing 6,802 6,402
Production and distribution of electricity, gas and heat 5,748 5,650
Construction 5,688 2,888
Information and communication 4,707 3,673
Accommodation and food service activities 3,462 2,836
Mining and quarrying, agriculture 2,691 3,192
Private households and employed persons 1,773 2,086
Transparting and sforage 1,683 1,427
Sports, entertainment and recreation activities 913 1,204
Wholesale and retail frade 4786 574
Professional, scientific and technical activities 475 2,429
Adminisfrative and support service acfivities 156 1656
Health and social care 1 43
Other 194 37

Total 70,042 66,31
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(d) Concentration of loans to customers by location:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Cyprus 26, M 30,312
Slovakia 19,617 12,8556
Czech Republic 12,063 16,474
Luxembaourg 4,461 -
Poland 2,450 2,362
British Virgin Islands 1,813 886
Jersey, C.I. 866 -
Netherlands B892 1,337
Maldives 631 -
Ireland 570 1,308
Ausftria 433 398
Malta 304 181
Russia 77 568
Great Britain 58 272
Cayman Islands - 569
Others B 2
Total 70,042 66,31

(e) Concentration of loans to customers by location of realization of project and collateral:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Czech Republic 32,008 27,342
Slovakia 23,249 21,808
Russia 3,870 3,410
Poland 2,450 3,080
Slovenia 1,922 1,339
Croatia 1,801 2,21
Great Britain 1,097 448
Greece 707 724
Cyprus 684 338
Ukraine 840 1,213
Maldives 631 -
Austria 214 333
Malta 199 -
USA 184 876
Luxemburg 41 356
Germany - 3,178
Other 544 187

Total 70,042 66,31
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The concentratfion of credit risk arising from repurchase agreements and loans fo clienfs of brokers reflects the counterparty

risk associated with securities and cash received as collateral.

(f) Credit risk associated with financial assets

As at 31 December 2015

Repurchase
agreements Loans Repurchase

Loans - financial and advances agreements
in MCZK to banks institutions to customers — customers
Financial assets impaired:
Impaired financial assets at amaortised cost
individually assessed not forbearance:
Gross amount - - 426 -
Impairment - - (32] -
Carrying amount - - 394 -
Impaired financial assets at amortised cost
individually assessed forbearance:
Gross amount - - 2,767 -
Impairment - - (1299] -
Carrying amount - - 1,468 -
Total financial assets impaired - - 1,862 -
Financial assets not impaired:
Neither past due nor impaired:
- not forbearance 1,250 32,411 59,7562 3,027
- forbearance - - 5,340 -
Past due not impaired:
- notf farbearance - - 1 -
- forbearance - - B0 -
fo maturity date - - 1 -
up tfo 1 month - - 13 -
1 month fo 8 months - - - -
B8 months fo 12 months - - - -
more than 12 months - - 47 -
Total financial assets not forbearance 1,250 32,41 60,147 3,027
Total financial assets forbearance - - 6,868 -
of which: Financial assets neither past due nor impaired
with a sign of impairment: - - 9,085 -
Gross amount not forbearance - - 3,686 -

Gross amaount forbearance

5,400
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As at 31 December 2014

Repurchase

Loans agreements Loans Repurchase
| obams -mnal  atences o speren
in MCZK institutions
Financial assets impaired:
Gross amount - - 328 -
Impairment - - (298] -
Carrying amount - - 33 -
Impaired financial assets at amortised cost
individually assessed forbearance:
Gross amount - - 2,298 -
Impairment - - (844) -
Carrying amount - - 1,654 -
Total financial assets impaired - - 1,687 -
Financial assets not impaired:
Neither past due nor impaired:
- notf forbearance 3,998 2,299 54,788 5,313
- forbearance - - 3,143 -
Past due not impaired:
- not forbearance - - 1,279 -
- forbearance - - 101 -
to matfurity datfe - - 1,288 -
up fo 1 month - - 21 -
1 month fo 8 months - - 8 -
8 months to 12 months - - 7 -
more than 12 months - - 48 -
Total financial assets not forbearance 3,996 2,299 56,100 5,313
Total financial assets forbearance - - 4,898 -
of which: Financial assets neither past due nor impaired
with a sign of impairment: - - 3,839 -
Gross amount not forbearance - - 5986 -
Gross amount forbearance - - 3,243 -

Assets classified as "Financial assets neither past due nor impaired with a sign of impairment" and "Past due not impaired”

represent those loans with a sign of impairment whose net present value of expected cash flows exceeds their carrying valug,

and therefore no provision has been creatfed.

The part of the receivables that is not past due is presented in the line "To maturity date" and the Bank does not assume any

problems with counterparty's payment discipline. Past due receivables are presented in the appropriate columns according fo

the period past due.

The amounts in the table on the previous page represent the maximum accounting loss that would be recognized in the

statement of financial position if counterparties had completely failed fo fulfill their obligations and if any patential collateral had

no value as well. Those amounts are therefore considerably higher than expected losses that are included in the allowance for
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the loan losses. The Bank's policy is to require collateral from certain customers before loans can be drawn.

(g) Collateral and credit enhancements for financial assets

2015 2015 2014 2014
in MCZK Carrying value Fair value Carrying value Fair value
Neither past due nor impaired: 60,549 87,659 39,627 71,777
Guarantees 2,691 3,114 6,638 8,765
Acceptances of promissory note 1,128 1,873 1,363 2,248
Real estate 6,606 8,868 5,886 8,419
Cash deposits 2,248 2,248 1,235 1,235
Securities 4,362 6,306 7,010 9,212
Other 4,796 7,045 5,889 10,377
Securities received under reverse repurchase agreements 38,728 38,728 11,606 1,506
Past due but not impaired: 60 344 1,085 1,451
Guarantees - - - -
Acceptances of promissary nofe - - 1 1
Real estate 58 342 992 1,366
Cash depasits 2 2 53 b3
Securities - - 36 36
Other - - 3 5
Securities received under reverse repurchase agreements - - - -
Impaired: 1,425 1,967 1,698 1777
Guarantees 81 81 - -
Acceptances of promissory nofe - - - -
Real estfate 1120 1,838 1,418 1664
Cash deposits 8 8 8 8
Pledges - securities 96 103 35 35
Other 120 139 137 170

Securities received under reverse repurchase agreements

Otfher is mainly represented by movable assefs and receivables.

Only co-accepted promissory notes of a 3rd party were accepted as security of loans by the Bank. The amount of security is up

to the value of guarantee provided by promissory naofe guarantor. The Bank did not receive any financial assets from indemnity

claims based on loans in default.

The carrying value represents the collateral value adjusted by the collateral sfress coefficient. The carrying value is limited by

the carrying value of receivable. The fair value is nat adjusted by sfress coefficient and it is not limited by the carrying value

of receivable.

The carrying value of securities received under reverse repurchase agreements is represented in the quaoted market price of

the securities.

191
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(h) Unconsolidated structured entities

The Bank engages in various business activities with structured entities which are companies designed fo achieve a specific
business purpose and usually designed so that votfing or similar rights are not dominant factor in deciding who confrols the
entity.

A structured enfity has offen some or all of the following feafures or attributes:

— Restricted actfivifies;

— A narrow and well defined objective;

— Insufficient equity that does not enable fo finance its activities without subordinated financial support.

The Bank provides financing to certain strucfured entities for the purchase of assefs that are collateralized in favor of the
Bank by the sfrucfured entities. The Bank enfers info fransactions with these enfifies in the normal course of business to
facilitate customer fransactions and for specific investment opporfunities. The entifies covered by this disclosure note are not
consalidated because the Bank does not contral them through vaoting rights, contract, funding agreements, or other means.

Income derived from involvement with sfructured enfities represents interest income recognized by the Bank on the funding
provided to sfructured enfifies.

The Bank's interests in unconsolidated sfructured entities refer to contractual involvement that exposes the group to variability
of refurns from the performance of the strucfured entities.

The maximum exposure fo loss for the Bank is determined by considering the nature of the inferest in the unconsolidated
structured enfity and represents the maximum loss that the Bank could be required to report as a result of its involvement with
unconsolidated stfructured enfities regardless of the probability of tThe loss being incurred.

The maximum exposure for loans is reflected by their carrying amounts in the balance sheet as at 31 December 2015 amounting
to CZK 3 246 million (2014: CZK 2 976 million) and there was no loss incurred in respect of these loans provided.

The fotal assets value for the significant unconsolidated structured entity which was identified, as indication of ifs size, is CZK
7 059 million (2014: CZK 4 311 million).

(i) Credit risk processes
Evaluating the risk of failure of counterparty is based on a credit analysis, processed by the Credit Risk Management depf.

These analyses provide conclusions for prompt measures when the counterparty's credit situation worsens.

The resulfs from the credit development analyses are reported to the Board of Directors, which decides on adjustments of limits
or relations with the counterparty (namely in the form of closing or limiting positions or adjustment of limits).

Credif risk is monitored on a regularly basis, except for the credit risk of banking book reporfed on a monthly basis.
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The extent of the risk is evaluated by Risk Management dept. When acfual or possible breach of the adopted internal credit limits
is identified, The Financial Markets dept. is informed, in order fo ensure the compliance of the risk exposure with the set limits.
In pre-defermined cases, the information is passed to the Board of Directors.

(i) Credit risk monitoring

Assessment of the credif risk in respect of counterparty or an issued debt is based on an infernal rating of the Bank. The rating
is defermined using the credit scale of either SGP or Moody's. If the counterparties or their debt are not externally rated, an
infernal rafing is assigned based on the Bank scaring system.

The Bank scoring system has seven rating levels based on a standardized point evaluation of relevant criteria, which describe
the financial pasition of the contractual party and its ability and willingness to fulfil its credit obligations — in both cases including
the expected development, guality and adequacy of the collateral, as well as proposed conditions for effecting the fransaction.

(k) Credit risk measurement
The Bank regularly analyses and monitars credit risk. At portfolio level, credit risk is managed primarily based on the IRB (Internal
Rating Based - BASEL I} methodology.

In order to assess the impact of extremely unfavourable credit conditions, the Bank performs credit development analyses. This
enables idenfification of sudden potential changes in the values of open positions of the Bank that might arise as a result of
events that are improbable, but possible.

For the trading portfolio, an impact of a sudden drop of credit rating by one level o open positions in bonds is evaluated.

The decrease in fair value af the end of the corresponding reparting period:

in MCZK 2015 2014
Decrease of the trading portfolio value due to a rating migrafion by one credit class 82 53

(in the Standard & Poor's scale]

Overall, there was an increase in credit spreads across rafing grades that is evident primarily in higher risk grades. The impact
of stress scenarios increased due fo this factor.

(1) Risk management of customer trades

The Bank prevents the possibility of a credit exposure arising from customer frades, ie. frades which are fransacted on the

customer's account and where the Bank has the role of a commissioner (customer trades such as spat buy, spot sell, sell /

buy or buy / sell] as follows:

1. The amount of the customer collateral is confinuously held higher than the amount of the customer loan at least by a pre-
specified minimum required haircut. The level of this haircut is assigned fo every instrument.

2. Should the current collateralization of the customer portfolio fall below the 30 per cent of the minimum required haircut, the
Bank closes all of the customer's positions immediately.
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3. The Bank accepfs only instruments of specified minimal creditworthiness as collateral for custfomer trades.
In addition, The Bank also restricts the fotal volume of individual instruments used as caollateral.

As of 31 December 2015, the Bank recorded customer trades totalling CZK 411 million (2014: CZK 414 million) and those are nat
recognized in the Bank financial statements.

38. LIQUIDITY RISK

Liquidity risk represents a risk that the Bank is natf able fo meet its commitments as they are becoming mature. The Bank is
required to report several indicators to the National Bank which is done on a regular basis. The Bank's effart in tferms of liquidity
risk is fo diversify its sources of funding so as fo decrease the degree of risk emerging from specific source cutf-off and hence
forego problems.

The Bank performs an everyday monitaring of its liquidity position to indicate potential liquidity problems. The analysis fakes
info account all sources of funding that the Bank is using and inferconnected obligations the Bank has fo pay. For the purpose
of sufficient liquidity reserve the Bank holds sufficient amount of liquid instruments (such as government bonds), maintains
balances with central banks on a reasonable level and collects short-term receivables.

The Bank assorts all cash flows info timeframes according fo maturities of the instruments to which the cash flows relafe, and
subsequently observes the resulting cumulative liquidity profile which is crucial for sound liquidity risk management. Such an
analysis is also done for cash flows denominated in currencies different from CZK.

Three scenarios are used in ferms of liquidity risk management:
AJ Expected Scenario

B] Risky Scenario

C) Stress Scenarios

Stress Scenarios are based on stfress imposed on components that might be negatively affected when liquidity crisis starts to
approach. The stfress scenario helps identify periods when it is necessary fo manage the cash flows of the Bank with caution.

For the purposes of measuring liquidity risk on the basis of the scenarios, liquidity indicators are evaluated and their compliance
with adopted infernal / external limits is manitored on a daily basis. When present or possible breach of the adopted infternal /
external liquidity limits is identified, the Treasury dept. as well as ALCO is informed, in order fo ensure the compliance with the
set limits. In pre-defermined cases, the information is passed to the Board of Directors.

The Bank has an emergency plan for liquidity management that establishes the procedures applied in the case of possible
liquidity crisis. The decision-making power is given by internal rules fo the Board of Directors or ALCO.
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The main precautionary measures intfroduced by the Risk Department of the Bank in this area fo respond to the economic crisis
were as follows:

— implementation of stress festfs based on various crisis scenarios;

— prudent infernal limits for on-demand and mid-term available liquidity.

Liquidity risk of liquidity relevant instruments as of 31 December 2015:
Table shows the liguidity risk based on remaining contfractual maturity dates.

Over 3

Carrying Contractual Up fo months & up 1to >b Undefined
in MCZK amount  cash flows 3 months fo 1 year 5 years years maturity
ASSETS
Cash and balances
with the central banks 19,023 19,023 17,317 - - - 1,708
Due from financial institutions 33,661 34,218 33,208 20 224 766 -
Financial assets (without derivatives) 18,192 20,671 213 1,688 4,814 8,287 5,668
Loans and advances to cusfomers 70,042 86,777 11,461 156,293 38,888 20,136 -
Total 140,918 159,689 62,198 16,902 43,926 29,198 7,364
OFF BALANCE
Unused credif lines 6,415 6,416 8,415 - - - -
Granted guarantfees 2,602 2,602 2,602 - — — —

Over 3

Carrying Confractual Up fo months & up 1to >5 Undefined
in MCZK amount  cash flows 3 months to 1 year b years years maturity
LIABILITIES
Depasits and loans from banks 4,343 4,363 3,627 826 - - -
Deposits from customers 117,068 119,026 60,888 30,218 27,858 50 -
Subordinated debt 2,049 2,788 28 100 1,001 1,658 -
Total 123,450 126,167 64,454 31,145 28,859 1,708 -
Net Liquidity position 17,468 33,422 (788) (14,243) 15,067 27,490 5,895
Cumulative liquidity position - - (788]) (15,029) 38 27,528 33,423

Confractual cash flows represents expected confractual future cash flows.
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Expected liquidity
In the warst case scenario, the latest possible repayment date is assumed, which is based on latest expected completion date
of each particular project. The projects' latest expected completion date may not be the same as the contractual maturity date.

Loans that are already in the process of refinancing negotiation are presented according the expected date of refinancing.

Carrying  Contractual Upto 3 mon‘rgge&‘: 1to >6 Undefined
in MCZK amount  cash flows 3 months up fo 1 year 5 years years maturity
Loans and advances to cusfomers 70,042 86,784 9,382 16,129 40,181 21,042 50
Liquidity risk of derivatives as of 31 December 2015:

Carrying Contractual Up to Up to 1 year to
in MCZK amount cash flows 3 manths 1 year 5 years
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS
Forward currency contracts
- outfflow - (19,038) (18.482) (634]) (40)
- inflow 101 19,124 18,634 549 41
Other derivatives
— inflow 1 1 - - 1
Total 102 89 72 15 2
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Forward currency contracts
- outfflow (125) (25,4986) (23,625) (1,.809) (62)
— inflow - 25,362 23,456 1844 62

Total (125) (134) (69) (65) -
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Liquidity risk of liquidity relevant instruments as of 31 December 2014:
Table shows the liguidity risk based on remaining confractual maturity dates.

Carrying Contractual Upto 3 momggeé?: 1to >b Undefined
in MCZK amount  cash flows 3 months up fo 1 year 5 years years maturity
ASSETS
Cash and balances
with the central banks 12,329 12,328 1,167 - - - 1171
Due from financial institutions 6,295 5,638 5,836 22 174 506 -
Financial assets (without derivatives) 31,179 33,345 876 1,404 16,146 12,131 3,788
Loans and advances to cusfomers 66,31 82,861 13,436 14,035 31,186 24,1956 -
Total 116,114 135,073 31,304 15,461 46,516 36,832 4,959
OFF BALANCE
Unused credif lines 5,104 5,104 2,857 1,024 1,223 - -
Granted guarantfees 2,827 2,827 2,827 - — — —

Over

Carrying Confractual Up fo 3 months & 1to >5 Undefined
in MCZK amount  cash flows 3 months up fo 1year b years years maturity
LIABILITIES
Depaosits and Loans from banks 4637 4564 3,389 21 1164 - -
Deposits from customers 100,356 102,368 48,286 28,751 25,298 24 -
Subordinated debt 1,897 2,708 27 96 583 2,002 -
Total 106,790 109,641 51,712 28,868 27,035 2,026 -
Net Liquidity position 9,324 25,432 (20,389) (13,407) 19,481 34,806 4,941
Cumulative liquidity position - - (20,389) (33,796) (14,315) 20,491 25,432
Expected liquidity

Over

Carrying Confractual Up fo 3 months & 1to >b Undefined

in MCzZK amount  cash flows 3 months up fo 1year 5 years years maturity

Loans and advances to customers 66,311 82,861 12,843 13,785 31,779 24,183 171
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Liquidity risk of derivatives as of 31 December 2014:

Carrying Contractual Up to Up to 1Tyearto b
in MCZK amount cash flows 3 months 1 year years
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL ASSETS
Forward currency contracts
— outflow - (6,632) (4,414) [2,118) -
— inflow 98 6,625 4,489 2,136 -
Other derivatives
- inflow 1 1 - - 1
Total 100 94 75 18 1
DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Forward currency contracts
— outflow (998) [45,725) (39,006) (5,668] (1,061)
— inflow - 44,755 38,6566 5115 984
Other derivatives
- outflow - (3) M m M
Total [998]) (973) (351) (554) (e8]

39. MARKET RISK

Market risk is the risk of loss to the Bank arising from market movements in quated market prices of investment instruments,
exchange rafes and inferest rates. Market risk consists of the frading portfolio market risk and investment portfolio market risk.

Market risk of the frading portfalio includes:

— Inferest rafe risk;

— Foreign exchange risk;

—  Other market risk (equity risk, commodity risk].

Further information on interest rafe risk and foreign exchange risk is provided in note 40 and 41, respectively.

The Bank uses the Value at Risk ("VaR") methodology fo evaluate market risk of its trading portfolio, the foreign currency ("FX")
and commodity posifion using a confidence level of 99% and a horizon of 10 business days.

The risks are evaluated and compared fo limits set by the Risk Management Deparfment on a daily basis. If tThe limits are
breached, the Financial Markets deparfment is informed, in order fo ensure the compliance of the risk exposure with the limits.
In pre-deftermined cases, the information is passed fo the Board of Directors.

The decision making power is given by infernal rules to the Board of Directors and Investment Committee.

The Bank performs back festing on a daily basis for market risk by applying a method of hypaothefical back festing.
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The VaR statistics as of 31 December 2015 and 31 December 2014 are as follows:

in MCZK 2015 2014
VaR market risk overall 101 30
VaR interest rate risk (general risk) 40 4
VaR FX risk 100 32
VaR stock risk 15 10
VaR commodity risk 3 3

In order fo assess the impact of extremely unfavourable market conditions, the Bank performs stress tfesfing. This enables
identification of sudden potential changes in the values of open positions of the Bank that might arise as a result of events
that are improbable, but possible. As part of the stress testing, a short-term, medium-term and long-term historic shock scenario
is applied fo the frading portfolio, and the foreign currency and commodity positions of the Bank as a whole. These scenarios
evaluate the deepest drop of the current portfolio value which would have happened in the previous one [short-tferm scenario),
two [medium-term scenario) or seven years (long-term scenario). The potfential change in the fair value of the portfolio is
monifored and assessed.

The decline in overall risk is primarily associated with a decline in inferest rafe risk, while the fall in the inferest rafe risk is
because of a reduced volafility of inferest rates. The increase in the sfock risk is caused by more than a double increase of
stock positions and the increase in FX risk is caused mainly by the increased volafility of exchange rates.

in MCZK 2015 2014
CHANGE IN THE FAIR VALUE OF THE TRADING PORTFOLIO DUE TO HISTORIC SHOCK SCENARIO

short-ferm scenario 66 21
medium-term scenario 66 77
long-ferm scenario 83 143

The deterioration of the impact of stress scenarios is caused by the increase in the averall FX pasition, which is reflected in the
short-term and medium-tferm scenarios. Reduced exposures in the frading portfolio are reflected by a decrease in the long-ferm
scenario impact compared fo the previous year.

The market risk of the banking portfolio consists mainly of FX risk.

For defails of the interest rate risk see notfe 40.

The Bank performs stress festing of the investment porffolio using a standardised inferest rafe shock, i.e. an immediate
decrease / increase in interest rates by 200 basis points (‘bp'] along the entire yield curve.
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The decrease in the present value of the investment portfolio in percentage points of equity would be as follows:

2015 2014
(% TIER 1 + TIER 2]

Decrease in the present value of the investment portfolio due to a sudden change in interest rates by 200 bp 12.03 16.40

40. INTEREST RATE RISK

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in market interest rates. The
length of fime for which the rafe of inferest is fixed for a financial instfrument indicates fo what extent it is exposed to an inferest
rate risk. The table below provides information on the extent of the Bank's interest rate exposure based either on the contractual
maturity date of its financial instruments or, in the case of instruments that re-price fo a market rafe of interest before maturity,
the next re-pricing dafe. Those assetfs and liabilities that do not have a contfractual maturity dafe or are zero-inferest-bearing are
grouped together in the "maturity undefined" category.
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Inferest rafe risk exposure as at 31 December 2015 was as follows:

Up fo 1 year fo Over Maturity
in MCZK 1 year 5 years 5 years undefined Total
ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 18,862 - - 181 19,023
Due from financial institutions 33,344 - 317 - 33,661
Fair value of derivatives, financial assets 7,782 1,851 3,098 5,765 18,294
Loans and advances to cusfomers 56,693 10,981 2,361 107 70,042
Investment in equity - - - 3,309 3,309
Investment property, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets - - - 163 153
Current tax assefs - - - 59 59
Deferred tax assetfs - - - 88 88
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets 3 - - 990 993
Disposal groups held for sale - - - 1,368 1,368
Total assets 116,594 12,632 5,774 11,990 146,990
LIABILITIES
Deposits and loans from banks 4,342 - - 1 4,343
Deposits from customers 90,632 26,637 40 (151) 117,068
Negative fair value of derivatives 124 1 - - 125
Subordinated debt 760 535 781 7] 2,049
Other liabilities and provisions 148 3 - 6,466 6,616
Share capital - - - 10,638 10,638
Retfained earnings and other reserves - - - 6,161 6,161
Total liabilities and equity 95,906 27,1786 801 23,107 146,990
Net interest rate risk position 20,688 (14,544) 4,973 (11,117) -

Cumulative interest rate risk position 20,688 6,144 117 - -
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Inferest rafe risk exposure as at 31 December 2014 was as follows;

Up tfo 1 year to Over Maturity
in MCZK 1 year 5 years 5 years undefined Total
ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks 12,148 - - 181 12,3289
Due from financial institutions 5,876 - 420 - 6,296
Fair value of derivatives, financial assets 16,290 6,687 2,804 5,688 31,279
Loans and advances to cusfomers 60,933 2,874 2,194 510 66,31
Investment in equity - - - 8,800 8,800
Investment property, property, plant and equipment,
intangible assets - - - 166 166
Deferred tax assefs - - - 70 70
Prepayments, accrued income and other assets - - - 684 684
Disposal groups held for sale - - - 107 107
Total assets 95,246 9,261 5,418 16,116 126,041
LIABILITIES
Deposits and loans from banks 3,382 11656 - - 4,637
Deposits from customers 79,083 21,398 9 (134) 100,366
Negative fair value of derivatives 978 10 - - 988
Subordinated debt 708 130 1,069 - 1,897
Current tax liability - - - n7 n7z
Other liabilities and provisions - - - 3,770 3,770
Share capital - - - 9,668 9,668
Retfained earnings and other reserves - - - 4,818 4,818
Total liabilities and equity 84,151 22,693 1,068 18,128 126,041
Net interest rate risk position 11,095 (13,432) 4,350 (2,013]) -

Cumulative interest rate risk position 11,095 (2,337) 2,013 - -
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41. FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies, including off-balance sheet exposures, represent the Bank's exposure
to currency risk. Both realized and unrealized foreign exchange gains and losses are reported directly in the sfatement of
comprehensive income. The main fool used for managing fareign currency risk is the VaR methodology which is applied using
a 99% confidence level and a ten-day holding period.

As at 31 December 2015, the exposure to Group's foreign exchange risk translated into millions of CZK was as follows:

in MCZK CzK usD EUR RUB Other Total
ASSETS

Cash and balances with the central banks 18,671 12 332 - 8 19,023
Due from financial institutions 30,260 2,683 629 16 83 33,661
Fair value of derivatives, financial assets 5,708 397 1,902 - 287 18,294
Loans and advances to cusfomers 17623 2,276 48,998 49 1,096 70,042
Investment in equity accounted investees 808 377 128 1,261 6356 3,309
Current tax assets 89 - (30) - - 59
Deferred tax assetfs 63 - 25 - - 88

Investment property, property, plant and
equipment, intangible assets, prepayments,

accrued income and other assets 423 18 600 4 1 1148
Disposal groups held for sale 107 - - 1,261 - 1,368
Total 73,842 5,763 62,684 2,691 2,10 146,990
LIABILITIES

Deposits and loans from banks 1167 199 2,951 - 36 4,343
Depasits from cusfomers 77,6870 2,329 36,783 184 102 117,068
Subordinated debt 997 - 1,062 - - 2,048
Other liabilities and equity 20,6083 288 2,616 5 25 23,540
Total 100,427 2,821 43,412 169 163 146,990

Long position off-balance sheet:

items from derivative fransactions 32,927 733 9.614 2086 1,206 44,686

items from spot fransactions
with share instruments 15 63 - - - 78

Short position off-balance sheet:

items from derivative fransactions 6,284 3,630 30,839 1,942 2139 44,734
items from spotf transactions
with share insfruments 15 63 - - 78

Open position asset/(liability) 59 147 [2,053) 785 1,014 (48)
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As at 31 Becember 2014, the exposure fo foreign exchange risk franslated into millions of CZK was as follows:

in MCZK CzK Usb EUR RUB Other Total
ASSETS

Cash and balances with the central banks 12,198 18 1086 - 7 12,328
Due from financial institutions 824 2,905 1,864 163 549 6,295
Fair value of derivatives, financial assets 18,217 319 11,687 - 156 31,278
Loans and advances to cusfomers 17,6565 6,847 41,683 38 188 66,311
Investment in equity accountfed invesfees 302 501 7,089 633 275 8,800
Deferred tax assetfs 42 - 28 - - 70

Investment property, property, plant
and equipment, infangible assetfs, goodwill,
prepayments, accrued income and ofher

assets 458 124 234 1 33 850
Disposal groups held for sale 107 - - - - 107
Total 50,703 10,814 62,491 825 1,208 126,041
LIABILITIES

Deposits and loans from banks 1,468 162 2,828 8 81 4,637
Deposits from customers 70128 2,080 27,980 94 64 100,356
Subordinated debt 878 - 1,019 - - 1,897
Current tax liability 14 - 3 - - n7
Other liabilities and equity 17,036 314 1,766 - 29 19,134
Total 89,624 2,546 33,595 102 174 126,041

Long paosition off-balance sheef:

items from derivatfive fransactions 44,449 506 7,983 - 57 39,100
items from spot fransactions

with share instruments 44 1 1 - - 48
Short position off-balance sheet:

items from derivative fransactions 7,828 8,608 36,724 52 722 54,034
items from spot fransactions

with share instruments 45 - 1 - - 48
Open position asset/(liability) (2,401) 167 1556 671 530 (878])

42. OPERATIONAL RISK
Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from fraud, unauthorised activities, error, omission, inefficiency or system failure. It
arises from all the Bank's activities and is a risk faced by all business organisations. Operational risk includes legal risk.

The Bank's objective is o manage operational risk so as o balance the avoidance of financial losses and damage fo the Bank's
reputation with overall cost effectiveness and avoid control procedures that would restrict initiative and creativity.

The primary responsibility for the implementation of controls fo address operational risk is assigned fo management within each
subsidiary. This responsibility is supported by the development of overall standards within the Bank for the management of
operational risk which is done by the Risk Management Bepartment and which cover the following areas:

— Requirements for the reconciliation and monitaring of transactions.
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— Identification of operational risk within the framework of each subsidiary's control system and development of conditions
for decreasing and limiting operational risk (while the required level of activities is secured), as well as its impacts and
conseguences; recommendations for appropriate solutions in this area.

— Reporting of operational risk events by entering the corresponding information info the Bank's database of operational risk
events

— This overview of the Bank's operational risk events allows the Bank to specify the direction of the steps and processes to
take in order to limit these risks, as well as fo make decisions with regard fo:

— accepting the individual risks that are faced;
— inifiating processes leading fo limitation of possible impacts; or
— decreasing the scope of the relevant activity or disconfinuing it entirely.

43. CAPITAL MANAGEMENT
The Bank policy is to hold sfrong capital base in order to maintain the confidence of creditors and the market, while ensuring
the future development of her business.

Starting 1 January 2014 the capital adequacy ratios are calculated in accordance with the Regulation (EU) no. 575/2013 of the
European Parliament and Council Regulation (the "CRR") of 26 June 2013. Unfil 31 December 2013 the capital adequacy ratio
was calculated in accordance with the Czech National Bank ("CNB') decree nao. 123/2007 Call.

Own funds (regulatory capital) of the Bank are analysed in fwo parts:
— Tier 1 capifal, which consist of:

— Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1), which includes paid-up ordinary share capital, share premium, retained earnings
(profit for the period is not included), accumulated other comprehensive income, net of goodwill, infangible assets and
additional value adjustments;

— Additional Tier 1 capital [AT1), which includes capital instruments (subordinated income certificates] issued in accordance
with CRR.

— Tier 2 capifal, which consists of eligible subordinated debt approved by Czech National Bank in the amount of CZK 1 832
million (31 Becember 2014; CZK 1 857 million).

Unftil 31 Becember 2013, the capital adequacy ratfio was calculated as the rafio of regulafory capital to capital requirements
mulfiplied by 8% according to regulatory requirements. The capital adequacy ratio had fo be a minimum value of 8%.

From 1 January 2014 the capital adequacy ratios are calculated for CET1, Tier 1 capital and total regulatory capital. The value
represents the ratio of capital o risk weighted assets (RWA). CNB also requires every institution to hold additional capital
conservation buffer of 2.56% on all the levels of regulatory capital.



206 Financial Part | Separate Financial Statements

Minimum requirements for capital ratios are as follows:

Capital
Minimum  conservation Total
requirement buffer requirement
Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) 4.5 % 25 % 7.0 %
Tier 1 capital 8.0 % 25 % 8.6 %
Total regulatory capital 8.0 % 25 % 10.5 %

Regulatory capital and equity reconciliation
The tables below summarize the composition of own funds (regulatory capital) and equity and capital ratios for 31 December
2015 and 31 December 2014, providing a complete reconciliation of individual items of regulatory capital o equity.

31 December 2015

Regulatary
in MCZK capital Equity
Paid-up capital registered in the Commercial Register 10,638 10,638
Retained earnings 2,433 2,627
Profit for the period - 1,733
Accumulated other comprehensive income 79 87
Reserve funds - 72
() Additional value adjustments (AVA] (18) -
[-) Intangible assets other than goodwill (97) -
Paid-in AT1 instruments, share premium 1,742 1,742
Total Tier 1 capital 14,777 n/a
Total Tier 2 capital 1,932 -

Total regulatory capital/equity 16,709 16,799
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31 December 2014

Regulatary
in MCZK capital Equity
Paid-in capital registered in the Commercial Register 9,668 9,668
Retfained earnings 2,618 2,627
Profit for the period - 1,243
Accumulated other comprehensive income - 69
Reserve funds - 80
Gains or losses from financial assets available for sale (1 -
[-) Intangible assets other than goodwill (113) -
Paid-in AT1 instruments, share premium 899 899
Total Tier 1 capital 12,851 n/a
Total Tier 2 capital 1,867 -
Total regulatory capital/equity 14,708 14,376

Based on the opinion of the Czech National Bank, refained earnings were reduced by the anticipated payment amount of the
income from subordinated income certfificates [AT1 instruments) in the next four quarters that are not covered by a special-
purpose fund for the payment of the income from those certificates before its inclusion in regulatory capital.

RWA and capital ratios

in MCZK 31 December 2015 31 Becember 2014
Total risk weighted assets [RWA) 105,568 101,186

Capital adequacy ratios

31 December 2015 31 Becember 2014

Common Equity Tier 1 capital (CET1) 12.34 % 11.81 %
Tier 1 capital 14.00 % 12.70 %
Total regulatory capital 15.83 % 14.54 %

The key goal of capital management of the Bank is to ensure that the risks faced do not threaten the solvency of the Bank and
capital adequacy regulatory limit compliance. In addition, within the stfrategic framework of the Bank the board sfipulated the
value 12% for mid-term capital adequacy goal as a reflection of the risk appefite of the Bank.

The purpose for sefting the minimum value for capifal adequacy requirements is to establish a frigger mechanism, which
provides a guarantee that the capital adequacy will not decrease fo the regulatory minimum.

The compliance of the Bank capital with established limits and goals for the capital adequacy is evaluated regularly by the ALCO
committee and the Bank's management.
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The decision making power with regard to evenfual measures that should be implemented o decrease the level of exposed risk
(e.g., decreasing the size of risks, acquiring additional capital, efc.) is given to the Board of Directors.

44. FAIR VALUES INFORMATION

Estimation of fair values
The following summarizes the major methods and assumptions used in estimating the fair values of financial insfruments
reflected in the table.

Loans and advances o customers and Due from financial institutions: Fair value is calculated based on discounted expected
future cash flows of principal and inferest using the appropriate yield curve and risk spread. Expected future cash flows are
esfimated considering the creditf risk and any indication of impairment. The esfimated fair values of loans reflect changes in
credit status since the loans were provided and changes in inferest rates in the case of fixed rate loans.

Financial assetfs held to maturity: Fair value is based on quoted market prices fraded in active markets at the sfatement of
financial position date.

Deposifts and loans from banks and customers and Subordinated debt: For demand deposits and deposits with no defined
maturity, fair value is taken to be the amount payable on demand atf the statement of financial position date. The estimated fair
value of fixed-maturity depaosits is based on discounted cash flows using appropriate yield curve.

The fair value of the issued subordinated bonds does not contain direct fransaction costs, which were expensed on issue.

Estimates of the fair value of financial assefs measured at amartized cost, analyzed according o the hierarchy that reflects the
significance of the inpufs used in the valuation were as follows:

As at 31 December 2016

Total Total
in MCZK Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value Carrying amount
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks - 19,023 - 19,023 19,023
Due from financial institutions - 33,632 - 33,632 33,661
Loans and advances fo customers - 68,736 2,242 70,978 70,042
Financial assefs held to maturity 625 - - 625 608
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Deposits and loans from banks - 4,327 - 4,327, 4,343
Deposits from customers - 116,608 - 116,608 117,058

Subordinated debt - 1,967 - 1,967 2,049
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As at 31 December 2014

Total Total
in MCZK Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Fair value Carrying amount
FINANCIAL ASSETS
Cash and balances with central banks - 12,3289 - 12,329 12,328
Due from financial institutions - 6,295 - 6,296 6,296
Loans and advances to cusfomers - 84,634 2,301 66,8356 66,31
Financial assefs held fo maturity 1,368 - - 1,368 1,31
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES
Depasits and loans from banks - 4,494 - 4,494 4,637
Deposits from customers - 99,697 - 99,697 100,366
Subordinated debt - 1,742 - 1,742 1,897

45, SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
In February, 2016, the Bank sold its ownership inferest in the company ART FOND — Stredoeurdpsky fond stitasného umenia,
as.
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
to the Shareholders
of J & T BANKA, a.s.

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of J & T BANKA, a.s., prepared in accordance with Infernational
Financial Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union, which comprise the statement of financial position as of 31
December 2015, and the statement of comprehensive income, the statfement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement
for the year then ended, and the notfes fo these financial statements including a summary of significant accounting palicies and
other explanatory notes. Information about J & T BANKA, a.s. is sef out in Note 110 these financial statements.

Statutory Body's Responsibility for the Financial Statements

The stafutory body of J & T BANKA, a.s. is responsible for the preparation of financial statements that give a frue and fair view
in accordance with Infernational Financial Reparting Standards as adopted by the European Union and for such infernal controls
as the sfafufory body determines are necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due fo fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is fo express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accaordance with the Act on Audifars, International Standards on Auditing and the relevant guidance of the Chamber of Auditors
of the Czech Republic. Those standards require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obfain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement
of the financial statements, whether due fo fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal
controls relevant to the enftity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's
infernal confrols. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate fo provide a basis for our audit opinion.

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial stafements give a frue and fair view of the financial position of J & T BANKA, a.s. as of 31 December
2015, and of its financial performance and its cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with Infernational Financial
Reporting Standards as adopted by the European Union.

Other Information

Other information is defined as information (other than the financial statements and our auditor's report] included in the annual
report. The statutory body is responsible for the other information. In connection with our audit of the financial stafements, our
respansibility is fo report on the other information.
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J & T BANKA, a.s. has not prepared an annual report as at 31 December 2075, as it plans to include the respective information
in a consolidated annual report. Consequently, this auditor's report does not include our statement on the other information.

Prague
31 March 2016

KPHG c’;aw Cwret

KPMG Ceska republika Audit, s.r.o. Ing. Vladimir Dvoracek
Regisfration number 71 Partner

Registration number 2332
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Report on Relations
between Related Parties for
the Accounting Period of 2015

Prepared in accordance with Section 82 of Act No. 80/2012 Coll, on Commercial Companies and Cooperatives (the Act on
Business Corparations). This report has been prepared by the Board of Directors of J & T BANKA, a.s., with its registered office
at Praha 8, Pobiezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, ID# 47116378 (,the Bank').

I. STRUCTURE OF RELATIONS BETWEEN THE CONTROLLING ENTITIES AND THE CONTROLLED ENTITY AND BETWEEN THE
CONTROLLED ENTITY AND ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY THE SAME CONTROLLING ENTITY, THE ROLE OF THE CONTROLLED
ENTITY IN THE STRUCTURE, AND MANNER AND MEANS OF CONTROL.

The Board of Directors of J & T BANKA, a.s. is aware that during the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015,
J & T BANKA, a.s. was directly controlled by the following persons and entities:

J&T FINANCE GROUP SE
ID# 27692602, with its registered office at Praha 8, Pobrezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Czech Republic

The Board of Directors of J & T BANKA, a.s. is aware that during the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015,
J & T BANKA, a.s. was indirectly controlled by the following persons and enfities:

Ing. lvan Jakabovig,
Birth ID# 721008/62486, residing at 32 rue Comte Felix Gastaldi, 380 00 Monaco-Ville, who, along with Ing. Jozef Tkac (see
below], controls J&T FINANCE GROUP SE.

In addition, Ing. Ilvan Jakabovi¢ owns shares in the following companies:

J & T Securities, s.r.o.
ID# 31366431, with its registered office af Brafislava, Dvorakovo nabrezie 8, postcode 811 02, Slovakia, controlled by Ing. Ivan

Jakabovic

DANILLA EQUITY LIMITED
ID# HE297027, with its registered office at SAVVIDES CENTER, 63-81, Akropoleos Avenue, 1st floor, Flat/Office 102, postcode
2012, Nicosia, Cyprus, confrolled by Ing. lvan Jakabovit along with Ing. Jozef Tkac

Ing. Jozef Tkac,
Birth ID# 500616/210, residing at Bratislava, Na Revine 284113, postcode 830 00, Slovakia, who, along with Ing. lvan Jakabovit
(see above) controls J&T FINANCE GROUP SE.

The Board of Directors of J & T BANKA, a.s. is aware that during the period from 1 January 2015 to 31 December 2015,
J & T BANKA, a.s. was controlled by the same entities as the following other controlled entifies, through J&T FINANCE GROUP SE.

Postova banka, a.s.
ID# 31340880, with its registered office at Dvorakovo nabreZzie 4, Bratislava 811 02, Slovakia, controlled by J&T FINANCE GROUP SE.
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Poisfoviia Postovej banky, a. s.
ID# 31406410, with its registered office at Dvorakovo nabrezie 4, Bratislava 811 02, Slovakia, controlled by Postova banka, a.s.

Déchodkovéa spravcovska spoloénost Postovej banky, d.s.s., a. s.
ID# 35804305, with its registered office at Dvorakovo nabrezie 4, Bratislava 811 02, Slovakia, confrolled by Postova banka, a.s.

PRVA PENZIJNA SPRAVCOVSKA SPOLOCNOST POSTOVEJ BANKY, sprav. spol., a. s.
ID# 31621317, with its registered office at Dvorakovo nabrezie 4, Bratislava 811 02, Slovakia, contfrolled by Posfova banka, a.s.

POBA Servis, a. s.
ID# 47234571, with its registered office at Karloveska 34, Bratislava 841 04, Slovakia, controlled by Postova banka, a.s.

PB PARTNER, a. s.
ID# 36864013, with ifs registered office at Dvorakovo nabrezie 4, Bratislava 811 02, Slovakia, controlled by Postova banka, a.s.

Salve Finance, a.s.
ID# 35700185, with ifs registered office at Plynarenska 7/A, Bratislava 824 B0, Slovakia, confrolled by PB PARTNER, a.s.
To 24.6.2015.

PB Finanéné sluzby, a. s.
ID# 35817453, with its registered office at Hatftalova 12, Bratislava 831 03, Slovakia, controlled by Postova banka, a.s.

SPPS, a. s.
ID# 46652723, with ifs registered office at Nam. SNP 35, Bratislava 811 01, Slovakia, confrolled by Postova banka, a.s.

PBIT, a.s.
ID# 47621320, with its registered office at Dvorakovo nabrezie 4, Bratislava 811 02, Slovakia, controlled by Postova banka, a.s.

J&T SERVICES CR, a.s. (J§T Management, a.s.)
ID# 28188306, with its registered office at Praha 8, Pobiezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Czech Republic, controlled by JST
FINANCE GROUP SE.

J&T SERVICES SR, s.r.o.
ID# 462933289, with its registered office at Dvorakovo nabrezie 8, Bratislava 811 02, Slovakia, controlled by J&T SERVICES CR,

a.8.

J&T FINANCE, LLC
ID# 1067748577326, with its registered office at Rossolimo 17, Moscow, Russia, controlled by J6T SERVICES CR, a.s.
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Hotel Kadashevskaya, LLC.
ID# 1087746708642, with ifs registered office at Kadashevskaya Nabereznaya 26, 116 035 Moscow, Russia, confrolled by
J & T FINANCE, LLC.

KHASOMIA LIMITED
ID# HE238546, with its registered office at Akropoleos, 63-61, Savvides Centre, 1st floor, flat/office 102, postcode 2012, Nicosia,
Cyprus, confrolled by J&T Finance Group SE. To 16.2.2015 — ceased fo exist by merging with J&T FINANCE GROUP SE.

J&T Bank Switzerland Ltd. in liquidation
ID# CHO2030069721, with its registered office at Zurich, Talacker 50, 12th floor, postcode 8001, Switzerland, controlled by J&T
FINANCE GROUP SE.

J&T Concierge, s.r.o.
ID# 281898256, with its registered office at Praha 8, Pabfezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Czech Republic, controlled by JST
FINANCE GROUP SE.

PBI, a.s.
ID# 03633627, with its registered office at Praha 8, Pobfezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Czech Republic, contfrolled by J&T
FINANCE GROUP SE.

J&T Integris Group Ltd.
ID# HE207436, with its registered office at Klimentos, 41-43, KLIMENTOS TOWER, 2nd floor, Flat/Office 21, Nicosia, postcode
1087, Cyprus, controlled by J&T FINANCE GROUP SE.

Bayshore Merchant Services Inc.
ID# 01006740, with its registered office at TMF Place, Road Town, Tortola, British Virgin Islands, controlled by J&T Infegris Group
Lfd.

J&T Bank & Trust Inc.
ID# 00011908, with ifs registered office at Lauriston House, Lower Collymore Rock, St. Michael, Barbados, controlled by
Bayshore Merchant Services Inc.

J and T Capital, Sociedad Anonima de Capital Variable
ID# 1566638102, with its registered office at Explanada 905-A, Lomas de Chapultepec, postcode 11000, Ciudad de Mexico,
Mexico, controlled by Bayshore Merchant Services Inc.

J&T MINORITIES PORTFOLIO LTD
ID# HE2B0754, with its registered office at SAVVIDES CENTER, 53-61, Akropoleos Avenue, st floor, Flat/Office 102, postcode
2012, Nicosia, Cyprus, contfrolled by J&T Integris Group Ltd.
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Equity Holding, a.s.
ID# 10005006, with its registered office at Praha 8, Pobiezni 297/14, postcode 186 00, Czech Republic, controlled by JST
MINORITIES PORTFOLIO LTD.

ABS PROPERTY LIMITED
ID# 385594, with ifs registered office at 41 Centfral Chambers, Dame Court, Dublin 2, Ireland, confrolled by J&T MINORITIES
PORTFOLIO LTD.

J&T Global Finance |., B.V.
ID# 53836146, with its registered office at Weteringschans 26, Amsterdam, 1017 SG, the Netherlands, controlled by J&T Integris
Group Lfd.

J&T Global Finance Il., B.V.
ID# 53835697, with ifs registered office at Weteringschans 26, Amsterdam, 1017 SG, the Netherlands, controlled by J&T
Infegris Group Ltd.

J&T Global Finance lll., s.r.o.
ID# 4710181, with its registered office at Dvorakovo nabrezie 8, Brafislava 811 02, Slovakia, controlled by J&T Infegris Group Lid.

J&T Global Finance IV., B.V.
ID# 80411740, with its registered office at Weteringschans 26, Amsterdam, 1017 SG, the Netherlands, controlled by J&T Integris
Group Ltd.

J&T Global Finance V., s.r.o.
ID# 473168036, with its registered office at Dvorékovo nabrezie 8, Bratislava 811 02, Slovakia, controlled by J&T Infegris Group
Ltd.

J & T BANKA, a.s. is a member of the consolidation unit of the financial holding company of Ing. Jakabovi¢ and Ing. Tkac in
accordance with Act No. 21/1992 Coll., on Banks. The manner and means of control described in this report follow from control
effected based on an inferest in regisfered capital and voting rights of the company.

Il. SUMMARY OF ACTS MADE IN THE ACCOUNTING PERIOD OF 2015 WHICH WERE MADE AT THE INSTIGATION OR IN THE
INTEREST OF THE CONTROLLING ENTITY OR THE ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY THE CONTROLLING ENTITY IF THESE ACTS
CONCERNED ASSETS THE VALUE OF WHICH EXCEEDS 10% OF THE CONTROLLED ENTITY'S EQUITY IDENTIFIED FROM THE
LAST FINANCIAL STATEMENTS.

During the accounting period, no acts concerning assets the value of which exceeds 10% of the Bank's equity identified from
the last financial statfements were made in the interest or at the instigation of the controlling entity and entities controlled by
the conftrolling entity.
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lll. SUMMARY OF CONTRACTS ENTERED INTO BETWEEN THE CONTROLLED ENTITY AND THE CONTROLLING ENTITY OR
BETWEEN CONTROLLED ENTITIES.

With J&T FINANCE GROUP SE:

Contracts in force entered into between related parties:
Agreement on protection of confidential information and the procedure to be applied when providing confidential information,
dated 30 April 2014, based on which the partfies to this agreement are obliged tfo maintain confidentiality.

Contracts in force entered info between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— General agent agreement for the brokerage of purchase and sale of securities, dated 10 April 2008, as further amended,
based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with stock brokerage services based on the arm's
length principle, in exchange for adequate consideration.

- Dverdraff loan agreement No. EUR 6/KTK_SR/2014, dated 20 August 2014, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s underfook to
provide funds (an overdraft loan), and J&T FINANCE GROUP SE undertook to repay the loan, pay the inferest and other fees
in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions. The overdraft loan was duly repaid on 23 February 2015.

— Agent agreement dated 16 December 2008, based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. pravided the related party with stock
brokerage services based on the arm's length principle, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Conftract for the cusfody of financial instruments, dafed 15 January 2007, based on which J&T BANKA, a.s. provided to
related party in 2016 custody of securities fo the appropriate payment.

— Confract agreement for the cusfody of financial instruments, dated 2 November 2005, based on which JGT BANKA, a.s.
provided tfo related party in 2015 custody of securifies to the appropriate payment.

— Financial seftlement agreement dated 3 January 2012, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. seffles ifs receivables and
liabilities arising in connection with value added tax, as they are members of a single VAT group of which the Bank is the
representing member.

— Cost splifting agreement dated 31 Becember 2014, based on which the companies mutually covered 60% of the cost of the
audit of group reporting packages in 2015, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Confract for the provision of a guarantee, dafed 15 December 2005, based on which, in 2015, J&T FINANCE GROUP SE
provided a guarantee as to a minimum amount of revenue generated by a client's portfolio, in exchange for adequate
consideratian.

— Confract for the provision of a guarantee, dated 21 August 2006, based on which, in 2015, J&T FINANCE GROUP SE provided
a guarantee fo selected clienfs of the bank, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Liability sharing agreement dated 11 July 2007, based on which, in 2015, J&T FINANCE GROUP SE shared the potential
liability of J & T BANKA, a.s. arising from a Purchase agreement with the original assignees of the subordinated debt, in
exchange for adequate consideration.

— Conftract for the business lease of movable assets, dated 22 September 2010, as further amended, based on which, in 2015,
J&T FINANCE GROUP SE leased fixtures and fitfings fo the Bank, in exchange for adequate consideration — lease payment.

— Conftract for the business lease of movable assets and financial seftlement, dated 30 May 2011, as further amended, based
on which J&T FINANCE GROUP SE leased fixtures and fittings in the building at Dvorakovo nabrezie 8, Bratislava to the Bank
in 2015, in exchange for adequate consideration — lease payment.
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— Agreement on the cooperation in providing the J&T Family and Friends with banking services and in participating in the
Magnus loyalty scheme, dated 25 Naovember 2011, based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with
an advantageous package of services and parficipation rights on the loyalty scheme MAGNUS as an instrument of social
palicy, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Confract for the business lease of movable assetfs and financial sefflement, dated 1 December 2014, based on which J&T
FINANCE GROUP SE leased fixfures and fiftings in the River Park building complex in Brafislava to the Bank in 2015, in
exchange for adequate consideration — lease payment.

— Confract for the provision of banking services, dated 22 January 2014, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. undertock fo
provide services pursuant fo this confract, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Cost spliftfing contract, dated 6 October 2014, based on which J&T FINANCE GROUP SE and J & T BANKA, a.s. share the
costs connected with the entry of a sfrategic investar info the J&T financial group, in exchange for adequate consideration
— payment of the caosts.

— Brokerage confract dated 6 November 2013, based on which J&T FINANCE GROUP SE mediated opporfunities fo conclude
a confract with potential clients, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Conftract for the provision of services, dafed 10 September 2015, based on which JGT BANKA, a.s. provided services relating
to debt securities of J&T FINANCE GROUP SE's client, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Contract for the sale of shares in Postovéa banka, a.s., dated 24 February 2015, based on which J&T BANKA, a.s. undertook
to sell the shares and fransfer the ownership, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Bank account contfract for the increase in the share capital of a company, dated 1 September 2015, based on which J&T
BANKA, a.s. underfook to open and maintain a special bank account for J&T FINANCE GROUP SE and pay interest, in
exchange for adequate consideration — payment of fees.

— General contract for the frading in financial markets, dated 2 January 2014, based on which J&T BANKA, a.s. negofiated
currency derivative fransactions, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— General contract for the frading in financial markets, dated 30 November 2015, based on which J&T BANKA, a.s, negafiated
currency derivative fransactions, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Conftract for the subscription of shares, dated 4 November 2015, based on which ordinary shares of J&GT BANKA, a.s. were
subscribed and thereby the share capifal increased.

— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

— Deposit account maintenance in accordance with tThe ferms and condifions of the Bank.

— Issue of a charge card in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

— Provision of a safety deposif box in accordance with the ferms and conditions of the Bank.

— Forward currency fransactions in accordance with the ferms and conditions of the Bank.

With Ing. lvan Jakabovic:

Contracts in force entered into between related parties:

— Agent agreement No. 17726 for the brokerage of purchase and sale of securifies, dated 13 March 2008, based on which,
in 2016, J 6 T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with stock brokerage services based on the arm's length principle, in
exchange for adequate consideration.
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Contracts in force entered info between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— General agreement for the custody of financial instruments, dated 5 October 2009, based on which J&T BANKA, a.s.
provided fo related party in 2015 custfody of securifies to the appropriate payment.

— General agreement on the private banking, dated 24 November 2015, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. undertook to provide
services pursuant to this agreement, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Statement of the qualified investor, dafed 24 November 2015, based on which financial fransactions with unifs can be
concluded, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

— Deposit account maintenance in accordance with the ferms and condifions of the Bank.

— Issue of a charge card in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With J & T Securities, s.r.o.
— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With DANILLA EQUITY LIMITED:

— Conftract for the provisions of banking services, dafted 26 February 2015, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. underfook to
provide services pursuant to this confract, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Current account maintfenance in accordance with the tferms and condifions of the Bank.

With Ing. Jozef Tkac:

Contracts in force entered info between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— General agreement for the custfody of financial instruments, dated 10 December 2008, based on which J&T BANKA, a.s.
provided tfo related party in 2016 custody of securities fo the appropriate payment.

— Current account maintfenance in accordance with the terms and condifions of the Bank.

— Issue of a charge card in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With Pogtova banka, a.s.:

Contracts in force entered into between related parties:

— Lease confract for the lease of non-residential premises, dafted 5 October 2010, based on which, in 2015, Posfova banka, a.s.
leased fo the Bank non-residential premises and fixtures and fittings in the River Park building complex, Dvorakovo nabrez,
Bratislava.

— Agreement on the cooperation in participating in the Magnus loyalty scheme, dated 22 Octfober 2013, based on which,
in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with a participation rights on the loyalty scheme MAGNUS as an
insfrument of sacial policy, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Agreement on the protection of confidential information and the procedure fo be applied when providing confidential
information, dated 30 April 2014, based on which the partfies herefo are obliged fo maintain confidentiality.

— Agent agreement No. 17673, dated 7 February 2005, based on which, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with stack
brokerage services based on the arm's length principle, in exchange for adequate consideration.
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Contracts in force entered info between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

- Subordinated loan agreement dated 21 September 2011, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s undertook to provide funds (a
loan), and Postova banka, a.s. underfook to repay the loan and pay inferest and other fees in accordance with the agreed
ferms and conditions.

— Confract for support of membership in the card company MasterCard, dated 24 June 2014, based on which Pastava banka,
a.s. pravided payment system related services to J & T BANKA, a.s,, a related party, in 2015, in exchange for adequate
consideration.

— Confract for the cooperation, dated b October 2010, based on which Postova banka, a.s. provided the Bank with the
passibility fo use an ATM in the River Park centre at Dvorakovo nabrezi in Bratislava in 2015, in exchange for adequate
consideration.

— Confract for a loro account, dated 27 May 2014, based on which Postova banka, a.s. pravided services connected with
keeping a Euro bank account used for settling fransactions made with MasterCard payment cards.

— Confract for a loro account, dated 27 May 2014, based on which PoStova banka, a.s. provided services connected with
keeping a CZK bank account used for settling fransactions made with MasterCard payment cards.

— Confract for the purchase of movable assets, dafted 13 August 2015, based on which J & T BANKA a.s. sold a maobile phaone,
in exchange for adequate consideration.

— 2002 Master Agreement for derivative fransactions between J&GT BANKA, a.s. and Posfova banka, a.s., dated 10 June
2015, based on which J&T BANKA, a.s. negotiated mainly currency derivatfive fransactions, in exchange for adequate
consideration.

— Loan agreement up to the amount of EUR 76,000,000, dated 16 December 2015, based on which J&T BANKA, a.s provided
arrangement services and acted as agent in respect of granfing of credit line fo third parties, in exchange for adequate
consideration.

— Forward currency fransactions in accaordance with the ferms and conditions of the Bank.

With Poistfovia Postove] banky, a. s.:
— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.
— Deposit account maintenance in accordance with the terms and condifions of the Bank.

With Dochodkové spravcovska spolocnost Postove| banky, d.s.s., a. s.

Contracts in force entered into between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Confract for the provision of banking services, dafted 21 May 2014, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. underfook fo provide
services pursuant to this confract, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Deposit account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With PRVA PENZIJNA SPRAVCOVSKA SPOLOCNOST POSTOVEJ BANKY, sprav. spol, a. s.:
Contracts in force entered info between related parties:

— Agent agreement no. 173456, dated 3 December 2008, based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party
with stock brokerage services based on the arm's length principle, in exchange for adequate consideration.



Financial Part | Report on relations between related parties 221

Contracts in force entered info between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Confract for the cooperation, dated 13 July 2008, as further amended, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the
related party with services connected with collective investments in 2015 under the law which is in force in the Czech
Republic, in exchange for adequate consideration.

- Contract for the provision of the investment service consisting in acceptance and execution of client's instructions, dated
13 September 2013, as further amended, based on which bath parties agreed on cooperation in procuring purchase or sale
of units issued by mutfual funds managed by PPSS, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Deposit account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With J&T SERVICES CR, a.s. [JGT Management, a.s.);

Contracts in force entered info between related parties:

— Confract for the processing of personal data, dated 6 August 2014, based on which the parties herefo defined rights and
obligations when processing personal dafta under the Contract for the provision of expert support.

— Confidentiality agreement dated 24 February 2015, based on which the partfies heretfo are obliged fo mainfain confidentiality.

Contracts in force entered into between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Contract for the provision of expert support, dated 8 August 2014, based on which J & T SERVICES CR, a.s. provided payroll
and personnel services under this contract in 2015 and J & T BANKA, a.s. undertook fo provide adequate consideration for
the services.

— Overdraft loan agreement No. CZK 85/KTK/2013, dated 11 December 2013, as further amended, based on which J & T BANKA,
a.s undertook fo provide funds (an overdraft loan), and J & T SERVICES CR, a.s. undertook fo repay the loan and pay interest
and other fees in accordance with the agreed ferms and conditions.

— Bank guarantee agreement No. Z 08/0A0/2008, dated 21 April 2008, as further amended, based on which, in 2015, J & T
BANKA, a.s. issued a bank guarantee fo the related party, in exchange for adequate consideration. Neither the Bank nor any
other party suffered any loss or damage as a result of this agreement.

— Bank guarantee agreement No. Z 08/0A0/20M, dated 30 June 201, based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. issued a
bank guarantee fo the related party, in exchange for adequate consideration. Neither the Bank nor any other party suffered
any loss or damage as a resulf of this agreement.

— Confract for the sublease of non-residential premises, dafted 1 July 2008, as further amended, based on which, in 2015,
J&T SERVICES CR, a.s. provided the Bank with the lease of non-residential premises and fixtures and fittings at Sokolovska
334/17, Praha 8, in exchange for adequate consideration — lease payment.

— Contract for the provision of premises, dated 1January 2014, based on which, in 2015, J & T SERVICES CR, a.s. provided the
Bank with the lease of non-residential premises in the Prosek Point building complex, in exchange for adequate consideration
— lease payment.

— Financial sefflement agreement dated 1 January 2008, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. settles ifs receivables and
liabilities arising in connection with value added tax, as they are members of a single VAT group of which the Bank is the
representing member.

— Contract for the provision of services (outsourcing), dated 1 September 2014, as further amended, based on which J 6 T
SERVICES CR, a.s. provided services consisting in preparation of prudential consolidated financial statements under this
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confract in 2015 and J & T BANKA, a.s. undertook fo provide adeguate consideration.

— Contract for the provision of services (oufsourcing), dated 5 January 2015, based on which, in 2015, J & T SERVICES CR,
a.s. provided reparting services and cenfral purchases pursuant fo this contract, and J & T BANKA, a.s. underfook o provide
adequate consideration.

— Contract for the provision of services, dated 31 January 2013, based on which, in 2015, J & T SERVICES CR, a.s. provided
legal services pursuant fo this contract, and J & T BANKA, a.s. underfook to provide adequate consideration.

— Confract for the business lease of movable assets, dated 1 July 2013, as further amended, based on which J & T SERVICES
CR, a.s. leased office furniture and equipment to the Bank in 2015, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Mandate confract for tax advisory services, dated 3 January 2011, based on which, in 2015, J & T SERVICES CR, a.s.
provided the Bank with tax advisory services, in exchange for adequate consideration.

- Service confract dated 26 March 2013, as further amended, based on which J & T SERVICES CR, a.s. provided development
and maintenance services in respect of the Quaestor banking information system in 2015 and J & T BANKA, a.s. underfook
to provide adequate consideration.

— Confract for the cooperation in arranging social events, dated 1 January 2014, as further amended, based on which J&T
SERVICES CR, a.s. underfook to provide for cultural and social events for employees under the terms and conditions of this
confract, and J & T BANKA, a.s. underfook to provide adequate consideration — proporfionate part of the expenses.

— Contract for the sublease of a motor vehicle, dated 2 January 2074, based on which, in 2015, J&T Services CR, a.s. leased
to the Bank motor vehicles, in exchange for adequate consideratfion — lease payment.

— Confract for the sublease of a motor vehicle, dated 23 January 2015, based on which, in 2015, J&T Services CR, a.s.
provided the Bank with the lease of maotor vehicles, in exchange for adequate consideration — Ilease payment.

— Confract for the provision of services with J & T BANKA, a.s., dated 31 December 2014, based on which, in 2015, J & T
SERVICES CR, a.s. provided logistic, operational and technical management services pursuant to this confract, and J & T
BANKA, a.s. underfook to provide adequate consideration.

— Confract for the provision of services with J & T Banka, a. s. pobocka zahrani¢nej banky, dated 31 December 2014, based
on which, in 2016, J & T SERVICES CR, a.s. provided logistic, operational and technical management services pursuant fo
this confract, and J & T BANKA, a.s. underfook o provide adequate consideration.

— Conftract for the assignment of the contfract for the supply and maintenance of software, dated 31 December 2015, based on
which J&T BANKA, a.s. fransferred rights and obligations arising under the contfract between J&T BANKA, a.s. and MIBCON
fram 31 December 2014 to JET SERVICES CR, a.s.

— Confract for the consideration for the assignment of a license, dated 31 December 2015, based on which J&T BANKA, a.s.
and J&T SERVICES CR, a.s. agreed on the amount of the consideration for the assignment of the license.

— Confract for the consideration far the use of software, dated 31 December 2015, based on which J&T BANKA, a.s. and J&T
SERVICES CR, a.s. agreed on the amount of the consideration for the use of SAP software.

— Contract for the provision of services, dated 18 December 2014, based on which, in 2015, J & T SERVICES CR, a.s. provided
IT/IS services pursuant to this contract, and J & T BANKA, a.s. underfook to provide adequate consideration.

— Contract for the sale of movable assets, dated 31 December 2015, based on which, in 2015, J & T SERVICES CR, s.r.o. sold
IT equipment in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Contract for the sale of movable assets, dated 30 January 2015, based on which, in 2016, J & T SERVICES CR, s.r.o. sold
IT equipment in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Contract for the sublease of business premises, dated 31 March 2015, based on which, in 2015, J&T BANKA, a.s. provided
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J&T SERVICES CR, a.s. with premises in the Javor building, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Confract for the delegation of activities and the provision of expert support, dated 1 January 2015, based on which, in
2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided risk management, infernal audif, compliance and AML services, in exchange for adequate
consideration for the services.

— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

— Issue of a charge card in accordance with the terms and condifions of the Bank.

— Provision of a safety deposit box in accordance with the ferms and conditions of the Bank.

With J&T SERVICES SR, sro.

Contracts in force entered into between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Mandate confract for payroll and personnel services, dated 26 Ocfober 2012, as further amended, based on which, in 2015,
J&T SERVICES SR, s.r.o. provided the Bank with personnel and payroll services, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Dverdraft loan agreement No. EUR 16/KTK_SR/2014, dated 31 December 2014, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s undertook
to provide funds (an overdraft loan) to the related party, and JST Services SR, s.r.o. undertook to repay the loan and pay
inferest and other fees in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions.

— Confract for the rent of motor vehicles, dated 2 January 2013, based on which, in 2015, J&T SERVICES SR, s.r.o. provided
the Bank with rent of mator vehicles, in exchange for the payment of the rental price.

— Conftract for the provision of services, dated 2 January 2013, as further amended, based on which, in 2015, J&T SERVICES
SR, s.ro. provided the Bank with operational and logistic services specified in the supplement of this contract, in exchange
for adequate consideration.

— Agreement on the defermination of remuneration for the provision of the services beyond the common framework, dated 30
December 2015, relating to the Confract for the provision of services from 2 January 2013, based on which, in 2015, J&T
SERVICES SR, s.r.o. provided the Bank with services pursuant to this contfract, in exchange for adequate consideration.

- Contract for the provision of IS/IT services (outsourcing), dated 28 December 2012, based on which, in 2015, JST SERVICES
SR, s.r.o. provided the Bank with T/IS services pursuant to this contfract, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Brokerage contract dated 3 April 2013, based on which, in 2015, J&T SERVICES SR, s.ro. brokered banking products
pursuant to this contfract, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Conftract for the sale of movable assets, dated 19 October 2015, based on which J&T SERVICES SR, s.r.o. sold a mabile
phone fo the Bank, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Confract for the delegation of activities and the provision of expert support, dated 1 January 2015, based on which, in 2015,
J & T BANKA, a.s. provided risk management and infernal audit services, in exchange for adequate consideration for the
services.

— Mandate contract for payroll and personnel services, dated 31 December 2014, based on which, in 20156, J&T SERVICES SR,
s.r.o. provided the Bank with personnel and payroll services, in exchange for adequate consideration.,

— Confract for the rent of a motor vehicle, dated 2 January 2013, as further amended, based on which, in 2015, J&T SERVICES
SR, s.ro. provided the Bank with rent of motor vehicles, in exchange for the payment of the rental price.

— Conftract for the provision of services, dated 2 January 2013, as further amended, based on which, in 2015, J&T SERVICES
SR, s.r.o. provided the Bank with operational and logistic services specified in the supplement of this confract, in exchange
for adequate consideration.
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— Agreement on the cooperation in providing the J&T Family and Friends with banking services and in participating in the
Magnus loyalty scheme, dated 27 Becember 2011, based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with
an advantageous package of services and parficipation rights on the loyalty scheme MAGNUS as an instrument of social
palicy, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

— Issue of a charge card in accordance with the terms and condifions of the Bank.

With J&T FINANCE, LLC:

Contracts in force entered info between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

—  Loan agreement No. RUB 20/0A0/2014, dated 28 March 2014, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. underfook to provide funds (a
loan), and J&T FINANCE, LLC undertook fo repay the loan and pay interest in accordance with the agreed terms and conditions.

— Brokerage confract No. 01-01/14, dated 17 January 2014, based on which J&T FINANCE, LLC mediated opportunities to
conclude a contract with potential clients, in exchange for adequate consideration. A Profacol of provided services relates
fo this confract.

— Conftract for the provision of services, dated 25 February 2015, based on which J&T FINANCE, LLC provided services related
to the infention fo increase participation in the share capital of J&T Bank, a.0., in exchange for adequate consideration.

With Hotel Kadashevskaya, LLC:

Contracts in force entered info between related parties:

—  Bank guarantee agreement No. Z 48/0A0/2014, dated 19 November 2014, based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. issued
a bank guarantee fo the related party, in exchange for adequate consideration. Neither the Bank nor any other party suffered
any loss or damage as a resulf of this agreement.

— Bank guarantee agreement No. Z 50/0A0/2014, dated 13 November 2014, based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. issued
a bank guarantee to the related party, in exchange for adequate consideration. Neither the Bank nor any other party suffered
any loss or damage as a resulf of this agreement.

With KHASOMIA LIMITED:
— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With J&T Concierge, s.r.o..

Contracts in force entered into between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Dverdraff loan agreement No. CZK 23/KTK/2010, dated S June 2010, as further amended, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s
undertook to provide funds [an overdraft loan) fo the related party, and JGT Concierge, s.r.o. underfook fo repay the loan and
pay interest and other fees in accordance with the agreed ferms and conditions.

— Dverdraff loan agreement No. USD 100/KTK/2013, dated 30 December 2013, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s undertook to
provide funds (an overdraft loan) to the related party, and J&T Concierge, s.r.o. underfook to repay the loan and pay interest
and other fees in accordance with the agreed ferms and conditions.



Financial Part | Report on relations between related parties 225

— Overdraft loan agreement No. EUR 89/KTK/2013, dated 30 December 2013, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s undertook to
provide funds (an overdraft loan) to the related party, and J&T Concierge, s.r.o. underfook o repay the loan and pay interest
and other fees in accordance with the agreed ferms and condifions.

— Financial sefflement agreement dafed 3 January 2012, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. seffles ifs receivables and
liabilities arising in connection with value added tax, as they are members of a single VAT group of which the Bank is the
representing member.

— Cooperation agreement dated 31 August 2011, based on which, in 2015, J&T Concierge, s.r.o. provided J & T BANKA, as., a
related party, with services pursuant fo this contract relating fo the provision of concierge services to payment card holders,
in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Conftract for the provision of services, dated 3 January 2013, as further amended, based on which, in 2015, J&T Concierge,
s.r.o. pravided mainly marketing services, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Confract for the provision of services, dated 1 August 2014, as further amended, based on which, in 2015, J&T Concierge,
s.r.0. provided mainly marketing services, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

— Issue of a charge card in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With PBI, a.s.:

Contracts in force entered into between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Agent agreement dated 18 December 2015, based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with stock
brokerage services based on the arm's length principle, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Conftract for the sale of 34% share in PoStova banka, a.s., dated 256 Februry 2015, as further amended, based on which J&T
BANKA, a.s. undertook fo sell the shares and transfer the ownership, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Agreement on the original purchase price adjustment, dated 20 December 2015, based on which the related parties agreed
on the purchase price of 34% share in Postova banka, a.s.

— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With J&T Integris Group Ltd.
— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With J&T Bank & Trust Inc.:

Contracts in force entered info between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Agent agreement for tThe brokerage of purchase and sale of investment instfruments, dated 13 August 2012, based on which,
in 2016, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with stock brokerage services based on the arm's length principle, in
exchange for adequate consideration.

— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

— Issue of a charge card in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

— Forward currency fransactions in accordance with the ferms and conditions of the Bank.
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With J&T MINORITIES PORTFOLIO LTD:

Contracts in force entered into between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Agent agreement No. 19181 for the brokerage of purchase and sale of securities, dated 20 August 2010, based on which,
in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with stock brokerage services based on the arm's length principle, in
exchange for adequate consideration.

— Confract for the provision of banking services, dated 5 February 2015, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. underfook to
provide services pursuant to this confract, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Current account mainfenance in accordance with the ferms and conditions of the Bank.

With Equity Holding, a.s..

Contracts in force entered info between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Agent agreement No. 175398, dated 15 December 2008, based on which, in 20156, J & T BANKA, a.s. pravided the related party
with sfock brokerage services based on the arm's length principle, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Current account maintfenance in accordance with the ferms and conditions of the Bank.

With ABS PROPERTY LIMITED:

Contracts in force entered into between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Loan agreement No. USD B1/0A0/2012, dated 30 August 2012, as further amended, based on which JGT BANKA, a.s.
undertook to provide funds (a loan), and ABS PROPERTY LIMITED undertook to repay the loan and pay interest in accordance
with the agreed ferms and conditions.

— Current account mainfenance in accordance with the ferms and condifions of the Bank.

With J&T Global Finance I, BV.

Contracts in force entered into between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Agent agreement dated 18 September 20714, based on which, in 2016, J & T BANKA, a.s. pravided the related party with
investment services based on the arm's length principle, in exchange for adequate consideration. The contfract was
terminated by notice dated 11 September 2015.

— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With J&T Global Finance II., BV.
Contracts in force entered info between related parties:

— Administration contract dated 12 January 2012, along with the Special arrangement fo this contract, based on which J & T
BANKA, a.s. provided administration services as part of a bond issue programme, in exchange for adequate consideration.
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Contracts in force entered info between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Administration confract dated 12 January 2012, along with the Special arrangement to this confract, based on which, in
2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided administration services as part of a bond issue programme, in exchange for adequate
consideration.

— Agent agreement dafed 23 December 2014, based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with
investment services based on the arm's length principle, in exchange for adequate consideration. The contract was
terminated by notice dated 11 September 2015.

— Confract for the provision of banking services, dated 23 April 2014, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. underfook to provide
services pursuant fo this confract, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Current account mainfenance in accardance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With J&T Global Finance lll., sr.o.:

Contracts in force entered into between related parties:
— Bond placement agreement dafed 13 May 2013, along with the Special arrangement fo this agreement, based on which
J & T BANKA, a.s. arranged a bond issue, in exchange for adequate consideration. .

Contracts in force entered info between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Administration confract dated 21 June 2013, along with the Special arrangement fo this confract, based on which, in
2016, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided administration services as part of a bond issue programme, in exchange for adequate
consideratian.

— Current account maintenance in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Bank.

With J&T Global Finance IV, BV.

Contracts in force entered into between related parties:
— Bond placement agreement dafed 26 August 2014, along with the Special arrangement to this agreement, based on which
J & T BANKA, a.s. arranged a bond issue, in exchange for adequate consideration.

Contracts in force entered info between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Administration contfract dated 26 August 2014, along with the Special arrangement fo this contfract, based on which, in
2016, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided administration services as part of a bond issue programme, in exchange for adequate
consideration.

— Agent agreement dafed 29 December 2014, based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with
investment services based on the arm's length principle, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Current account maintfenance in accordance with the ferms and conditions of the Bank.
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With J&T Global Finance V., s.r.o.

Contracts in force entered into between related parties based on which performance was provided in 2015:

— Administration contract dated 27 November 2014, along with the Special arrangement to this confract, based on which,
in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided administration services as part of a bond issue programme, in exchange for adequate
consideration.

— Bond placement agreement dated 27 November 2014, along with the Special arrangement fo this agreement, based on
which J & T BANKA, a.s. arranged a bond issue in 2015, in exchange far adequate consideration.

— Contract for the provision of banking services, dated 20 August 2014, based on which J & T BANKA, a.s. undertook to
provide services pursuant fo this confract, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— General agent agreement faor the purchase or sale of financial instruments, dated 10 December 2014, based on which, in
2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. pravided services pursuant to the confract, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Agent agreement dafed 21 August 2015, based on which, in 2015, J & T BANKA, a.s. provided the related party with
investment services based on the arm's length principle, in exchange for adequate consideration.

— Current account mainfenance in accordance with the terms and condifions of the Bank.

IV. ASSESSMENT OF WHETHER THE CONTROLLED ENTITY INCURRED A LOSS AND JUDGMENT OF ITS SETTLEMENT UNDER
SECTIONS 71 AND 72 OF THE ACT ON BUSINESS CORPORATIONS.

The controlled entity incurred no loss from the relations mentfioned above under Sections 71 and 72 of the Act on Business
Corporations.

V. ASSESSMENT OF ADVANTAGES AND DISADVANTAGES ARISING FROM RELATIONS BETWEEN THE CONTROLLING ENTITY
AND THE CONTROLLED ENTITY AND BETWEEN THE CONTROLLED ENTITY AND ENTITIES CONTROLLED BY THE SAME
CONTROLLING ENTITY INCLUDING A STATEMENT ON WHETHER ADVANTAGES OR DISADVANTAGES PREVAIL AND WHAT
ARE THE RISKS ARISING FROM THIS FACT FOR THE CONTROLLED ENTITY.

The Bank provides related parties with sfandard banking services and the ofher relationships are concluded primarily fo
opfimise the services used/provided and to utilise the synergies of related parties. As a result, the Bank is able to make its
operations more effective and o provide ifs clients with comprehensive banking services and asset management, and to effect
fransactions in financial and capital markets also for retfail clients. All fransactions between the controlled entity and the Bank, or
between the entities controlled by the same controlling entity and the Bank, were effected based on the arm’s length principle.

The Bank has no advantages or disadvantages from and faces no other additional risks in respect of the abaove relations.
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VI. WE DECLARE THAT WE HAVE INCLUDED ALL INFORMATION KNOWN AS OF THE DATE OF THE SIGNATURE IN THE REPORT
ON RELATIONS BETWEEN RELATED PARTIES OF J & T BANKA, A.S., PREPARED IN ACCORDANCE WITH SECTION 82 OF THE
ACT ON BUSINESS CORPORATIONS FOR THE PERIOD FROM 1 JANUARY 2015 TO 31 DECEMBER 2015.

Board of Directors
J & T BANKA, as.
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Information about securities,
rights and obligations
of holders

Information on securities

In 2015, the Czech National Bank approved and J & T BANKA, a.s., I0: 47116378, registered office Prague 8, Pobtezni 297/14,
postcode 186 00, registered in the Commercial Register maintained by the Metropolitan Court in Prague, Part B, entry 1731 (the
"Bank” or the "Issuer’] issued subordinated unsecured yield certificates without any maturity date with a yield of 9% p.a., in the
nominal value of CZK 100,0000, ISIN CZ0003704413 and subordinated unsecured vyield cerfificates without any maturity date
with a yield of 9% p.a., in the nominal value of EUR 5,000, ISIN CZ0003704421 (the "Certificates").

In 2014, the Bank issued Certificates with a yield of 10% p.a. in the nominal value of CZK 100,000, ISIN CZ0003704248.

Certificates are unnamed securifies issued in the Czech Republic in accordance with Czech legal regulations. Certfificates are
hybrid financial instruments combining characteristics of equity and debt securities and are issued as book-entry registered
shares.

Provided that conditions are met under Article 62 (1) of Regulation (EU) No. 676/2013 of the European Parliament and of the
Council of 26 June 2013 on prudential requirements for credit institutions and investment firms and amending Regulation (EU)
No. 848/2012, Certificates can be included to Additional Tier 1instruments of the Bank.

Certificates are fraded af the Prague Stock Exchange, a.s. A volume of issued Certfificates amounted to CZK 1,742 million at 31
December 2015 (in 2014: CZK 899 million).

As at 31 December 2015, neither the Certificates nor the Bank had a valid rafing.

Data on the number of shares, their nominal value and the Issuer's shareholder structure are given in the financial statements.
The Issuer's persons with managing powers do not own any shares, options or comparable investment instruments whose
value relates to shares or similar securities representing an ownership inferest in the Issuer.

Rights and obligations of shareholders and certificate holders
Cerfificates are not bonds as defined by Act No. 180/2004 Coll,, the Bonds Act as amended. Holders of the Certificates are not
the Bank's shareholders and are not enfitled fo dividend payments.

Holders of the Certificates have no ownership interest in the Bank's equity and their Certificates do not entitle them to exercise
any direct or indirect voting rights. As approved by the Czech National Bank, the Bank is not subject to obligations stipulated
in Section 118 (5] (a) through (1) of Act No. 266/2004 Coll,, the Act on Business Activities on the Capital Market as amended.
Other rights and obligations are defined in issuing ferms and conditions.

Rights and obligations of shareholders are governed by provisions of Act No. 80/2012 Coll.,, the Business Corporations Act. As
the Bank has the sole shareholder, the general meeting is not held and its powers are exercised by the sole shareholder.
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Rights and obligations of the sole shareholders are idenfical o the powers of the general meefing, The paosition of which is
defined in the Bank's Articles of Assaciation. Other information on the performance of the sole shareholder, resp. the powers of
the general meeting, is given in the chapter Corporate Governance and Data on the Issuer.
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Corporate Governance
and data on the 1issuer

Corporate Governance and the Code

The Issuer's financial performance depends upon maintaining a good reputation in the media, among clients, counterparties,
sharehalders, investors or regulafory bodies. Although the Issuer has won many awards for quality of its services and the
volume of depaosits has more than doubled since the beginning of 2011, the potfential loss of its good reputfation might have an
adverse impact on obtfaining new depasits, oufflow of deposits, availability of external financing, an increase in income and
acquiring capital, i.e. on the Issuer's business and financial performance and its ability to disburse yields and meet obligations
arising from the Certificates.

The Issuer's internal governance level is fo a considerable exfent in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code based
on the OECD's principles of 2004 (the "Code"). The Issuer meets most principal provisions of the Code that is available on the
web sites of the Czech Ministry of Finance (http;//www.mfcr.cz/cs/archiv/transformacni-instituce/agenda-byvaleho-fnm/sprava-
maijetku/kodex-spravy-a-rizeni-spolecnosti-corpor/kodex-spravy-a-rizeni-spolecnosti-zaloze-14620).

The Issuer has not obligatorily adopted the corporate governance code; it has, however, issued internal rules defining in detail
the area of the corporate governance following the Issuer's Articles of Association, in particular the Bank's organization order. In
addition, the Issuer observes provisions of the Business Corporations Act, the Act on Banks and other relevant legal regulations
concerning corporate governance. The abave mentioned binding corporate governance code has not been voluntarily adopted
because in addition fo the simple shareholder structure the Issuer considers the existing regulation of the corporate governance
fully adequate and functional.

In order fo minimize risks and injury to ifs good reputfation, the Issuer infernally avoids such risks by ifs organizatfion and
management. Employees act in compliance with the Issuer's ethical code and other internal rules. The Issuer also actively
communicates with the media, clients, counterparties, shareholders, investors and regulators.

As an investment firm, the Issuer is obliged to pay an annual contfribution fo the Guarantee Fund in the amount of 2% of the
volume of income from fees and commissions for provided investment services under Act No. 266/2004 Coll, the Act on
Business Activities on the Capital Market. In 2015, the contribution amounted to CZK 8.8 million [(2014: CZK 7.7 million).

Information about internal control principles and procedures relating to the financial reporting process

The Issuer, To ensure that the accounts give a true and fair view of the sfate of affairs and financial statements are prepared in a
due manner, uses various foals to appropriately recognize individual fransactions and fo subsequently present them in the financial
sftatements af the Issuer and its Group. Key fools include in particular maximum automation of recurring fransactions, procedures
and processes within appropriate systfems and applications, regular monitoring and testing of these systems and seffing of
access rights fo individual systems and applications. In addition fo periodical reviews of the general ledger, the Issuer also applies
a sysfem of allocating responsibility and reconciliation of accounts in ferms of individual analytical account balances. Each general
ledger account has its administrator who has to provide regularly, or on demand, information on the parficular analyfical account
(balance, reconciliation to primary data, breakdown to individual amounts, etc.). The compliance of applied accounting policies with,
in particular, Infernational Financial Reporting Standards and the seffing of accounting controls fall within the responsibility of the
Issuer's Finance Department that also lays down rules and methodology for the compilation of consolidated financial statements
and examines the correctness of background materials used for the compilation of consalidated financial statements.
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Information about applied accounting policies, valuation tfechnigues and rules for establishing adjustments is disclosed in the
Notes fo the financial statfements of this annual report.

The accuracy of information presented in the Issuer's financial statements is confirmed by the auditor's opinion. The annual
report includes audited financial results of the Issuer and its Group.

In 2015, the Issuer and the Group were billed the following amounts for audit fees and other services.

2016 2014

2015 2014 Paid by other Paid by other

Paid by Paid by campanies companies

In thousands of CZK the Issuer the Issuer in the Group in the Group
Audit services 17,6356 13,948 4,731 2,308
Other services - 2,406 - -
Total 17,635 16,365 4,731 2,308

Powers of the General Meeting

The Issuer of the Certificate has only a sole shareholder, the general meetings do not take place, and the powers of the general
meeting are exercised by that sole shareholder whose decisions have fo be in wrifing and delivered fo the company. The
shareholder's decisions must be in the form of a notarial deed on legal actions in cases when a notarial deed is made on the
decisions of the general meeting. Delivery to the company is made in writing for the affention of any member of the Board of
Directors or to the address of the company's registered office recorded in the Commercial Register.

The powers of the general meeting also include decisions on a change in the Artficles of Association, an amount of registered
capital and the authorization of the Board of Directors fo increase registered capital, election and removal of members of
the Supervisory Board, the approval of regular, exfraordinary or consolidated financial statfements and, in cases when their
preparation is stipulated by another legal regulation, of inferim financial statfements. The general meeting also decides on the
distribution of profit and other own resources or the sefflement of a loss, it gives insfructions fo the Board of Directors and
approves principles of the Board of Directors' activity unless they are contrary fo legal regulations. The general meeting can
parficularly prohibit cerfain legal actions fo any Board member if it is in the inferest of the company.

The powers of the general meeting (resp. the sole shareholder] are regulated in the Issuer's valid Articles and Association and
respective legal regulations, in particular Act No. 80/2012 Coll, the Business Corporations Act.

Remuneration policy

The Bank has not established any special committee for its remuneration policy. Therefore, such policy is approved by the
Supervisory Board based on the Board of Directors' recommendation and the fulfilment of objectives set in advance. The
Supervisory Board holds four sessions a year and discusses remuneration matters at each session. In 2015, the Bank did not
use services of an external advisor.

The performance of employees principally influences only their variable remuneration component not the fixed component
which is not changed. The fixed remuneratfion component includes salaries and benefits. The Bank provides annual and
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exfraordinary bonuses as a variable remunerafion component fo which no claim can be applied. Its amount depends on
the particular employee's performance and activity of the respective section and the Bank's financial results. In case of
exfraordinary bonuses, the Bank fakes usually only the performance of the employee or a respective feam info consideration.

Criteria for the evaluation and mativation include financial and non-financial figures that are to monitor quality and development of
the Bank's services and abilities of an employee. They also include figures of the internal and external quality and development.
The criteria further comprise profitability, acquisition activity, market pofential, cbservance of infernal rules, limits, contfractual
documentation quality and internal communication quality, complaints of clients, quality of services and rafe of project fulfilment.
Remuneration is conditioned in particular by the rafe of performance of the abave criteria in combination with the Bank's real
financial situation. Annual bonuses are not paid in particular if a) the volume of net assets decreases year on year without an
increase in own resources by shareholders and without the dividend payment, b) the operational profit decreases by more
than 16% or c¢) the ROE is less than 300 bps above the annual reference rate valid af the beginning of the accounting period.
An amount of the variable remuneration component may not exceed 100% of the fixed component of the tofal remuneration.

The variable remuneration component of employees having a significant influence on the Bank's overall risk profile and of
employees whose working fasks include frading activity does not have fo be allocated, may be reduced or deferred provided
that affer the allocation of a variable remuneration component to employees at lower management levels, the disbursement
of bonuses fo senior officials would mean a lower than planned economic or operatfional result of the Bank. The variable
remuneration component will not be paid at all provided that its disbursement results in the Bank's limited ability to strengthen
its capital (if relevant], in case of the Bank's unfavourable financial situation or in case of fermination of employment.

The process of allocating annual bonuses is launched by the Board of Directors' decision on the maximum amount earmarked
for the department, resp. section concerned (the bonus pool]. The real volume of bonuses to be disbursed is reduced based on
the rafe of fulfilment of key criteria which have to be met for af least 70%. The tfotal volume of annual bonuses is distributed in
time for employees having a significant influence on the Bank's overall risk profile as follows: 60% of the amount is immediately
paid, 26% are paid next year and 26% are paid two years affer the allocation (the deferred variable remuneration component).

In 2015, the remuneration of top managers tfotalled CZK 32 million, divided among 10 persons with managing powers. For 2015,
members of the board of directors received from the parent company CZK 16.8 million in salaries and CZK 1.3 million as bonuses
for exercising their offices. Members of the supervisory board received CZK 7.9 million in salaries. Other persons with managing
powers received CZK 6.3 million in salaries from the parent company.

In 2015, the Bank did not pay any bonuses to supervisory board members or fo other persons with managing powers for
exercising their offices. Persons with managing powers did nat receive any income from subsidiaries or any non-monetary
income in 2015. No severance pay was granted or paid in 2015, and no bonus exceeding EUR 1 million was paid to anybody.
The Bank and ifs subsidiaries do not confribute to supplementary pension insurance or other similar schemes. The Bank
declares that the members of its administrative, management and supervisory badies or of those of its subsidiaries do not enjoy
any special advantages in connection with the termination of their acfivity.
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Real estate, machinery and equipment

As at 31 December 2016, the Issuer's total fangible assets amounted to CZK 48 million (as at 31 December 2014: CZK 61 million).
As af 31 December 2015, fotal tangible assets and investment property of the Issuer's Group amounted to CZK 700 million (as
31 December 2014; CZK 702 million).

The single largest item of the Group's assets is formed by a building in the Russian Federation owned by the subsidiary,
Inferznanie. The building consists of administrative premises and a hatel. The Issuer itself does not own any real property. It
has hired premises for its registered office at Pobiezni 297/14, Prague 8 until 2021 and the OASIS building at Sokolovska 394/17,
Prague 8 until 2019.

The Issuer invests in the development of infangible assetfs from time to fime, in particular in the development of ifs banking
system, an internet portal and dafa services.

The Issuer confirms that it is not aware of any environmental impacts that might be caused by the Issuer's use of tangible
fixed assefs.

Issuer's dividend policy and significant litigations

The Issuer has not approved any specific long-ferm dividend policy. In every accountfing period, any dividend payment is
subject to an assessment of the Issuer's possibilities and needs and the Issuer also takes interests of Certificate owners info
consideration.

Any payment of dividends is approved by the Issuer's sole shareholder or the general meeting, if the Issuer has maore
shareholders, based on the proposal of the Issuer's Board of Directors. The Issuer's management expects that the full audited
profit amount for 2015 will be fransferred fo retained earnings and part of profit for 2015 will be transferred fo a special fund
for the payment of yields from the Certfificates.

At the dafe of preparation of the annual report, legal proceedings are held regarding the action of SPGroup, a.s. for the
surrender of shares in the fofal amount of CZK 314 million. The action was dismissed by courts of both first and second
instance and the matter was referred back fo the court of first instance due fo procedural reasons. The Issuer considers the
action unsubstantiated. In addition, proceedings are held regarding the action of Radoslav Hajduch, frusfee in bankruptfcy of
the insolvent company, DEVIN BANKA, a.s. being in bankruptcy, for the payment of CZK 340 million with accessions and CZK
70 million with accessions. After several hearings, the action was dismissed. The plaintiff filed the appellate review. The Issuer
believes that the plaintiff's chances of succeeding with this second appellate review are low.

As at the date of preparation of this annual report, the Issuer is not a party to any other ongoing or pending legal or arbitration
proceedings and has not been a party fo any other such proceedings in the last 12 months.

Significant contracts
The Issuer's significant fransactions made affer 31 December 2016 are disclosed in the Notes to the financial statements.
Confracts entered info between the Group members are given in a separatfe part of the annual report, the Report on relafions.
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In the period preceding the release of the annual report, neither the Issuer nor any other member of the Issuer's group entered
info contracts beyond the ordinary course of business which might be considered material. No member of the Group entered
info a confract confaining any provisions under which any member of the Group has any obligation or claim significant for the
Group.

The Issuer confirms that it is not aware of any conflict of inferest between obligations of the members of the Board of Directors
or the Supervisory Board towards the Issuer and between their private inferests and other obligations. The Issuer also confirms
that it is not aware of any agreements with the major sharehalders, clients, suppliers or ather entities under which a member of
the Board of Directors or Supervisory Board is appointed as a member of administrative, management and supervisory bodies
or a fop management member. The Issuer further confirms that it is not aware of any restrictions agreed with any member of
the Board of Directors or Supervisory Board on the treatment of their inferests in the Issuer's securities for a certain period of
fime.
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